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NEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the second half of 2020, the overall economy of the PRC
recovered from the COVID-19 pandemic, the GDP growth returned to
positive throughout the whole year and the gross industrial product
increased on a quarterly basis. Driven by demand from property,
infrastructure and manufacturing industries, the steel industry
remained buoyant while demand for coke rose. The coke price rose
and remained high, which was favorable to the profitability of the
coke industry.

Meanwhile, based on the Country’s “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan”, the
Shanxi provincial government actively enforced “three-year action
plan aims for blue skies”. In November 2020, the Shanxi provincial
government proposed to completely shut down coking furnaces with
a coking chamber height of 4.3 meters and below, and intensified
supervision and inspection tasks to reduce production capacity.

As such, GRG Huscoke (Shanxi) LTD* (LU Fa & A MERLRBR A R))
("GRG Huscoke”), a sino-foreign joint venture which is 90% owned
by the Company through a wholly-owned subsidiary, received a
formal notice from the government authority of Xiaoyi City on 9
December 2020, requesting its two 4.3-metre Coking Furnaces to be
shut down (the “Shutdown Measures”). One of the furnaces,
accounting for half of the production capacity of GRG Huscoke, was
shut down on 28 December 2020. As GRG Huscoke is also
responsible for supplying electricity and heating to certain regions of
Xiaoyi City, and the municipal government has not yet completed the
laying works of substitute natural gas pipeline, as such, GRG
Huscoke has not yet received any further notice and there is still one
furnace in operation with the shutdown schedule not yet finalized as
at the end of 2020.

Due to the Shutdown Measures of the government resulting in a
decrease in production capacity, the Group recorded a decrease in
operating profit for the year. Moreover, the Group had to carry out
financial treatment and had incurred asset impairment losses, which
then turned the Group to a loss for the whole year.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmEIN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Consolidated operating performance

Total revenue of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$1,176,982,000 (2019: HK$1,605,356,000). The gross profit for
this year amounted to HK$126,890,000 (2019: HK$175,857,000),
and the Group recorded a gross profit margin of approximately
10.78% for the year as compared to approximately 10.95% in 2019.
Loss after tax for the year was approximately HK$532,532,000
(2019 (restated): HK$6,576,000), and loss attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$484,675,000 (2019 (restated):
HK$9,391,000). Basic losses per share for the year was 168.8 Hong
Kong cents, as compared to the basic losses per (restated) share of
3.4 Hong Kong cents in 2019.

The Group is principally engaged in three business segments,
namely: (i) trading of coke (the “Coke Trading Segment”); (ii)
washing of raw coal into refined coal for sale and for further
processing and the sale of electricity and heat generated as by-
products produced during the washing of raw coal (the “Coal-related
Ancillary Segment”); and (iii) processing of refined coal into coke
for sale, and sale of coke by-products of coke production (the “Coke
Production Segment”).

Coke Trading Segment

The Group’s revenue from the Coke Trading Segment for the year
amounted to approximately HK$3,042,000 as compared to that
of approximately HK$2,540,000 in the corresponding period last
year. The Group’s results from the Coke Trading Segment for the
year amounted to HK$156,000 as compared to that of nil in the
corresponding period last year, mainly resulted from the smaller
spread between purchase and sale price of coke.

Coal-related Ancillary Segment

The Group’s external revenue from the Coal-related Ancillary
Segment for the year amounted to approximately HK$65,600,000
as compared to that of approximately HK$168,505,000 in the
corresponding period last year, the decrease in revenue was mainly
due to the temporary suspension of the coal washing business in
2020. The Group’s segment loss for the year was approximately
HK$72,754,000 (2019: segment profit of approximately HK$861,000)
was mainly due to the provision of impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$84,055,000 for the current year,
and no such provision for the last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

Coke Production Segment

The Group’s revenue from the coke production for the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,108,340,000 as compared to that
of approximately HK$1,434,311,000 in the corresponding period
last year, the decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in sales volume of coke due to the suspension of GRG Huscoke’s
coking furnace, resulting in a decrease in production capacity. The
Group’s segment loss for the year from the coke production was
approximately HK$210,899,000 as compared to that of segment
profit approximately HK$97,849,000 in the corresponding period
last year. The difference was due to the provision of impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment items of approximately
HK$351,548,000 for the current year, and no such provision for the
last year.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs amounted to
approximately HK$10,953,000 as compared to that of approximately
HK$123,024,000 in the corresponding period last year. The
decrease was mainly due to a change in the transportation mode of
coke, resulting in the transfer of transportation costs to customers,
which decreased from approximately HK$118,069,000 in 2019 to
approximately HK$8,109,000 in 2020.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year amounted to
approximately HK$93,595,000 as compared to that of corresponding
period last year of approximately HK$109,072,000 (restated). The
decrease was mainly due to the implementation of effective cost
control measures.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for the year amounted to approximately
HK$73,351,000 as compared to that of corresponding period last
year of approximately HK$60,004,000 (restated). The increase was
mainly due to the Group’s other borrowings added in the second
half of 2019 which incurred only half-year interest expense in 2019
compared to a full-year interest expense in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEJEL—J-HHE& *Fl'

(Loss)/Profit Before Tax

The Group’s loss before tax for the year amounted to approximately
HK$527,533,000, as compared to that profit before tax of
approximately HK$4,971,000 in the corresponding period last year
(restated). The difference was mainly due to impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$477,216,000
and provision of loss allowance of trade and other receivables of
approximately of HK$161,407,000 for the current year, while such
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and provision
of loss allowance of trade and other receivables last year were
approximately HK$Nil and HK$854,000, respectively.

CHARGES OVER ASSETS
The Group had neither pledged assets nor pledged deposit during
the year (including charges over deposits) (2019: Nil).

MATERIAL INVESTMENT, ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2020, save for disclosed below,
the Group did not have any significant acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures nor had any significant
investment with a value of 5% or more of the Company'’s total assets.

As disclosed by the Company in the announcements dated 12
September 2019 and 20 November 2019, the Bloom Wealth
Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(LT ERIRE S AR
/A 8] ) entered into a shareholder agreement for the establishment
of the Shanxi joint venture. Relevant matters were approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the SGM held on 11 February 2020.

and Shanxi Baimaoyuan Trading Co., Ltd.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or procedures for managing capital
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEJEL—J-HHE& *ﬁ’

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of bank and
other borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
prepayment, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholder, cash and bank balances, trade payables,
and other payables and accruals, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews
and agrees upon the various policies for managing these risks.

The Group regularly adopts gearing ratios as a tool of monitoring
capital structure. The gearing ratio as of 31 December 2020 was
106% (31 December 2019 (restated): 85%).

As of 31 December 2020, the deficit attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$111,409,000 (31 December 2019:
the equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$378,337,000).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net current liabilities and current ratio were approximately
HK$1,517,124,000 (31 December 2019 (restated): net current assets
of approximately HK$276,194,000) and 0.27 (31 December 2019
(restated): 1.15) respectively as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately HK$21,119,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$20,839,000), bank and other borrowings were approximately
HK$717,582,000 (31 December 2019 (restated): HK$689,023,000).

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no bills payable.

OPERATING LEASE AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, according to the disclosure
requirements under Hong Kong Accounting Standards, the Group
had no operating lease commitments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
kk}-ﬁjﬁh}nﬂﬂ& *Fl'

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure the Company
maintains a sound and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Group’s internal control system is designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal; relevant rules and regulations are adhered
to and complied with; reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements; and key risks that may impact
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
The review of the Group’s internal controls covers major financial,
operational and compliance controls, as well as risk management
functions. The internal control system can only provide reasonable,
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, as
they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure
in achieving business objectives.

The Group’s risk management framework includes risk identification,
risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring and reviewing of the
effectiveness of the measures. This risk management framework is
guided by a three-tier risk management approach. At the first line of
defense, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risks associated with all business or transactions.
Management, as the second line of defense, defines rule sets and
models, provides technical support, develops new systems and
oversees portfolio management. It ensures that risks are within the
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective. As
the final line of defense, the audit committee of the Company (the
“‘Audit Committee”), with the professional advice and opinions from
external professional consultants, who conduct annual audit work
for the Group, continually inspects and monitors the first and second
lines of defense to ensure that they are effective.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly comprises of fair value interest
risk and cash flow interest rate risk. 1) Fair value interest rate risk
is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to the changes in market interest rates. 2) Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of the changes in market interest rates. The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the impact of
interest rate changes on deposits. To minimize the fair value interest
rate risk, the Group keeps its borrowings with a fixed rate of interest.
Management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

AEEERAPEIZRS
EEgREIRRARFGAFEBREESN
[EL B B IR S N BB BR TR R AT o AN ERE N EPER
AOEEMREETSERKHAITEA
W E KT RETRERROER - RIE
HESAEREERERRAETRFAISEN
MR Estactk - UREEHER R EEA
REEREERENTERR - NEERNE
EENEZREIRNE SENGREE
MERERRRE ANEERGEELSE
IR E N RB A EAKRER KB
K HilZ 5 EEIR M IEHR R EBER
BRHER -

AEENEREEERBERRER
APl B B 3R R 2 A K A ET*ﬁFﬂEJ%ﬁmE’\J
BRI - BREEERDR=FARRERET

EERIER - ERE—ENR  EREME
Bl fHERERESERBEXRHEH

MER - ERE Bl BEEEREHRA
SREREL - RHRME - RBERES
Ao REBREESER WHEARBRER

BEXBEAMRE—EHRITZIAER  FR&
B—mhn ARREZZEE ((ERER
B ESEIEEXER (RFRASEE
TERIE NBEXEZRERRBBRHE
BEMEENERSE —ENMRRE_EH
BITZHBR

R = = b
AEBANXRERFERAABENXER K
ReREFERR 1) ARNEFXERA
TRIAZEERETISN XEFHELR
PFHBEZRR 2)BeRENXER AR
MITAZARREEREFAET SN EEZEF
?i?ﬁ@)nﬂﬁZﬂﬁA REBRGFRZ M=
TEMARRSRENERR A=
/JEUEEL\/LTEWJIJ—L B AEESHEESER
BEEME - EREERMNERARIENES
EREZREPE AN @R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £



10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEJEL—J-HHH& *ﬁ’

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), United States dollars
(“USD”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk arising from the monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in currencies other than functional currencies
of the respective group entities. The Group does not have any
hedging instruments outstanding. The Group will constantly review
the economic situation and its foreign currency risk profile and will
consider appropriate hedging measures in the future as may be
necessary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities that have not been provided for in the financial
statements (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 483
employees (31 December 2019: approximately 530 employees),
with less than 20 employees stationed in Hong Kong and the rest,
including senior management and workers, in Mainland China. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$64,152,000, as compared to approximately
HK$54,905,000 in the previous year.

Employees are remunerated according to the nature of the job
and market trends, performance evaluation mechanism, annual
increment and year-end performance bonus measures to reward and
motivate individual performance. As at the date of this annual report,
the Group has no share options outstanding under the share option
scheme.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

ENTERING INTO OF M&A FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT AND
TERMINATION OF A MAJOR TRANSACTION

On 31 December 2018, GRG Huscoke (Shanxi) Limited (an
indirectly 90%-owned subsidiary of the Company (“GRG Huscoke”)
entered into a debt transfer with a conversion right agreement with
Shanxi Jinyan Energy Technology Company Limited (“Energy
Technology’), Z& M & & E N &t T A R A & Xiaoyi Jinyan
Electricity Coke Chemical Company Limited*, Z % ™ & & B & X
SR R B 45 A BR A A Xiaoyi ILNG Natural Gas Production Company
Limited* and the controlling owner of the non-controlling shareholder.
This transaction constituted a major transaction under the Listing
Rules (the “Major Transaction”). In 2020, Due to Phase 1 Project
of Energy Technology has been put into production and Phase 2
Project has completed the infrastructure construction, its overall
operating capacity and asset value may have increased. It has
become necessary for the Company and Energy Technology to re-
evaluate Energy Technology and its current state of business and
asset value, which may also affect the consideration payable for
Energy Technology by the Group and how such consideration will be
satisfied.

After negotiation, on 16 September 2020, the parties have agreed
to terminate the Major Transaction and the Company entered into a
merger and acquisition framework agreement (the “M&A Framework
Agreement”’) with GRG Huscoke and Energy Technology. The
Company may, through a direct investment and/or establishment
of a merger and acquisition fund (the “M&A Fund”), acquire and
subscribe for more than 50% of the enlarged share capital of Energy
Technology. The possible transactions as contemplated under
the M&A Framework Agreement are subject to, among others, the
conditions precedent being fulfilled and formal agreement(s) being
entered into.

The Company will disclose the progress of the aforementioned
transactions in accordance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules when appropriate. For further details relating to the entering
into of M&A Framework Agreement and termination of a major
transaction, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
17 September 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEJEL—J-HHE& *ﬁ’

THE SHUT-DOWN OF GRG HUSCOKE’S 4.3-METER COKING
FURNACE

References were made to the Company’s announcements dated
16 November 2020, 9 December 2020 and 28 December 2020 in
relation to, among other matters, the shut-down of the 4.3-meter
coking furnace of GRG Huscoke.

On 13 November 2020, the Xiaoyi Municipal Government had
discussed in the 73rd council meeting to shut down all furnaces with
coking chambers that have heights of less than 4.3-meter in the city
before the end of 2020.

On 9 December 2020, GRG Huscoke received a formal notification
from the government authority of Xiaoyi City, that the 4.3-meter
coking furnace of GRG Huscoke would be shut down with effect from
28 December 2020.

On 28 December 2020, GRG Huscoke received a notification from
the government authority of Xiaoyi City that 50% of the production
capacity of the 4.3-meter coking furnace of GRG Huscoke can
continue to produce enough coking coal gas for generating
electricity and heat for the purpose of domestic consumption of
Xiaoyi City, until the completion of the laying and installation of the
gas pipe network in Xiaoyi City in early January 2021.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, as the PRC further implements the “new
infrastructure” policy in 2021, domestic industrial production will
continue to boom, which will help support coke demand. However,
with the proposed environmental policy targets of “Carbon Neutrality”
and “Carbon Peaking” of the PRC, the reduction of coke production
will remain an emphasis of national policies, it is expected that the
country will continue to implement the task of reducing backward
production capacity remained in each province. As it takes time
for new large-scale advance production capacity to be put into
operation in the provinces, it is expected that the supply and
demand gap cannot be filled in the short term, and the overall supply
of coke still cannot meet the demand. As a result, it is expected that
coke prices will remain high, and the increase in coke price will offset
the impact of production capacity reduction of GRG Huscoke in the
short term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmEIN

Facing the strict policy environment in the PRC, GRG Huscoke’s
4.3-meter Coking Furnace has been listed in the shutdown list of
the government authority, and the schedule of shutdown of the
remaining production capacity has not been confirmed. The Group
and GRG Huscoke have formulated development plans and various
control measures to reduce the impact of the Shutdown Measures
on the Group, including (I) plan to build an advanced and specified
coking furnace to restart its coke production business; (II) continue
to expedite the investment and merger and acquisition plan with
Shanxi Jinyan Energy Technology Company Limited* (1L 78 & &
BER L B R 2 7)) (“Energy Technology”); and (lll) to expedite
the construction of the project of utilization of coke oven gas (the
“Rich Hydrogen Project”). In particular, the construction plan of
coking furnace will be the focus of our development plan. The Group
expects that, during the period from the complete shutdown of the
furnaces of GRG Huscoke to the implementation of the development
projects (the “Transitional Period”), the Group’s coke production
business and coal-related ancillary business may be temporarily
halted, the specific impact on the Group will depend on the actual
implementation of the Shutdown Measures and the development
plans.

According to the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
of the PRC, the height of top-loading coking furnace must be more
than 6.0 metres. The Group plans to construct a new coking furnace,
which can meet the national industry standards and environmental
protection standards and has advanced technology. It is expected
that after the completion of the new coking furnace, the Group’s
coke production scale can be restored to continue the Group’s
coke production business. The Group will publish announcement
to disclose the above- mentioned project of new coking furnace in
timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to expedite its investment and
acquisition plan for the 5-million-ton coke production project with
Energy Technology. The Group is currently making preparatory work
for the merger and acquisition and upon completion, the Company
will negotiate with Energy Technology on the details of the merger
and acquisition proposal. The proposed investment may be carried
out through direct investment and/or the establishment of a merger
and acquisition funds, the progress of which will be disclosed by the
Group in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

In addition, the reform of the energy structure advocated by the
PRC in the 14th Five-Year Plan and the “coal-to-gas” policy since
2017 have led to a continuous increase in the basic demand for
natural gas in the PRC. The Group has established Shanxi Golden
Rock Rich Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd. (IUFE & &= TR B R
‘A A]) to undertake the Rich Hydrogen Project which is planned
to first commence production of liquefied natural gas production
equipment. After being put into production, it will become another
major source of income for the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREEECBERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHAO Xu Guang, aged 59, was appointed as an executive
Director, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 17 November 2016 and was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 2 May 2017. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as Authorized Representative on 15 January 2020 and
resigned as Authorized Representative on 1 March 2020. Mr. Zhao
has more than 20 years of experience in business executive and
management. Mr. Zhao worked for the Ministry of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation of the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Zhao
also acted as chairman, general manager and director of various
enterprises specializing in trading, investment, property and in the
energy field. Mr. Zhao served as chairman and executive director of
Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (“Titan Petrochemicals”), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1192) from July 2012 to September 2015. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Guangdong University of Foreign Studies with a
Bachelor of Economics degree.

Mr. WANG Yijun, aged 59, has been appointed as an executive
Director since 10 July 2019. Mr. Wang served as a director and
general manager of Shanxi Yiling Investment Inc.* from March 2010
to November 2018. Mr. Wang also served as chief executive director
of Shanxi Zhongrui Group* and general manager of Shanxi Zhongrui
Trading Company Limited* from August 1999 to March 2010. Mr.
Wang holds a professional qualification in industrial and civil
architecture at Taiyuan University.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Siu Hung, Patrick, aged 66, was appointed as an
executive Director and served as director of subsidiaries of the
Group with effect from 3 November 2016. Mr. Wong was appointed
as a Joint General Manager and Authorized Representative on 17
November 2016 and re-designated as General Manager on 25
November 2016 and subsequently re-designated as non-executive
Director and resigned as Authorized Representative on 9 April
2018. Mr. Wong was re-appointed as Authorized Representative
on 1 March 2020. Mr. Wong has more than 40 years of working
experience in banking, finance, commodity trading and project
development. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive director
of Daisho Microline Holdings Limited with effect from 3 September
2020, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 567). Mr. Wong was appointed as an
executive director of FDG Kinetic Limited with effect from 30 April
2021, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

* For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREEECBEFE

Exchange (Stock Code: 378) (In Liquidation), during his tenure of
office as an executive director of FDG Kinetic Limited, a winding up
order pursuant to the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) was
made by the High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
against FDG Kinetic Limited on 6 September 2021. Mr. Wong was an
independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration, quality and nomination committee
of Crown International Corporation Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
727) between 3 March 2021 and 31 March 2022. Mr. Wong was an
executive director of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8238) between 15 April 2019 and 6 November 2019. Mr. Wong
was an executive director of Titan Petrochemicals between 2008
and 2015. Mr. Wong was the senior vice president of Commodity
and Trade Finance at Societe Generale Singapore and the chief
executive officer in the China Division of Louis Dreyfus Group, a
global commodity trading firm. Mr. Wong is an associate member of
Chartered Institute of Bankers, United Kingdom (now renamed as
The London Institute of Banking & Finance), a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of The Institute of
Management Consultants Hong Kong and a Certified Management
Consultant. Mr. Wong holds a Master’s degree in Applied Finance
from Macquarie University, Australia and an Executive Diploma in
Management Consulting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. HUANG Man Yem, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive
Director with effect from 3 November 2016. Mr. Huang is a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Huang has more than 15 years of working experience in corporate
development and restructuring, corporate establishment and M&A
projects, and capital market transactions (i.e. equities and bonds/
debts) on the stock exchanges of Hong Kong and Singapore
respectively. Mr. Huang is currently the general manager of
the Shanghai branch office of Expert Systems IVR (Asia) Co.
Ltd., a Hong Kong based subsidiaries of Asia-Pacific Region
Unified Communications solution provider engaged in Unified
Communications solutions development and corporate establishment
consultant business. Mr. Huang was also a former member of the
senior management of Titan Petrochemicals from April 2002 to May
2014. Mr. Huang holds a Master’s degree of Corporate Finance from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Bachelor of Engineering
in Electronic Engineering from City University of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREEECBERE

Mr. JIANG Jiansheng, aged 60, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director since 15 January 2020. Mr. Jiang has served as
a senior consultant and general manager of Inner Mongolia Andeli
Chemical Co., Ltd.*
deputy general manager, chief engineer of the chemical sector,

since 2018. Mr. Jiang respectively served as

director of the coal-to-liquids project and senior consultant of Inner
Mongolia Yitai Coal Oil Production Plant*. Mr. Jiang also served
as chemical process design engineer and dean of the design and
research institute of Yanchang Petroleum Shaanxi Xingping Fertilizer
Plant* (now known as Yanchang Petroleum Shaanxi Xinghua
Group Company*) from 1984 to 2005. Mr. Jiang was the chairman
of the National Nitrogen Fertilizer Association, the chairman of
Technical Committee of the National Chemical Synthetic Ammonia
Design Technology Center Station, a member of a committee on
standardization of Coal Fuel of National Energy Administration, a
member of the professional committee on Coal Chemical Utilization
of The Chemical Industry and Engineering Society of China, a
member of Technical Committee of the National Gas Purification
Information Centre, an expert of the Coal Chemical Industry Expertise
Committee of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation
and evaluation expert of the China Development Bank, etc. Mr. Jiang
holds a professional qualification of inorganic chemical engineering
in chemical engineering and bachelor degree in engineering at Inner
Mongolia University of Technology. Mr. Jiang is a senior engineer in
professor-level and a registered chemist in chemical process design.

Mr. TANG Ching Fai, aged 58, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director since 6 April 2022. Mr. Tang is a management
economist holding a Doctor of Economics from Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. He has been engaging in
various industries with over 30 years of working experience in energy
investment and equity management. He acts as the general manager
of ChinaCoal Holch Capital Management Co., Ltd.* since 2018. Mr.
Tang was the head of the treasury department of China Rural Trust
Development Corporation* from 1990 to 1994, and served as the
vice president of Jinnuo Investment Co., Ltd.* from 2001 to 2005. He
was the strategic vice president of Alcatel China Co., Ltd.* from 2005
to 2007, and served as the chairman of Tianjin Wanjing Hongcheng
Real Estate Co., Ltd.* from 2007 to 2010. He was the chairman of
Beijing Bajianfang Consulting Company* from 2010 to 2015, and
served as the deputy secretary general of China Association of
Equity Investment Funds™ from 2015 to 2018.

* For identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TO Wing Tim, Paddy, aged 69, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since October 2009. Mr. To is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. To obtained his
Diploma in Accountancy from the University of Hong Kong in 1991
and has over 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
finance industry. Mr. To has been practicing as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong since 1980, and ceased his public
practice on 31 March 2020. Mr. To is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and an associate member of
the Association of Certified General Accountants in Canada.

Mr. LAM Hoy Lee, Laurie, aged 64, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since September 2008. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lam has 34
years of experience in legal field working as a solicitor in Hong Kong.
Mr. Lam is a practicing solicitor of Hong Kong and non-practicing
solicitor of Singapore and a non-practicing solicitor and non-
practicing counsel of Australia.

Dr. WANG Wei Hsin, aged 56, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 19 December 2018.
Dr. Wang is a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Dr. Wang has extensive
management experience in the financial services industry. Dr.
Wang served as the chief executive officer of South China Financial
Holdings Limited (“South China Financial”), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
619), and a director of certain subsidiaries of South China Financial
from May 2016 to October 2018, and served as executive director
of South China Financial from March 2017 to October 2018. Dr.
Wang served as the chairman and chief executive officer of SinoPac
Securities (Asia) Limited and was responsible for the business
development and operations in Asia from 2009 to 2016. Dr. Wang
also served as the chief investment officer of Japan CDW Group
and the chief financial officer of its Taiwan subsidiary, as well as
co-founder of Yes-Asia.com and played significant role in China
Development Industrial Bank. Dr. Wang holds a PhD in Management
Science (Financial Engineering) from Imperial College London and
researched artificial intelligence and financial big data. Dr. Wang
was the fellow of Royal Society of Statistics during 1999 to 2000.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Au Wing Sze, has been appointed as the Company Secretary
since 1 August 2020. Ms. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration and a Master Degree in Corporate Governance. She
has solid experience in company secretarial field gained from both

listed companies and professional firms in Hong Kong. Ms. Au is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report, the CG Report
and the ESG Report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in coke trading business, coal-related ancillary
business and coke production business. The activities of each of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 of the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Overview and Financial Performance

The review of the Group’s business and financial performance for
the year ended 31 December 2020 are provided in the section
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” in this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1.  Risk arising from fluctuating prices of coke and coal
A large portion of our revenue is derived from the sale of coke.
The coke is primarily priced based on prevailing market prices,
supply and demand of the coke and by reference to various
other factors that are applicable to individual customers.
Market prices for coke is mainly affected by the coke demand
of the domestic steel industry and the coke supply in the
market, and the imbalance between supply and demand in
the steel industry and the coke market with severe structural
contradiction has led to significant fluctuations in their market
prices in previous years. The average selling price of the
Group’s coke fluctuated which was in line with the trend of the
market price of coke. Therefore, the coke price of the Group
and the market price may not be stable.

The Group’s main production costs are the coking coal and the
manufacturing costs is relatively stable. The Group has closely
monitored the market price of coke and coking coal and
the changes in the spread of between these prices is highly
sensitive. Trends in the market price of the coking coal and the
coke may not correlate to one another. When the coke market
price has declined, the Group may not able to lower its cost
of production on the same pace as the rate of decline in coal
price. Vice versa, the increase in coal market price may not
have a corresponding increase in the coke price of the Group.
The underlying situation could adversely affect the Group’s
business, financial condition and operations.

In response to this risk factor, the management of the Group
will closely monitor the economic environment and adopt
corresponding measures such as adjustment of production
plans and enhancement of cost monitoring.
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Risks in association with changes in the Chinese
government policies and regulations

Coke production in China is subjected to extensive laws,
regulations and government policies. The obligations and
requirements associated with these laws, regulations,
responsibilities of government policies, relevant fees and
social responsibilities may have a major impact on the Group’s
operation. In particular, the Chinese government in recent
years has been strengthening its environmental control and
enforcement which include implementing a series of measures
to reduce production capacity, tightening environmental
standard and delay the time period for coking coal to curb
overcapacity which may adversely affect the production,
business, operation of the Group. Furthermore, the Group
will be responsible for the clean-up if the operation results in
contamination at the production facilities. Such clean-up may
impose substantial costs.

In response to this risk factor, the management regards
environmental protection and control as one of its principal
responsibilities and if necessary, the Group shall invest and
upgrade its existing equipment and facilities to achieve the
domestic environmental standards.

Risk arising from safety management

The Group's businesses are all of high hazardous nature and
of complex uncertainties which is potentially destructive and
explosive. The Group stores, handles and transports volatile,
flammable, hazardous liquid and gaseous chemical products,
such as benzene, tar, sulphuric acid and coal gas. Improper
handling of these materials and products can cause danger
such as fires, explosions which lead property loss, personal
injuries, death and possible legal liabilities.

In response to this risk factor, the management will adopt
stringent safety management policy and control system,
reinforcement of installing safety warnings, and reinforcement
safety education, promote safety skills training and improve
employees’ safety awareness.
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4. The risks of the novel coronavirus epidemic

(the “Epidemic”)

With the current spread of the novel coronavirus pneumonia
epidemic in the world, the situation in European and American
regions are still uncontrolled. Although the Chinese government
has stabilized the Epidemic, there may be another inbound
outbreak in China if the situation outside China is still beyond
satisfactory control. Currently, strict prevention and control
measures are still being implemented by the Chinese
government, which may affect the Group’s supply chain and
output as well as the employees’ mentality and mood.

In response to the above risks, the management will closely
monitor the latest situation of the Epidemic and local
government policies, adjust production, scheduling and
transportation plans in a timely manner to ensure the health of
employees, so as to minimize the impact of the Epidemic on
the Group.

Future Business Development

GRG Huscoke received a formal notice from the government
authority of Xiaoyi City on 9 December 2020, requesting its two
4.3-metre Coking Furnaces to be shut down. One of the furnaces,
accounting for half of the production capacity of GRG Huscoke, was
shut down on 28 December 2020. The 4.3 metres coking furnace
owned by GRG Huscoke cannot be revamped but the quota of
600,000 tons coke annual production capacity can be retained
through constructing an advanced coking furnace that complies with
the applicable requirement in the PRC.

On 26 March 2021, the Group entered into a cooperation agreement
with Energy Technology and Jinyan Electricity (“Cooperation
Agreement”) pursuant to which GRG Huscoke entrusts Energy
Technology for the construction of a new coking furnace which has
a height of 7.1 meters with annual production capacity of at least
600,000 tons of coke. The new coking furnace can meet the national
industry standards and environmental protection standards and
has advanced construction technology. It is expected that after the
completion of the new coking furnace, the Group’s coke production
scale can be restored to continue the Group’s coke production
business.
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The Group is committed to assuming social responsibilities and
emphasizes environmental protection and production safety. In
order to achieve the goal with cleaner energy emissions, the Group
continues to fulfill its responsibility for environmentally friendly
operation and upgrades production equipment and facilities with
self-raising environmental standards.

The Group is confident that the LNG business so developed
will bring better and stable returns to the Shareholders while the
profitability of the coking business has been strengthened.

Key Relationships with our Stakeholders

The Group strives to maintain harmonious relationship with its
stakeholders, including but not limited to, its customers, suppliers
and employees.

1.  Customers
The Group continuously pays attention to strengthen and
sustain the relationship with its major customers and ensure
customer satisfaction by providing quality products and
services to customers.

2.  Suppliers
The Group has established long-term, effective and mutual
beneficial working relationships with the major suppliers to
ensure stable and sustainable supplies for the businesses of
the Group.

3. Employees

Employees are regarded as one of the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s
human resource management is to reward and recognize
performing staff by providing a competitive remuneration
package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training
and providing opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s
employees are periodically reviewed by the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The principle of the Group’s remuneration
policy is fairness, motivating, performance-oriented and
market-competitive. Apart from salaries, medical insurance,
discretionary bonuses and retirement benefit scheme,
the Group has also adopted share option schemes for its
employees, providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants with reference to their contributions.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s key business
operation in Shanxi Province strictly complied with applicable
regulations, laws, and standards related to environmental and social
aspects. The Group continues to invest in state-of-the- art facilities
and implement emission control schemes to further reduce on-site
emissions. At a broader societal scale, the Group has been providing
30% of heating demand for the local residents and indirectly
reduced the air emissions from burning crude coal as a heating
source by local farmers. Engagement with stakeholders has resulted
in raised concerns on key material issues, including, air emissions,
wastewater, energy and water consumption, occupational health
and safety, employment, training and development. The Group will
continue to identify areas of improvement for the concerned aspects
and keep close communication with its stakeholders for advancing
environment, social and governance management.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiary in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Therefore, the Group’s establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report, the Board considers the Group has
complied with all the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 187.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

KRR Z DIk E
RZZB_ZTF+_A=+—8  KRARA#
DIKTRRZ FEEAT

2020
—E-FF
HK$’ 000
TAT

BAR S
RETER

Contributed surplus
Accumulated losses

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (a) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.
As at 31 December 2020, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to Shareholders (2019: Nil).

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company is committed to providing stable and sustainable
returns to Shareholders and endeavours to maintain stable
dividend policy whilst maintaining an equitable balance between
returns to Shareholders and investment for sustaining growth. In
recommending a dividend, the Company shall take into account the
expected future capital requirements, growth opportunities available
to the Group, net earnings of the Group, and in compliance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

1,731,681

(2,352,933)

(621,252)
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Yijun

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick
Mr. Huang Man Yem

Mr. Jiang Jiansheng

Mr. Tang Ching Fai’

Mr. Li Qinghua?

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie

Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy

Dr. Wang Wei Hsin

! appointed on 6 April 2022
2 retired on 5 June 2020

In accordance with the bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company,
Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick, Mr. Huang Man Yem, Mr. To Wing
Tim, Paddy and Dr. Wang Wei Hsin shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-Laws of the Company, Mr.
Tang Ching Fai (non-executive Director), appointed on 6 April 2022,
shall hold office until the following AGM and being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under section

heading “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” on pages 15 to 19 of this annual report.
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UPDATES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION RNESESR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the updates of R #E F TR AIE1351B(1) I REZ2-Z
information of the Directors during the year ended 31 December —ZTF+_-A=+—HIFEKLEZE AR
2020 and up to the date of this report are set out below: SRMCEFESAMFHINNT :

Name of Director

Details of Updates

EEpE EHFEE
Mr. Li Qinghua o Retired as non-executive Director on 5 June 2020
FIFELLE e RIZEZEXARBREFNTES

Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy
MR E

Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick
"ML

Mr. Tang Ching Fai
BRAE#E ST A&

° Has been practicing as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong since 1980,
and he ceased his public practice on 31 March 2020

J BE-—NMN\ZEFERBEBEIHEGHM  TR-_ZE-_TF=A=+—BKILH
E

o Appointed as an executive director of Daisho Microline Holdings Limited on 3
September 2020, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 567)

e RIZE_ZFNA=-HABZERREMESEEFTRA A (HRHOREBEZFTER
Em(RMDAER : 567)) 2HITES

° Appointed as an executive director of FDG Kinetic Limited on 30 April 2021,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 378) (In Liquidation), during his tenure of office as an executive director
of FDG Kinetic Limited, a winding up order pursuant to the Companies (Winding
Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) was made by the High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region against FDG Kinetic Limited on 6 September 2021

e RIZF_—FHA=ZTHEZEALEINERAA (EAROMRBEZAER L
M (RHOARSE :378)) CBRF) ZHITES - KR AEEBD N BRRAABMERTT
EXHRE BERNTERREERER _ZE-_—FAARNBREBEZTEENE
BN (BB RMEBKR) EODRIEDNERAB TEELRS

° Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration, quality and nomination committee of Crown
International Corporation Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 727) between 3 March 2021 and 31
March 2022

o RZE - F=-A=-HAZE_ZFT-__F=-A=1+—HHHEZEREETRKE
EARAF (AEROREERTER BT (ROASE - 727)) 2 BILIFRITES -
ERZESRFH RELREEZEEGRBZIKE

° Appointed as non-executive Director on 6 April 2022 and entitled to receive a
monthly director fee of HK$23,000

s RIF-__FMNARNAEZECAFRUTEFTUAREMEFT®ESE A 23,000 4/

BT
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election at the
2022 AGM do not have an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation. All other Directors are not appointed
for specific terms and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
in force the permitted indemnity provisions in the Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance maintained for the Group to indemnify the
Directors against all losses and liabilities which may sustain or incur
while acting in his capacity as Director in accordance with the Bye-
Laws of the Company and the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities on the Stock Exchange, any other stock
exchange, by private arrangement or by general offer.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”)
which became effective on 31 May 2002 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and was
already expired on 30 May 2012. On 28 March 2013, a new share
option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) was passed by way of an
ordinary resolution in a special general meeting. The 2013 Scheme
lasts for a period of ten years and will expire on 27 March 2023.
Under the 2002 Scheme and the 2013 Scheme, the Board may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Group, to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

Particulars and details of the movement of the share option schemes
of the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no share
options outstanding under the 2013 Scheme held by the Directors or
any eligible participant.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” as disclosed above and
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
nor require the Company to enter into an agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares was entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted as at 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
Laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group and Directors
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out
in section heading “SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES” in this report and
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees employed in Hong Kong.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or the substantial Shareholder of
the Company nor their respective connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest in any
competing business with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections heading “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS” and “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” in
this report, at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors of the Company or their spouse
or minor children had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company RAQBRGBZEFR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held share capital
HEBTRAE
EEpE EEME RO # A BHAB DL
Zhao Xu Guang Interest of a controlled corporation (Note a) 146,841,904 51.15%

i) 2 THEE 2w (Mfita)

To Wing Tim, Paddy Beneficial owner and Interest of spouse (Note b) 24,333 0.00%

T IAOR EnEA AR BES (Hitb)
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2020, Shun Wang Investments Limited is owned as
to 100% by Whole Advance Limited, which voting ordinary shares are
owned as to 100% by Liberal Expansion Limited, which in turn is owned
as to 100% by Mr. Zhao Xu Guang, an executive Director and chairman
of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhao is deemed to be interested in
146,841,904 shares of the Company under the Part XV of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2020, Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy, an independent
non-executive Director, together with his spouse, respective holding
of 6,293 Shares and 18,040 Shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr.
To Wing Tim, Paddy is deemed to have interest in 24,333 Shares of the
Company under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had registered

an interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS
As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each

FTERRRHEMA LT 2R
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REizER R AR (BERSREZS LB
EIROIZ S B ESRIERE 2%
RAB) KR ARQRRBEFSRBAEK
B 336 IETFEZE LM ERE AR IT

person, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company,
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company: RAQRBRBZEFR :
Approximate
Percentage of
Number of  issued share
Substantial Shareholders Nature of interest shares held capital
HEBITRAE
FERRK EEME iR A BRBEDL
Shun Wang Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note a) 146,841,904 51.15%
IR 2 & A R A Al BEmEA A (Hfita)
Whole Advance Limited Interest of a controlled corporation (Note a) 146,841,904 51.15%
SEARAA EHEE 2w (Mita)
Liberal Expansion Limited Interest of a controlled corporation (Note a) 146,841,904 51.15%
3L B R A A ZHEE 2w (fita)
Zhao Xu Guang Interest of a controlled corporation (Note a) 146,841,904 51.15%
B ZHEE 2w (fita)
Rontac Resources Company Beneficial owner (Note b) 14,718,922 5.13%
Limited
BMEBRGRAA EnB A (Hitb)
Rontac Investment Company Interest of a controlled corporation (Note b) 14,718,922 5.13%
Limited
BFEIREFRAA THEE 2w (F7Eb)
Li Hongwei Interest of a controlled corporation (Note b) 14,718,922 5.13%
2RIF RHEE 2 s (A7Eb)
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Notes:

(a) Asat 31 December 2020, Shun Wang Investments Limited is owned as
to 100% by Whole Advance Limited, which voting ordinary shares are
owned as to 100% by Liberal Expansion Limited, which in turn is owned
as to 100% by Mr. Zhao Xu Guang, an executive Director and chairman
of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhao is deemed to be interested in
146,841,904 shares of the Company under the Part XV of the SFO.

(b) At as 31 December 2020, Rontac Resources Company Limited is
wholly owned by Rontac Investment Company Limited, which in turn
is owned as to 71% by Mr. Li Hongwei. Accordingly, Mr. Li Hongwei is
deemed to be interested in 14,718 922 shares of the Company under
the Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as is
known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, no person
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year 2020, there were no connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions which were required to be
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

None of the related party transactions as set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BANKS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$717,582,000 (2019: HK$689,023,000).
Particulars of loans and other borrowings are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The property, plant and equipment of the Group as at 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$103,860,000
(2019: HK$576,422,000). Details of movements of property, plant
and equipment are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
88% of the Group’s total turnover and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 57% of the Group’s total turnover.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
87% of the Group’s total purchases for the year and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 52% of the Group’s total
purchases.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director
or a Shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring
relationship with our employees, providing quality services to its
customers and enhancing cooperation with its business partners.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has complied with the sufficiency of public
float requirement under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2020.

SHARE CONSOLIDATION AND CHANGE IN BOARD LOT SIZE
On 8 October 2020, the Company announced its proposal to (i)
implement the share consolidation on the basis that every ten (10)
issued and unissued ordinary shares (the “Existing Shares”) of
par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company be
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share (the “Consolidated
Shares”) of par value of HK$0.10 each (the “Share Consolidation”)
conditional upon, among other things, the approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the SGM of the Company and (ii)
change the board lot size for trading on the Stock Exchange from
10,000 Existing Shares to 5,000 Consolidated Shares conditional
upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective.
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With the approval by the Shareholders at the SGM of the Company
held on 19 November 2020, the Share Consolidation became
effective on 23 November 2020.

For further details relating to the Share Consolidation and change
in board lot size, please refer to the circular of the Company dated
30 October 2020 and the announcements of the Company dated 8
October 2020, 30 October 2020 and 19 November 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of shares of the Company
in issue was 287,071,349.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has
been suspended since 29 March 2021, and will remain suspended
until further notice.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to supporting sustainability of the
environment and endeavours to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and to adopt measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. The details of environmental, social and governance
information of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the ESG Report on pages 56 to 81 to this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Group has complied with the relevant
laws and regulations that have significant impact on the operations of
the Group. The Company is subject to the Listing Rules, the Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy- backs, the Bermuda
Companies Law, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and/or the rules and regulations of
the jurisdictions where the shares of the Company are listed and
traded. Details of the corporate governance practices of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the CG Report
on pages 38 to 55 to this annual report.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 1
September 2022 (Thursday) to 6 September 2022 (Tuesday),
both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the attendance of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
6 September 2022 (Tuesday), share transfer forms accompanied
by relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong (on or after 15 August 2022: 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong), not later than
4:30 p.m. on 31 August 2022 (Wednesday).

AUDITOR
BDO Limited was appointed as the external auditor of the Group for
the period from 10 July 2019 to 25 January 2021.

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited has been appointed as the external the
auditor of the Company with effect from 25 January 2021 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of BDO Limited as external
auditor of the Company, and to hold office until the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA
Limited, which will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Zhao Xu Guang
Chairman
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The Board is committed to upholding high standard of corporate
governance. The Directors believe that effective corporate
governance practices emphasised on accountability and
transparency are the keys to protect the interest of our Shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders, enhance the confidence in the
Group business and fulfil its social responsibility.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the corporate governance practices
which have applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14, under the
Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange together with all other
applicable rules under Listing Rules, the SFO, the Companies
Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and guidelines.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, except for the code provisions A.2.1 and D.1.4 with reasons
for each deviation explained hereunder, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

Compliance with the Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the codes of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. All Directors have confirmed in writing,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company has designed an appropriate corporate governance
structure for the Group which is headed by an effective board
of directors. To assist the Board in discharging its duties and
facilitate effective management, the Board has established three
Board committees (each, a “Board Committee”), including Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
The Board undertakes the corporate governance function and is
lead by the Chairman. The majority of the members of each Board
Committee are independent non-executive Directors, and each
Board Committee has its own defined and written terms of reference
approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and functions.
Their terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine Directors,
including two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhao Xu Guang
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Wang Yijun, four
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick, Mr.
Huang Man Yem, Mr. Jiang Jiansheng and Mr. Tang Ching Fai, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hoy
Lee, Laurie, Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy and Dr. Wang Wei Hsin.

Directors’ Retirement at 2022 AGM

In accordance with the bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company,
Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick, Mr. Huang Man Yem, Mr. To Wing
Tim, Paddy and Dr. Wang Wei Hsin shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-Laws of the Company,
Mr. Tang Ching Fai (non-executive Director), appointed on 6 April
2022, shall hold office until the following AGM, and being eligible,
offer himself for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under section
heading “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” on pages 15 to 19 of this annual report.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership. The Board is ultimately accountable for the Group’s
operations, strategies, financial performance and compliance. The
following outlined the key matters that are reserved to the Board for
approval:

set Group’s overall objectives and business strategies;

° establish Board Committees, define the role and duties of each
Board Committee;

o authorise delegation of power to the management for
implementation of its decisions;

o direct and supervise management performance;

o oversee the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
obligations;

° review financial statements, announcements and reports; and

° recommend on of dividends and its distribution.
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Delegation to the Management

The Board has delegated its power to the executive Directors to act
on its behalf. The executive Directors are responsible for day-to-day
management of operations, implement the decisions approved by
the Board, conduct regular meetings with the senior management
of the Company and its subsidiaries and associated companies, at
which operational issues and financial performance are evaluated.
The executive Directors are required to report and provide an
updated information to the Board on a regular basis on business
development, financial positions, market updates, risk management,
compliance and corporate governance issues.

Code Provision D.1.4

Pursuant to code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company
should have formal letters of appointment for Directors setting out the
key terms and conditions of their appointment.

Reason for Deviation

As disclosed in the Report of the Directors and explained in
respective published announcements of the Company regarding
the Directors’ appointment, the Company did not have formal letters
of appointment for some of the Directors. However, the Directors
shall be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Bye-Laws. Besides, the Directors are required to comply with the
requirements under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang, being the Chairman of the Board, also acts as
Chief Executive Officer since 2 May 2017.

Code Provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Reason for Deviation

Mr. Zhao Xu Guang is the Chairman of the Board and also serves
as Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes that, despite the
deviation of the CG Code, vesting the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in Mr. Zhao has the benefit of ensuring the
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective
and efficient overall strategic planning of the Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will enable the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly and effectively.
The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account
the circumstances of the Group as a whole.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven non-
executive Directors including independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick, Mr. Huang Man Yem, Mr. Jiang
Jiansheng, Mr. Tang Ching Fai, Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie, Mr. To
Wing Tim, Paddy and Dr. Wang Wei Hsin. According to the bye-law
99 of the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors at the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All non-executive Directors also subject to
retirement by rotation requirement under the Bye-Laws and shall
retire from office at least once every three years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board comprises of three members out of nine members in
total, representing one-third of Board, independent non-executive
Directors. The Board is satisfied that current composition of
independent non-executive Directors is in compliance with the
requirement of independent non-executive Directors under Rules
3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rule.

Most of the independent non-executive Directors are professionals
with recognised qualifications, either being certified public
accountant or lawyer, who possess extensive experience in their own
professions. The biography details of the independent non-executive
Directors are set out on page 18 of this annual report. During the year
2020, all independent non-executive Directors contributed impartial
view to the Board members and made independent judgements on
issues discussed at the Board meetings.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each independent non-executive Director for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 pursuant to the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considered each of the independent non-executive Directors fulfilled
the independence requirement throughout the year and up to the
date of this report. The independent non-executive Directors had
been identified in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN BOARD MEMBERS

Saved as disclosed under section heading “BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages
15 to 19 under this annual report, none of the members of the Board
has any relationship, neither financial, business, family nor other
material/relevant relations, among each other.

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the Directors and management of the Group.

INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company Secretary and management of the Group to fulfil their
duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s expense
upon their request.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Au Wing Sze acts as the Company Secretary of the Company
and is responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and the Board is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments and that it has regard to
them when making decisions.

Ms. Au undertakes to ensure a good information flow within the
Board and between the Board and senior management, provides
advice to the Board in relation to Directors’ obligations under the
Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations and assists the
Board in implementing the corporate governance practices. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Au finished no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training and in compliance with the
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS
Regular Board meetings were held nine (9) times during the financial
year ended 31 December 2020. The Directors have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary and company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The chairman of the meeting set the meeting agenda in consultation
with other Board members and with assistance of the company
secretarial team. Board meeting notice is sent to the Directors at
least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting and reasonable
notice is given for other Board meetings. Board papers and meeting
materials with sufficient information details are sent to Board and
Committee members at least 3 days before each meeting to enable
the Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
drafted by the Company Secretary of the meetings and recorded in
sufficient details of the matters discussed and decisions reached
and have been circulated to the Directors for comments and record
in a timing manner. Originals of all minutes of the Company are
kept by the company secretarial team and open for inspection by
Directors.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, that
Director will be abstained from voting on the relevant resolutions with
conflict of interest and that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum
present at such Board meeting.
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Attendance of Board Meeting and General Meeting during

FY2020

The attendance of Board meetings and general meeting during the

year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

R-B_EFURFEZEEETTERR

RAEHEAS
BHE_Z-_Z2F+_A=1+—

=

HIEFE &

EEREBRRAREZHEARIIIMT

Board Meetings Attendance at
Attended/Held and 2020 general
Capacity and Name of Director Eligible to Attend meetings
ExzgesdE —B-FF
REBIIRER BRXE
EERARES BREFERH™ HERER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang (Chairman and FETE YA (FERITEARE) 9/9 3/3
Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Yijun FRELSE 9/9 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick mAOMERE 9/9 3/3
Mr. Huang Man Yem BENELE 9/9 3/3
Mr. Jiang Jiansheng EREERAE 9/9 3/3
Mr. Li Qinghua' FEERE 3/3 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors B IEHTEE
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie MR 5 A 8/9 3/3
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy TSN ST A 9/9 2/3
Dr. Wang Wei Hsin FHEFE L 9/9 3/3

Z retired on 5 June 2020
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To encourage Directors in continuous professional development
(the “CPD”) to refresh their acknowledge and skills, the Company
have provided the Directors with updates on the development
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulations and laws in
connection to their duties and responsibilities of being a Director.
The Company also provided to the Directors the monthly business
performance and position updates of the Group to ensure the Board
discharges their duties under Rule 13.08 and code provision A.6.5 of
CG Code under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors had provided
to the Company a record of their CPD training by attending seminars

FEEXRE
REBMEEF2EFEEXER ((FRE
ERE|) AEMENERINEE - AABEE

HEZZBELBE MEFRHBENLED
RAREMBRROIIERZEHERE
Mo ARBMEREFRHAREZEAR
BREMEBRRES  UBREFGER
BEEMHRANE 1308 KN EMRAMEEER
STRIZ ST RIS AL6.5 R T TR -

BE_T-_ZTF+_A=t—HLFE =
BEFHERARAREAKRSLEFES

and conferences, taking courses and reading materials. A summary ¥ EFEII 28 IR EHER TS
of training topics covered is as follow: g BERERMEEEIME - FIR
EzwReyaT
Topics of Training
EIIRE
Legal/ Group
Accounting/ Corporate Business/
Name of Director Financial Governance Directors Duties
39 EEEK
EEHA a5t M TtEER ESRE
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang B A& v v
Mr. Wang Yijun FERELE v v
Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick mAOMERE v v v
Mr. Huang Man Yem EXHBEE v v
Mr. Jiang Jiansheng ZRERE 4 v
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie MRFR A 5 A v v v
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy AR A& v v v
Dr. Wang Wei Hsin F e+ 4 v
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy who also acts as
Chairman of the committee, Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie and Dr. Wang
Wei Hsin, and one non-executive Director, Mr. Huang Man Yem.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviews and supervises the
Group’s accounting policies and financial reporting, risk management
and internal control practices, maintains an appropriate relationship
with the external auditors and ensures the regulatory compliance of
the Group.

During the review of financial statements, management reported
liquidity position of the Group and measures taken/to be taken to
enable the Group to sustain as a going concern. The audit committee
was aware of the matter as one of key audit matters and to be
included in the section under material uncertainty related to going
concern in the Independent Auditor's Report for 2020 consolidated
financial statements. The audit committee did not express any
disagreement with management’s assessment concerning of the
going concern assumptions in the preparation of 2020 consolidated
financial statements.
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The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended
31 December 2020 is set out below:

TE+ A=t HLFE =&
L HEABEIT

Audit Committee Meetings

Attended/Held and
Capacity and Name of Director Eligible to Attend
ERZESEBHERE
EERARESR BITRBREREERE
Chairman of Audit Committee EREEEXRE
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy AR A& 2/2
Members RE
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie MREA A5 A 2/2
Mr. Huang Man Yem BENELE 2/2
Dr. Wang Wei Hsin TFHEFIELT 2/2

A summary of work performed during the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out as follows:

o reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and
reports and recommended to the Board for adopt and
approval;

o reviewed the performance and independence of the external
auditor and recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the AGM:;

o reviewed and approved the annual audit plan for the financial
year;

o reviewed the independence of external auditors and its
engagement letter and approved the engagement;

o reviewed and approved engagements of respective
independent external professionals to assess the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control system and
compliance of environmental and social regulations of the
Group; and

o reviewed the respective compliance and risk and internal
control assessment reports, and the corporate governance
review report of the Group.

The Audit Committee had recommended to the Board on
consideration of the re-appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie who also acts
as Chairman of the committee, Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy, Dr. Wang
Wei Hsin and one non-executive Director, Mr. Huang Man Yem.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviews and
recommends to the Board on the overall remuneration structure and
policy for all Directors and senior management, reviews specific
remuneration packages, ensures a formal and transparent process
in place to develop remuneration policy and no Director takes part in
decisions of his own remuneration.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

Capacity and Name of Director

FHEES

FNEZEEm R BIIFNTEEL—F
FRTESMAK > DB BBUIFAITEFM
RAEE (EEZEEEXRE)  HARELE
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PNz E e RERTYNEFSEEAH
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RIBSR - ad &R H B8 - BARFIE
MR < BRRASIERMEBAE - A LR
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MWEEeeH 2 HFEABEIIOT

Remuneration Committee
Meetings Attended/Held
and Eligible to Attend
FHEEEERLERE
BOREREEHERE

EERARESR

Chairman of Remuneration Committee FMEESEEXE
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie RERFI 5 A&
Members RE

Mr. Huang Man Yem EmXEBEE

Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy MR A

Dr. Wang Wei Hsin FHEFE LT

A summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out as follows:

o reviewed the Directors’ fee for the year and recommended to
the Board for approval;

o reviewed and assessed the remuneration policy and structure
of the Group; and

o reviewed the appointment of Chief Executive Officer and
recommended to the Board the adjustment of monthly
salary considered his dual capacity as Chairman and the
responsibilities undertaking.
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Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the financial
year are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:

Remuneration Band

BEENMBFEZHFMFITENGEARM
BHREAME1 - BE_FT_ZFF+_A
ST -BHLEFERFMAENE D 2 S RE
BABFMESIMT :

Number of Persons as
Senior Management

7B 48 B EREBABAR
Nil to HK$2,000,000 £ % 2,000,000 % 7T 9
HK$2,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 2,000,001 % 7T & 5,000,000 7 7T 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, Mr.
Zhao Xu Guang who also acts as Chairman of the committee and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. To Wing
Tim, Paddy, Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie and Dr. Wang Wei Hsin.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for review of the
composition of the Board in terms of board structure, size and
diversity, reviews the board diversity policy, determines the policy
for the nomination of Directors and identification of potential
candidates for directorship, recommends to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment, re-election or re-designation of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, assesses the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and reviews
the time commitment of each Director. The selection criteria and
procedures for the selection and nomination of Directors are set out
in the Nomination Policy, which is also published on the Company’s
website.
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The attendance of Nomination Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

Capacity and Name of Director

Bz—-%
E2EEEE:

“EEF_A=+T-BHULFE &
@& EABEINT

Nomination Committee
Meetings Attended/ Held
and Eligible to Attend

REZESSRHEARE
EERARESR BORERBEEHERY
Chairman of Nomination Committee REZESXR
Mr. Zhao Xu Guang B e A A 1/1
Members 4=
Mr. Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie RER A S A 1/1
Mr. To Wing Tim, Paddy MRS A 1/1
Dr. Wang Wei Hsin FHEE L 1/1
A summary of work performed by the Nomination Committee during REZEEREHE-_ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—

the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out as follows:

° reviewed the composition of the Board in terms of board e
structure, size and diversity policy;

o reviewed the independence of independent non-executive e

Directors;

° reviewed the time commitment of each Director to discharge e

their responsibilities as Director;

o reviewed the retirement by rotation requirement and nominated e

the Directors for re-election; and

o reviewed the Group’s business plan and recommended to the e
Board to appoint the Chairman of the Board to act as Chief
Executive Officer to ensure the business plan can be effectively

implemented.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board undertakes the corporate governance function for the
Group with assistance of Audit Committee, which (1) develops and
reviews the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group, (2) reviews and monitors legal and regulatory compliance of
the Group and (3) reviews the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, (4) reviews and
monitors the code of conduct applicable to employees and directors
and (5) reviews the issuer's compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing the
effectiveness. The internal controls of the Group are designed to
provide reasonable assurance rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. It is designed for assurance of the Group’s assets and that
Shareholders’ investments are safeguarded against unauthorised
use or disposition, transactions are executed in accordance with
the management’s authorisation, internal audit, proper accounting
records are maintained, and the relevant legislation and regulations
are being complied with.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The risk management and internal control framework of the
Group are developed and reviewed annually based on Integrated
Framework released by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (collectively the “COSO Framework”)
which includes the following procedures:

° identify risks of the Group’s and evaluate the level of the risks
and impacts on regular basis;

° report the high risks to the management to discuss the
approach and measures to manage those risks;

° implement the measures to manage the risks as management
advised;
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° review regularly whether the measures have been implemented
and appropriate at current situation;

° review annually the whole risk management and internal control
practices;

o report the effectiveness of the measures and the risk
management and internal control systems;

o adjust the risks approach and measures if consider
appropriate; and

° monitor the risks on regular basis.

Independent Assessment

To ensure the independent review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, the Group engaged
independent external professionals to perform annual review and
assessment of the risk management and internal control system of
the Group covering the financial year ended 31 December 2020 to
ensure the compliance of relevant regulations and rules. The review
report was submitted to the Audit Committee.

Review of the Effectiveness

The Audit Committee reviewed the relevant report and considered
the Group’s risk management and internal control system based on
COSO Framework is adequate and the practice is effective that the
Group had complied with the provisions on risk management and
internal controls as set out in the CG Code.

AUDITOR’ S INDEPENDENCY AND REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements. The
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor,
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited is independent.
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During the year, Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited had rendered audit
services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the
Group is set out as follows:

Service Rendered

FR-FEESHMEFMERRACH
AEBRAEZRY  AKEEN BN
HEE#5ImT

Fees Paid/Payable

P2 BR 7% e EAEH
HK$
BT
Audit Services BB 2,050,000
Non-Audit Services IEE X RS Nil %

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and applicable regulatory and
law requirement. The Board, having made appropriate enquiries,
considers that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future and that for this
reason, it is appropriate to adopt the “going concern” basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The statements
of the auditor on its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 82 to 85 in this Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no change in the Bye-Laws of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Shareholders are entitled to exercise certain rights pursuant to the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, Bye-Laws of the Company and the
CG Code under Listing Rules.
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Convene Special General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of the
Company, on requisition of Shareholders holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition (the “Request Submission Date”) not less
than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the Request
Submission Date carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, Directors shall proceed duly to convene a special general
meeting of the Company (a “SGM”).

The requisition, may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more Shareholders, must (1) state the purposes of
the SGM, (2) be signed by the Shareholders and (3) deposited at the
registered office of the Company for attention of Company Secretary.
Such requisitions will be subject to verification by the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, and upon its confirmation
that the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary shall inform
the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders under the Bye-Laws. If requisition be verified as not in
order, Shareholder(s) will be notified of such results and accordingly,
a SGM will not be convened as requested.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the Request Submission
Date proceed duly to convene a meeting, the Shareholders or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the Request Submission Date. A SGM convened on requisition of
Shareholders shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by Directors.

Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company, or not less than 100 Shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and
(b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.
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The requisition signed by all the requisitionists, or two or more copies
which between them contain the signatures of all the requisitionists,
must be deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong with deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the company’s expenses in giving effect
thereto (i) in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than 6 weeks before the meeting or (ii) in the case of any other
requisition, not less than one week before the meeting. Provided that
if after a copy of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution has
been deposited at the principal office of the Company, an AGM is
called for a date within 6 weeks or less after the requisition has been
deposited, such requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Shareholders Enquires and Investor Relations
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

For enquiries about your shareholdings on the Company, registered
Shareholders may at any time direct contact the Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar of the Company:

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(on or after 15 August 2022:

17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong)
Telephone: 2980 1333

E-mail: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

For any other enquiries, Shareholders may at any time send enquiries
to the Company:

Investor Relations

Huscoke Holdings Limited

Room 2301, 23rd Floor

Tower One, Lippo Centre

89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2861 0704

E-mail: ir@huscoke.com
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the fifth ESG report by Huscoke Holdings Limited (the
“Group”), highlighting its Environmental, Social, and Governance
(the “ESG”) performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG
Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules
and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the business
operations in Mainland China. The exact coverage is the 666,670 m?
of plant area, which include the coal washing plant, the coking plant,
the power plant, the heating plant, the material plants, and others, in
Xiaoyi, Shanxi Province from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020,
unless otherwise stated. The Group no longer washes its own raw
coal, and has switched to purchasing all clean coal from external
parties, indicating that the coal washing plant is no longer in use.

THE GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION

The overall sustainability commitment of the Group reinforces the
concept of creating an “ecological Shanxi” promoted by the central,
regional, and local government. Huscoke’'s business value and
management approaches focus on serving people, homeland and
society. Huscoke aims to become fully vertical integrated along the
coal industry supply chain, from downstream trading to midstream
processing and upstream ancillary businesses.

During the Reporting Period, key challenges identified by the Group
included meeting more stringent environmental standards set by the
local government. Correspondingly, the Group continues to invest
in upgrading environmental protection facilities. The Group also
continues to focus on reducing emissions and resource consumption
through the adoption of cleaner production facilities, recycling all
wastewater, recycling and reusing by-products either on-site or to
downstream processors to the maximum extent.

The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for advancing economic benefits while improving ESG performance
and managing ESG-related risks, and to be prepared for future
business development and challenges.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

The Group values feedback and opinions of its stakeholders as they
are all indispensable to the business. Thus, key internal and external
stakeholders such as board members, managers, supervisors,
frontline workers, business partners, and regulators have been
engaged such that their needs and concerns can be better
understood. Such engagement had been conducted via various
channels, one of which was distributing a survey.

By carrying out the stakeholder engagement survey, the most
concerned ESG aspects among the stakeholders were identified.
Results show that the most material issues were on environmental
aspects. Social aspects, on the other hand, were considered less
material for the Group. This finding closely aligns with the business
nature of the Group. The following matrix shows the materiality
assessment of the stakeholder engagement.
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Materiality of Diff erent Topics from Stakeholder Engagement
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According to the matrix, the most material topics to the Group’s
stakeholders and its operations are,

Labour Standards

° Waste and Effluent

° Occupational Health and Safety

o Air Emissions

o Water

The Group strictly complies with the statutory requirements in respect
of the identified material aspects. Corresponding management
practices and policies are being formulated and/or implemented
following the identification of these issues. The Group will continue
to improve its ESG management and performance by actively
communicating with its stakeholders and constantly improving its
internal policies.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG approach
and performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at ir@huscoke.com.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
The Group stringently complies with national and local laws
and regulations concerning environmental protection and
pollution control, including but not limited to the followings,

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution

° Cleaner Production Promotion Law

o Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
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° Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste

° Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC

Top-down, policy-driven, and performance-based
environmental protection activities have been reinforced during
this Reporting Period. This is because the local government has
issued several new policies to further improve environmental
performance in the city with a special focus on improving
performance from coal industry. Some of the policies include,

o Document No. 39 [2019]: Notice on Shanxi's Blue-Sky
Protection 2019 Action Plan

° Regulation of Shanxi on Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution

° Permit on Effluent Management Policy (Trial), etc.

Notwithstanding the tightening requirements, the Group
considers 2019 as an outstanding year for keeping up with
high emission standards and maintaining excellence in
implementing environmental protection projects.

There was no non-compliance with the above-mentioned laws
and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste during the Reporting Period.

A1. Emissions

1.1 Air Emissions
The Group’s operations in Xiaoyi, China accounts for
its major sources of emissions. During the Reporting
Period, the Group generated 86,170 kg of sulphur
oxides (SOx), 202,526 kg of nitrogen oxides (NOx), and
31,720kg of particulate matter (PM). Such emissions were
mainly contributed by the Group’s coal washing, coke
production, electricity and heat production processes, the
rest of which was produced by its own mobile vehicles,
which included passenger cars, heavy goods trucks, and
other mobile machinery'.

1 In the previous report, SOx, NOx and PM emission did not
include emission from the heat production process.
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During the Reporting Year, all emissions were below the
permissible level set by the applicable national standards,
including but not limited to:

° GB16171-2012 Emission Standard of Pollutants for
Coking Chemical Industry

° GB13271-2014 Emission Standard of Air Pollutants
for Boilers

° All standards listed on the Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants for Coal-fired Power Plants

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Scope 1 GHG emissions were generated directly from
the consumption of coal for stationary combustion and
fuel for mobile combustion. Scope 2 energy indirect GHG
emissions were not generated by the Group as self-
produced electricity and heat were used for the Group’s
own consumption. Other sources of indirect (scope
3) GHG emissions included business air travel, use of
municipal freshwater and sewage processing, and paper
waste disposed at landfills.

During the Reporting Period, 678,707 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) GHG (mainly carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide) were emitted from the
Group’s operation, with an overall intensity 1.15 tCO,e/
tonne of coke produced. 99.62% of the greenhouse
gas emission was contributed by the boilers for coking,
power generation, and heat generation. Compared to
the previous reporting period, the amount of greenhouse
gas emitted had decreased by 27%, the decrease of
which was most significant in the heat generation plant,
with a drop of 40%. This was mainly due to a drop in
overall production volume, which lowered the amount of
combustion demand, thus greenhouse gas emission.
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Table 1 Annual GHG emissions

X1 FREBEREHNNE

Total GHG
Scope of GHG emissions Emission sources GHG Emission Sub-total emission
BRERE
RERBHHEE EHRR BRERBHENE A\ mERE
(intCO,e) (intCOe) (in %)
(A Z&eik (A =S1bh
EE) EE5) (ABRDHE)
Scope 1 Direct emission Combustion of petrol’ 643 677,844 99.87
BE1EEHER FURIRE
Combustion of diesel’ 1,291
SR
Coking plant 104,828
24
Power generation plant 319,985
BB
Heat generation plant 251,289
AR
Assimilation of carbon dioxide —11
through tree planting?
AAES R = Ak
Scope 2 Energy indirect emission®  Not applicable
HE 2R TEA
Scope 3 Other indirect emission Electricity used for processing 857 863 0.13
&[5 3 B B HE IR fresh water and sewage'
REXKREKAE
Paper waste disposed at 6
landfills'
PEIRIS RIBRE A
Total 678,707 100
Bt
Note 1:  Emission factors were made reference to Appendix Hiat1: BREFAMBEI  HHEES
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred ZF IR TR £R27 K%
documentation as set out by Hong Kong Exchanges EHBEEXZREETA
and Clearing Limited, unless stated otherwise. R 2 m] B3l 9 2 E X o
Note 2: Removal factor of CO, per tree planted was 23, with Hietz . ERE ) =S ER R
reference made to Appendix 27 of the Main Board B Bo3 BREER LTH
Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set Al bt 2227 & &S 5 P K
out by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. BEBRRFIFEZZE X E -
Note 3:  The Group did not involve in scope 2 energy indirect Hit3: BARAEBRE S FEE

emission since it generated electricity and heat on-site
and did not purchase energy from external entities.
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Figure 1 CO, Emission Contributed by Each Plant by Year 1 HERET B = EE =
SIERBERY

CO.EMISSION FROM DIFFERENT PLANTS BY YEAR
BREBRTRNTRBEN S mIEBRY
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1.3 Measures to Mitigate Emissions

To minimise its impacts on the environment and human
health, the Group tries to figure out the value of these
substances from the beginning of the production process
to better control the treatment for them. For example,
the Group measures and records the amount of SOx of
clean coal before they start using them. In later stages,
these substances are also treated by respective facilities
before being emitted into the air. These procedures give
the Group a better grasp of its sources of emissions, the
contribution of emissions at different stages of production,
and how much emission each of those sources contribute
to. The Group continued to invest in new facilities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed its
rainwater collection pond installation. The pond collected
the first batch of rainwater that has hit the ground in order
to minimise the chance of industrial pollutants being
carried into the city’s pipes or surface water, thereby
minimising the burden and pollution brought to the
sewage system or river.

Aside from managing and controlling emissions of
unwanted substances, these substances are also
regularly sampled, closely monitored, and updated on-
site and online to ensure all emissions are following the
requirements. In-house training on the proper use and
maintenance of equipment has also been provided by
the environmental service provider (see Section B3). To
take an active role in mitigating emissions, the Group has
planted various types of plants in the past, 489 of which
exceeded a height of 5 meters. In total, these 489 trees
helped offset a total of 11 tonnes of CO,. With the Group’s
effort, strict requirements set by the local government had
all been met by the operations during the Reporting Year.
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14 BEEBEYREEE

1.4 Hazardous Waste and Waste Reduction Initiatives

The Group generated a total of 26,340 tonnes of
hazardous waste during the Reporting Period, with an
overall intensity of 0.04 tonne of hazardous waste per
tonne of coke produced.

Most of the wastes were coal tar, contributing to over
three-quarters of the overall hazardous waste, followed
by refinery coke, which contributed to 15% of the Group’s
hazardous waste. See Table 3 for the rest of the source of
hazardous waste.

Hazardous waste is usually collected and treated by
external parties, which include municipal hazardous
waste treatment plants, or appointed recyclers. As for
chemicals, to avoid pollution to the environment and
increase effort in cleaner production, waste products,
such as liquified natural gas, are recycled by downstream
factories to extract and reproduce chemicals like,
synthetic ammonia, urea, and ethylene glycol. These will
then be used again by the coal industry.

REBHRA - NEBXELET
26,340 B EREY)  BRELEST
HEWEEIREE004NEE ERE
) o

REZBEYREER (hBEEE
BNz ZIA L EXE
EHE HAEBRBEEREYN
15% - BEEM IR EHER I 5
H&K3e

BEREYRERINEE T W EM
BRI HPBEREMMmEZTEMRE
EREEENDYERE - 2RMEE
o R TERHREEESR
WINRBREENNE - BRIER
ARLEEVIE an e T TR Y -
UEBRMBEEGKRRA  KER
L_BEER - ELENEH
IRAEREIR T -
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1.5

Table 2 Annual hazardous waste generation and
treatment methods

Annual waste amount

KO FEBZEY LR IE
0%

Hazardous waste (in tonnes) Waste treatment method
FEENHE

BEEY (LAmg5t) BEYEE S *

Coal Tar 22,100 Collected and treated by qualified parties

R & BaRh R ENEE

Refinery Coke 3,825

BHE

Tar residue 14

FHBE

Asphalt residue 8

BEE

Crude benzene slag 24 Mixed with refined coal for coking

S HRERBRKES

Biochemical sludge 10

135k

Waste from desulfurization 358

Rl 27

Waste oil 1 Reused for lubrication of coal loaders

% BNEARNEHENEE

Note: as defined by and listed on the Directory of National
Hazardous Wastes

Non-hazardous Waste and Waste Reduction Initiatives
The Group generated a total of 203,910 tonnes of non-
hazardous waste from production processes during the
Reporting Period, with an overall intensity of 0.35 tonne
of hazardous waste per tonne of coke produced. The
amount of non-hazardous waste dropped significantly
Reporting Period as the Group no longer washed its own
raw coal and only purchased clean coal, which would not
generate low-quality coal gangue.

The Group also generated an insignificant amount of
organic waste, composed mainly of food waste. These
leftover food from the canteen are sent to nearby farms
for animal feeding, or to appointed sections to make
organic fertilizers for office gardening.
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2.1

Table 3 Annual non-hazardous waste generation and
treatment methods

Annual waste amount

X3 FREZEYELREHE
T2

Non-hazardous waste (in tonnes) Waste treatment method
FEBRNHE
BEEY (LAMEZT) BYREF *
Coal gangue 0
R - '
Fly ash 119,629 Seit to bwlo\hng materials manufacturers for recovery
RREMBUERE Y
e E
Boiler slag 83,961
/i)

Fly ash and boiler slag are hard to reduce in amount as
they are inevitable by-products of the Group’s operations.
The Group can only handle them responsibly by sending
them to any recyclers who may make use of them or
waste collectors to reduce stress to the environment.

Use of Resources

Energy Consumption and Use Efficiency

During the Reporting Year, a total of 1,484,709,520
Kilowatt-hour (kWh) of energy was used by the Group.
The overall energy intensity was 2,515 kWh/tonne of coke
produced. In addition, 85,858,373 kWh of electricity was
generated and supplied to 8 neighbouring companies,
and 729,079,444 kWh of steam was generated and
supplied to houses covering 30% of Xiaoyi’s area.

Of all energy consumed, 91% was contributed by coal
gas used in the Group’s coking plant. 7% was contributed
by electricity and 1% contributed by steam generated by
coal from its power and heating plants. The remaining 1%
was contributed by its petrol and diesel usage in mobile
vehicles.

RIERIBEOBE READ + B
BB EEEES T AR L
BIER - AREETREEE
FTHRIB + ff 3 3% ) (E T AT 4 F A8
£ BRSBTS LA
DERIAOES -

A2. BiRER
2.1 BEFEFERFIFHNE

RBEFE AEEFRAEH
1,484,709,520 F FL B (kWh) &9
R EXNBERRERS
ME£R %k 2,515 F FLBF o Bt oh - B
485,858,373 F LB & 7 I
BTN NERENAR RESE
729,079,444 F FLFF 28 )3 L it F&
FREZE MR IR HBENEE °

RN BRERT  91% K A8
AEBEEECBERNRR 7%
K 1% 23 B 2 B H 3% B A 2R
BREREREERELNEKT R
R 1% 5K B H % 2) B 5 1 Tm &

HAE -
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Table 4 Energy Use in 2020 &4 —E-_FFRREH
Consumption Consumption (kWh)
Energy Usage BERBE A BHEHZE SHFE (LT REE
Coal gas BR 137,526,360 m® 37 J7 K 1,359,047,058
Electricity Eh 105,901,474 kWh T E I 105,901,474
Steam b 47,985 GJEH & 13,329,167
Petrol i 171,598 litres A F+ 1,520,644
Diesel Ep:: 491,199 litres A F+ 4,911,178
Total Ly 1,484,709,520
Note: Conversion factors were made reference to IEA Energy Bt it - 8318 R BT 2 ZE B R BER Z B
Statistics Manual and 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National ARG FMR =ZEENFEHR
Greenhouse Gas Inventories. WRIEE(ZR S F A ER
BEEIEE -
Table 5 Distribution of Electricity Used in 2020 *kb6 —E—TFENEHFSM

Consumption (kWh)

Electricity Usage ELFEHA SHFE (AT RS
Coal washing plant e 1R R 981,100
Coking plant IR 32,290,440
Power plant BER 34,351,542
Heating plant R 31,461,642
Transportation Em 135,600
Office WAE 4,066,110
Gas Station piips:: B 2,615,039
Total ot 105,901,474
The Group continues to upgrade its equipment for NEBEEARERZE  UiES
increasing energy efficiency. Due to the combustion BEIRBE - AR SRIER RS
processes in boilers, heat recovery technology has 0B B AT 4 7R R R B A Y BT Ak
been considered as one of the best energy efficient itz — Bt - AEBE AR
technologies to be adopted. Hence, the Group uses AE  BREERAERESD
waste heat boilers that ensures a temperature reduction 150K ELAT » W oD F HE
of waste flue gas below 150 Degrees Celsius and makes R HERE - B SEERSB) A R AU
full utilisation of the waste heat from the flue gas. Variable- BERNEH ERTAEENEE
frequency drives were adopted to replace traditional ERENRERERE SN -

electric machines for its high energy efficiency and
flexibility in changing speeds.
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2.2 Water Consumption and Use Efficiency

2.3

The total water consumption for the Group was 779,120
m?, with an overall intensity of 1.32 m® of water per tonne
of coke produced during the Reporting Period. Water was
sourced from underground. No issues on sourcing water
were reported during the Reporting Period. Since the
Group purchases 100% of its coal consumed, the coal
washing plant is no longer in use.

Table 6 Annual water consumption

22 HKAREHHE

RBEEEA - AEBAKES
BTT9120 L 7K A EEB WA
RAKBBEERE B1.32L 77
Ko RN EBA - WM E K
BUKIRATEMEE - AR AEE

BEHEEROMARRE #TH
58 PRI o
K6FEHLKE

Consumption (m?3)

Water consumption AKkE SHFE (LK)
Coal washing plant PR R 0
Coking plant - 214 574,500
Power plant B E MR 100,720
Heating plant R 103,900

The Group continuously conserves water resources
and recycles water whenever possible. Wastewater
was concentrated, filtered, and monitored to ensure
their parameters (e.g., pH, suspended solids, total
phosphorus, total nitrogen, volatile phenol, polyaromatic
hydrocarbon (PAH), benzene, BOD, COD_ ) were
within permissible level set by GB16171-2012 Emission
Standard of Pollutants for Coking Chemical Industry,
before they could be sent for consumption by the second
time for processes such as coking, coal quenching,
chemicals treatment, and biochemical sewage treatment.
They will finally be completely absorbed or used up,
thus, not discharged. A new rain-water collection pond
project is expected to further save water resources once
constructed.

Coal Consumption and Use Efficiency

Coal is a key resource of the Group as it is the most
important raw material for the Group’s main business,
coking. During the Reporting Period, the Group
purchased and consumed 1,283,990 tonnes of coal.
Apart from being coked, a significant part of coal used
was also used for generating power and heat. Figure 2
shows a more detailed description of how coal was used.

2.3

REBEBHAKERREER
RAK RPEAMARKETT
S BRKRER BREAZH
(fNpH - TIZE S - 8% - AR
BREMESE 25K PAH)
X -HE{FLA=(BOD) L&
FHE(COD,)) I GB16171-
2012¢ AL B T ¥ 5 2 MR
BRE)RTEHAFKEAR  Hig
HEREZIRHERE  BRRE
B AL TR R A5 KRB
FiBiz - RERETERMEAE
M GWEEL » ET A MK
WEBIE B ZRIE - BE— T
EIRKER -

R EERERNE

BrAEAEENETEZER AR
HAASBEXTZEKRENTE
ZRE -RMEHERN - AEER
B8 B N JH 1,283,990 1B K % o
BREITEIN - FTE R MK KRR
—BHIMAREERMHEE - E2
BN R AR {5 FR O R AR S BA o
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HERER

wE

Figure 2 Flow of Coal Consumption in 2020

Destination of

Source of Coal Type of Coal

2 —FE-FFERREFEA

End Product

B3R B e BAER
KR B
Cleigggoal C;)Izl:tg - C;);u?
64% =7
Internal
Pu\rghised Washed Power Use
AT Coal Middling Coal PH%V:ELS‘ - PEE AR
S s T
e G T
ZEE
AR HE
The finest coal, clean coal, is selected to be coked, the RIFHERIB RS EEETE
end-product of which will be used in blast furnaces for pig b ERREMEBR S BRI o
iron production. Coal of the middle quality, the middling REBSERNBE - g A
coal, will enter the power plant to generate electricity for EREEE  EALER - REIR
internal uses. Middling coal are also utilised for powering FARINEER P E g - N —
and heating for external users. In 2020, excess electricity T-FFE ZHEHE T N\ER
was sold to 8 nearby enterprises, whereas steam was MR MEARDETER
distributed to houses of Xiaoyi for heating purposes, EEBEHRE  Z3|Z5E M
providing heating coverage for approximately 30% of BB E & E430%  BlA Gt
Xiaoyi's area, which is around 4.1 million m? of land area HENAABEF K-
combined.
The usage of coal therefore shows that the resource is Al EROERXRBAERS S
used to its fullest capacity, and not limited only to those of I ARENFA - mMAERRN
the highest quality. The Group will keep an effort in using BEERmE ASEBEETS
all coal materials and residue to their fullest potential. R 78 T A BT A B R ok A
& o
Packaging Material 24 BEHH

The Group’s operation does not involve any significant
use of packaging materials.
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A3.

3.1

The Environment and Natural Resources

Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment
Following the issuing of several major policies by local
government, the Group has formulated and implemented
various controlling schemes to control its impacts on
the environment, such as dust, air, fugitive, and volatile
organic compounds emissions, and water discharge. The
Group aims to achieve cleaner production by monitoring
the waste or emission that would be generated from raw
materials till the end product.

Beside emission and discharges, the Group’s use
of ground water and pollution may also put a risk on
surrounding lands in terms of soil condition caused by
reduction in humidity. Hence, the Group had grown
some hundreds of trees around the site to reduce the
further loss of ground water and prevent soil erosion. The
Group will continue to monitor its air emission, solid waste
generation, wastewater discharge, and noise level to
ensure minimal impacts on the surrounding environment.

B. SOCIAL

1.

B1.

Employment and labour practices

Employment

The Group stringently complies with national and local
laws and regulations concerning employment and labour
practices, including but not limited to the followings,

° Labour Law of the PRC

Labour Contract Law of the PRC

o Regulation on Paid Annual Leave for Employees

o Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour

No non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare had
been identified during the Reporting Period.

AS.

3.1

RIERBAER
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Employment Figures EBREHEF

As of 31 December 2020, there was a total of 483 BHE-ZT-_TF+-A=+—QH"
employees working in the Mainland operations of the HE483HZETHEAEEN AL
Group. All of them worked full time and were Chinese. EBHR It BREHE2BPEE
The workforce was dominated by male and people of the BT -BTXEZZBMHMFEN
age of 36-55. See Figure 3-5 for the detailed distribution. T36E55m MM AT - 54

D RE3ES -
Figure 3 Total Workforce by Job Grade 3 EBBRESEETEE

Middle Management

Senior Management hEEEAS

SREERE o
0.6% 6.6%
Frontline staff
RIZET
92.8%
Figure 4 Total Workforce by Age 4 BEEISAE TiE2
18-25
56 or above 183 £255%
56553 A £ 1.0%
6.8% 26-35
265% £355%
21.9%
46-55
465% £555%
35.4% 36-45
365% £455%
34.8%
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wE

Figure 5 Total Workforce by Gender

Female
fog
16%

During the Reporting Period, 32 people left the Group,
contributing to a turnover rate of 7%. Most of those who
left were retiring employees.

Employee Compensation and Benefits

The Group values input of its employees, hence offers
generous welfare to them in return of their hard work.
This has contributed to a relatively low staff turnover
rate, especially for management-level positions. Not
only does the Group ensure employees’ benefits and
welfare by strictly following the above-mentioned laws
and regulations, the Group also established its own
policies as an internal guideline. There had been no non-
compliance regarding recruitment, compensation and
dismissal, promotion, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, and benefits and welfare during the Reporting
Year.

In terms of remuneration, the Group continuously
reviews its salaries to maintain its competitiveness.
After conducting thorough market research, the Group
has started to determine employees’ base salary on
the three major categories of, position salary, working
age, and education level. And on this basis, the Group
raised salaries of employees by around 53% during
the Reporting Period, such that all staff could be paid
the amount their work deserve. Besides, employees
are entitled to paid annual leave, sick leave, marriage
leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, injury leave,
compensation leave and breastfeeding breaks, which are
all performed with accordance to the principle, “everyone
is equal regardless of the position hold”, where the Group
treats all employees fairly.

5 KMFE 508 T2
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B
84%

1.1
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B2.

On top of that, the Group also strives to provide all-
rounded welfare to retain talents. Some benefits that
employees enjoy are, free accommodation, free domestic-
use heating, economical meal plans, free access to a
well-equipped gym room, one-off subsidies for workers’
children who obtain offers into universities, etc.

Employee Communication

As the Group values ideas from employees, the Group
also has a labour union for its employees. In case of any
complaints or feedback from employees to the Group,
the union acts as a bridge to communicate employees’
needs and demands to the Group, whereas the Group
understands its employees better through the union.

The Group also believes that well-established
communication is key to improving teamwork and
efficiency. Thus, the Group actively encouraged staff to
bond with one another outside of work by applying for
local sports and talents, such as singing, competitions for
them during the Reporting Year.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group regards providing a safe and accident-free
working environment for employees as of paramount
importance. Therefore, both external and internal
guidelines and regulations are followed by the Group.
External guidelines and regulations cover national,
provincial, and local level instructions. Some instructions
that the Group abides by include (but is not limited to),

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases

o Requirements and Evaluation Criteria for the
Standardized Production of Hazardous Chemicals
in Shanxi Province

o Xiaoyi People’s Government Safe Production
Committee’s Guideline on the Further Strengthening
of Occupational Diseases Prevention Work
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Internal policies outlined by the Group cover areas
including,

° restriction and control on air composition;

° mandatory and regular health checks for certain
types of staff (such as those who are likely to get
occupational health diseases);

° education and training on safety precautions and
importance of adhering to the policies;

o provision of personal protection equipment;

o regular fire or hazardous drills, and feedback and
reflection on such drills, to constantly prepare for
and improve reactions to emergencies;

° restriction on over-time work and operating
machines that produce radiance, noise, pungent
odour, etc. for women who are pregnant,
breastfeeding, or on mensuration, etc.

Such policies and implementation continue to ensure that
employees can work under a safe environment. During
the Reporting Period, no employee was injured or passed
away from working on their tasks. No non-compliance
had been recorded regarding the Group’s health and
safety policies.

Apart from measures preventing employees from getting
injured in work-induced accidents, various measures are
also taken to control and minimise chances of employees
being endangered by non-work-related hazards. For
example, as the Group provides accommodation,
showering, and laundry facilities for employees, devices
and equipment, such as showerheads and heating
system, within these facilities are regularly upgraded to
ensure they are safe to use. There was no injury recorded
regarding non-work-related accidents.
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B3. Development and Training B3. #/EEZ
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The Group strives to constantly deliver comprehensive
career training to employees to equip them with the
necessary knowledge of the industry and maintain
their professionalism. Hence, employees get a 2-day
training when they get into their positions, followed
by regular training conducted by training companies,
usually monthly. A wide range of topics such as internal
occupation health and safety training was provided to
employees.

During the Reporting Year, there was a large-scale
training for all employees in Xiaoyi on safety or business
managing. Monthly trainings were provided to the Finance
department in Taiyuan by a third-party organisation. The
Safety and Environmental Department also had regular
trainings on relevant practices. As for other management-
level employees, training was arranged for them often
as well when it was not peak season. Overall, all the 483
employees received training, and the average training
hours per employee was 20 hours.

To keep up with the constantly updating environmental
protection policies and facilities, on-site training is
provided to staff by contractors to ensure the proper
functioning of the newly installed equipment, topics
include but not limited to:

° Structure and mechanism of the facility;

° Facility operation & maintenance; and

° Proper selection and usage of spare parts and
auxiliary materials.
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B4.

2.

B5.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly follows relevant laws and regulations
such as the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC, the Law on the Protection of Minors to
manage labour practices. Screening and background
checks are performed when recruiting new employees.
Working hours are also strictly restricted as 8 hours to
prevent excess workload. Forced labour is restrained as
the Group is confined to Article 38 of the Labour Contract
Law.

No child labour, forced, or compulsory labour was
reported and/or identified within any sites of the Group
during the Reporting Period. There are no major risks
associated with incidents of child labour, forced or
compulsory labour within the Group’s operation sites.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group has the Procurement Policy and Standardized
Purchasing Procedure in place which requires suppliers
of the Group to provide proofs of basic qualifications they
have acquired relating to the environmental aspects,
such as sewage discharge permission. The suppliers’
effort and means of reducing their environmental impacts
are also looked into when the Group screens and
chooses suppliers, for example, the Group prioritises
suppliers who take steps to reduce dust and pollution
into air during transportation by covering materials on
trucks. The information is then audited, followed by a
site visit conducted by the Group to respective factories
the suppliers to confirm that the practices are well taken
place.
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On top of the above policies, the Group specifies detailed
clauses within contracts to ensure business partners
to have implemented adequate management policies
regarding their social and environmental impacts. For
example, within the Environmental and Energy Property
Management Contract, the Group requests that both
parties shall comply with the safety and environmental
protection requirements:

° The service provider shall set up a management
committee to ensure safety production;

° The service provider shall submit to the Group’s
supervision whenever the Group observes a
potential risk;

o The service provider shall arrange its personnel to
receive necessary training offered by the Group;
and

° The Group will send designated personnel to
conduct on-site surveys to monitor the service
providers’ performance.

Product Responsibility
Product labelling, health and safety, and advertising were
not applicable due to the business nature of the Group.

6.1 Intellectual Property
Due to the nature of the Group, there is no policy on
intellectual property rights protection.

6.2 Quality Assurance
The Group continues to guide the general quality
assurance and quality control processes. No non-
compliance outgoing products were reported
during the Reporting Period as strict measures were
taken to keep up with the quality of products during
the whole process of production.
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Amongst all, to ensure quality of the production
from the beginning, all incoming supplies are
examined before entering the plant. The laboratory
closely monitors parameters of key supplies of the
operations in terms of their quality, such as water
content, ash content, sulphur content, volatile
matter content of the raw coal. Sampling methods
strictly follow national standards such as GB482-
1995, GB481-93, and GB475-1996. Other national
standards were also followed during quality
assurance and quality control processes, including
but not limited to:

o GB/T 4000-2008 Coke — Determination of
reactivity and strength after reaction

° GB/T5447-2014 Determination of caking index
of bituminous coal

° GB/T214-2007 Determination of sulphur in
coal

° GB/T212-2008 Proximate analysis of coal

° GB474-2008 Preparation of coal sample

After quality checks, the supplies are distributed to
different plants for different productions according
to their quality. At the end of the production process,
products would be checked for quality again by
the sales department. Products that are not up to
standard would be arranged to be produced again
to assure the quality of products sold to market.
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6.3 Data Protection

The Group acknowledges the importance of
protecting the privacy and confidentiality of
relevant stakeholders. Therefore, various schemes
are constantly taken to prevent data leakage,
and misuse, or, abuse of customer sensitive
information. No non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to privacy matters had been
identified during the Reporting Period.

To prevent leakage of sensitive data from virus
attacks, several anti-virus protection practices are
taken. For example, security systems are updated
regularly, the newest version of Huawei firewall
was purchased and installed in 2019. The Group
also keeps an eye on alerts released by the market
and does assessments and audits with external
collaborators to look for bugs, suspicious activities,
or flaw in the security systems. On top of that,
some computers used are restricted in terms of the
application and software that they can download.

Data are also backed up every six hours to prevent
a loss of data in case of any hacking. To minimise
the chance of employee misconduct, leading to
any sensitive information being leaked out or used
improperly, such data is only accessible by a small
number of staff.

B7. Anti-corruption

The Group requires that all employees shall conform
to the Law Against Unfair Competition of the PRC,
Criminal Law of the PRC, and other laws, regulations and
regulatory documents related to commercial bribery.
The Group also has anti-corruption agreements with
every supplier they establish ties with. The Group’s Legal
Department continues to implement a monitoring system
to ensure zero tolerance of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud, money laundering, and any other unlawful
activities.
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B8.

The Group has not aided, abetted, assisted or colluded
with an individual who has committed, or conspired to
commit any unlawful activities. No non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to corruption, bribery, fraud
and money laundering had been identified during the
Reporting Period.

Community Investment

The Group strives to implement corporate social
responsibility and actively participates in public welfare
activities. The Group plants trees around its plant to
offset potential impacts, such as soil erosion and dust
pollution, that would be brought about by its operations.
For employees from the Xiaoyi office, they get a one-off
subsidy of 2,000-3,000 RMB if their children manage to
get a university offer. The Group also offers internship
programmes to local university students to provide them
opportunities of working at a genuine workplace. Those
who have performed excellently would be given a return
offer for when they graduate and can formally work at
the Group. When the COVID-19 pandemic hit, the Group
donated a total of RMB1.5 Million to Red Cross to support
the fight against the epidemic. The Group will continue
to find ways in which it can utilise its resources and
experience to make contributions to society.
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ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Huscoke Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 187,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the material
uncertainty relating to the going concern basis described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible
for us to form an opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
1.  Material uncertainty related to going concern
We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which mentions that the Group incurred loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$484,675,000 and
HK$9,391,000 respectively for two consecutive years of year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 and as at 31 December
2020 the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of HK$1,517,124,000 and HK$124,901,000, respectively.
Further, the Group’s major subsidiary was required to shut
down its operating assets, which bring significant impacts
on the Group’s operations. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
upon the Group’s ability to completion of the very substantial
transaction of new operating assets, the completion of the fund-
raising activities and the success in delaying the payments
by persuading its creditors of the Group not to insist on
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demanding repayment before the full operation of the Group’s
new operating assets. The consolidated financial statements do
not include any adjustments that would result from the failure to
complete the very substantial transaction, to complete the fund-
raising activities and to delay the repayments. We consider
that the material uncertainty has been adequately disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements. However, in view of the
extent of the multiple uncertainties relating to complete the very
substantial transaction, to complete the fund-raising activities
and to delay the repayments, we disclaim our opinion in
respect of the material uncertainty relating to the going concern
basis.

Trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables from third parties

Impairment losses on trade receivables and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$84,127,000 and HK$52,341,000, respectively, were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020. In relation
to certain impairment losses of trade receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2020, revenue of approximately
HK$29,794,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020. Included in the consolidated statement of
financial position were trade receivables and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of HK$Nil and HK$133,692,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2020, and approximately
HK$50,052,000 and HK$175,581,000, respectively, as at 31
December 2019.

The management is still in progress on negotiating with the
debtors on settlement of the aforesaid balances. In absence
of the information in relation to the financial status of the
debtors on assessing its ability for settlement to the Group, the
management considered that there is uncertainty on recovering
the aforesaid balances. The management has not yet initiated
actions including but not limited to legal action against the
debtors on the balances, hence no result from actions is
available up to the date of this report for justifying the extent of
the recoverability of the aforesaid balances.

Accordingly, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of
aforesaid balances as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. There
are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt
to determine whether the aforesaid impairment losses and
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 are properly
recognised.
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3. Trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables from non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary and related companies
Included in the consolidated statement of financial position
were trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables from non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
of HK$228,890,000 and HK$1,004,372,000 respectively, as at
31 December 2020, and approximately HK$233,149,000 and
HK$848,673,000, respectively, as at 31 December 2019.

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position
were trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables from related companies of HK$39,573,000 and
HK$116,852,000, respectively, as at 31 December 2020,
and approximately HK$38,574,000 and HK$99,665,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2019.

Reference is made to note 21(c) to the consolidated financial
statements. The management is still in progress on the potential
transaction with the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
and its related companies on settlement of the aforesaid
balances. In absence of the information in relation to the
potential transaction, including but not limited to the valuation
of the target assets intended to be used for the settlement of
the aforesaid balances and the uncertainties on the timing for
the completion of the potential transaction, hence no sufficient
information is available up to the date of this report for justifying
the extent of the recoverability of the aforesaid balances.

Accordingly, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of
aforesaid balances as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. There
are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt
to determine whether the aforesaid balances are fairly stated
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Any adjustments to the figures as described in points 2 and 3 above
might have a significant consequential effect on the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 and the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and 2019, and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to
form an opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 28 July 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEREBERAMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

2020 2019
= = i “TNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Notes (Restated)
Vilz3 (E3))
REVENUE WA 8 1,176,982 1,605,356
Cost of sales HEKK (1,050,092) (1,429,499)
Gross profit EV 126,890 175,857
Other income and gains, net Hip AR 58 8 298,527 264,714
Selling and distribution costs HERDEKA (10,953) (123,024)
Administrative expenses EEER (93,595) (109,072)
Finance costs HBER 9 (73,351) (60,004)
Other operating expenses, net EtZEms - F8 (775,051) (143,500)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BBE (B548) /%A 10 (527,533) 4971
Income tax expense FEBiF X 13 (4,999) (11,547)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR XEEFE (532,532) (6,576)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income Rt2H (F%) Wa
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to  R# B #EF #HEZEm I EE -
profit or oss, net of tax: Bt -
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ /BSNERIEEL 2 A A
foreign operations (5,467) 3,160
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income for RAEEHM2E (%) /e Bk
the year, netoftax (5467) 3,160
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FEERERXAR
FOR THE YEAR (537,999) (3.416)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mERBERAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

2020 2019
“BCEF “E-nF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Notes (Restated)
firzt 2
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEREE (F]B) 85
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company RRAGEEA (484,675) (9,391)
Non-controlling interests FERRER (47,857) 2815
(532,532) (6,576)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSES)/ EEXxEE2HBEX)/
INCOME FOR THE YEAR e L
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company ARAEBA (489,746) (6,020)
Non-controlling interests FEiERER (48,253) 2,604
(537,999) (3,416)
LOSS PER SHARE BhREE
Basic HK 14 (HK168.8 centsi&{l)  (HK3.4 centsSill)
Diluted #E 14 (HK168.8 centsi{l)  (HK3.4 centsi&1l)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBARR K
At 31 December 2020 R = ZE=ZF+=-A=+—A
31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
ZBIEE “E-NE E-NEF
t=A=t-B TZA=1-H —A-H
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT T
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
firzt (B51) (E51)
Non-Current Assets FRBER
Property, plant and equipments nE - BEIRE 16 103,860 576,422 570,644
Interest in an associate JinilAeNG A £ - - 79,790
Financial assets at fair value through BONEGABR EHEE
profit or loss 17 1,508 1,508 24,249
Trade receivable 2 SRR 19 268,463 = =
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT FUR » e R At YR 20 1,121,224 - -
Deferred tax assets BERRBEE 28 9,512 = =
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,504,567 577,930 674,683
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories {535 18 60,237 43,459 85,377
Trade receivable B AEMIRE 19 301,688 643,781 367,083
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT 3 « &4 R A B KIE 20 176,733 1,370,337 869,278
Restricted bank deposits XBHRTER 22 - 5,038 -
Cash and bank balances RERBITHRE 2 21,119 20,839 18,894
Total current assets RBEELE 559,777 2,083,454 1,340,632
Current liabilities RBAR
Trade payables EGTLE 23 359,736 476,658 237,326
Other payables, accruals and deposit AR - BataERE K
received &é 24 928,031 909,835 738918
Bank and other borrowings BAREMEE % 624,697 267,048 302,490
Lease liabilities B8R 2 4,756 1,134 -
Financial guarantee contracts FBEREY 27 139,200 136,469 137,049
Convertible bonds #kRES - - 43526
Tax payable FERTR 20,481 16,116 5,150
Total current liabilities RBERAR 2,076,901 1,807,260 1,464,459
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

At 31 December 2020 A =ZE =ZF+=-A=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
ZECEf —I-NF 0%
t=A=t-8 +ZA=1-H —A-A
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tax TR T
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
firzt (231 (E31)
Net current (liabilities)/assets #E(8R) EEFE (1,517,124) 276,194 (123,827)
Total assets less current liabilities EEARARBER (12,557) 854,124 550,856
Non-Current Liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income BERA 5,344 5,034 8,205
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 25 92,885 421975 130,528
Lease liabilties EAE 26 8,177 8,424 -
Deferred tax liability BERBAR 28 5,938 5,593 11,253
Total non-current liabilities FrRBeELE 112,344 441,026 149,986
Net (liabilities)/assets (Bf) /EEFHE (124,901) 413,098 400,870
Equity g
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 ] A AFE{ERiE
Share capital B 29 28,707 28,707 27,264
Reserves B 31 (140,116) 349,630 341,449
(111,409) 378,337 368,713
Non-controlling interests HFERER 32 (13,492) 34,761 32,157
Total (deficit)/equity (B4) / Rgns (124,901) 413,098 400,870

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

July 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. ZHAO Xu Guang
ii= D)k

Director

EZ

Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick

BEOERE
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERBREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z —FTF+ - A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRFEEARE
Equity
altributable
Share  Exchange Capital ~ Convertible o owners Non-
Share Share  Treasury  Contributed Special Other option  fluctuation ~ Statutory  redemption bonds  Accumulated ofthe  Controling
capital  premium* share’ suplus®  reseve’  reseve’  resenve’  reseve’  resenve’  reseve’  resenve’ losses"  Company interest Totel
KA
BRBE  pERE AREE  TRRES EEA

R BBEE ERRE:  BARE  RARE  ReRE  BR BE GERE BR BE ZHER BGBE HIRER it
HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSDOD  HKSDOD  HKSOO  HKSOD  HKSDOD  HKSOO  HKSOD  HKSDOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSODOD KOO HKSOOO
TEr  TER  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  Tér  TEr  Ter  Tér  TEr TR Tt TEr TR

As 1 January 2019 R=5-7E-F-A

(esprevouslyrepored)  (EA=E) % 380 oG98 826 (0% 250 70143 - % W (168169 51378 44T 5205
Proryear adjusiments  F AR
ote3) (#:25) = = = - - - N - - SR (401)  (163%0)  (16136)

Atfdanvay 0198 RZF-hE-A-A
restated (&51) N4 313819 - 1800847 1826 (103%4) 2500 T80 - 8 3 (181084) 38713 2T 4080

(Loss)proftfor teyear A% (i) /i - = = = = = S - - - - (%1 (939 2815 (6576
Othercomprefiensive. ~ AEBER2ANE/
incomefloss) for the year: (&%) :
Exchange diferenceson BN EBHEEEZE
ransafonof foreign ~~ AEE
operations - - - - - - - 3371 - - - - 331 1) 3,160

Toialcomprehensie  AEERENE/ (E8)
o — - - : : - - S - : Soem) 60 oM (s

Transactions vith owners:  EEEAZR5:
Tanslertostattoy  EBEEEEE

Tesenve - - - - - - - = 5269 = - b - -
Exinguishmentoftle BB Z-E—+%F

2017 Convertble Bonds AR - - - - - - - - - = (39) = (369) - (368)
Recogritinof he 2019~ BEZZ -F-N%E7

ConveribleBongs ~ #RfE% = = - - = = = = S - 2 - 2 - 2

Conversion of convertble E2 R4
bonds 1443 - - 41834 - - - - - - 1) - 43265 - 43,265




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTREARE
Equity
attributable
Share  Exchange Capital ~ Convertible to owners Non-
Share Share  Treasury Contributed Special Other option  fluctuation  Statutory  redemption bonds  Accumulated ofthe  Controlling
capital ~ premium* share  surplus  reserve'  reserve’  reserve'  reseve'  reserve'  resenve'  reserve' losses* ~ Company interest Total
A0H
BREE gk AR TRRRS #5A

Bx  BfEE  ERRHT  HABH  RHRE  HERR e B iERR Ei §f  EREET  BURE FERES a3t
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TET TR TR TER T TR TER ThT TR TR TET TR TR TEn TR

As 1 January 2020
(as previously reported)  (J%EATER 28,107 346,554 - 1,731,681 18,236 (10,354) - 72,530 5,269 85 - (1,651,188 541520 53,109 594,629
Prior year adjustments ~ HER AR (H325)
(3] - - . - - - - - . - TEN) (8188 (183 (1810)

As 1 January 2020, as

restated 28,107 346,554 - 1,731,681 18,236 (10,354) - 81,151 5,269 85 - (182299) 378337 34,761 413,098
Loss for the year TEERR - - - - - - - - - - - (4B46TS)  (d8467)  (4785T) (53253
Other comprehensive loss AFEEf2AER

for the year:

Exchange differences on  EONERTTEESZ

tanglain offoreign - A#AEE
operafions - - - - - - - (5,071) - - - - (5,071) (3%) (5,467)
Total comprehensie  AFF2EFRLE

lossor e ear . . . . . . ) = . - TS (BOT) (8 (TS
Transactions with owners:  EEEAZX5

Tansfertostatutory ~ EBZETRE

resene - - - - - - - - 4134 - - (4,134) - - -
Total tansactions with ~ EEEAZRHAE
owners - - - - - - - - 4134 - - (4,134 - - -
As31 December 2020 R=E=FEFZF
“+- BT U655 -G 1826 (1035) N (1 Y % - AN (1MA09)  (134%2)  (12400)
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the — * ZEREREBER-_F_ZFF+_-A
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020. = HIZHEEHBRERARGEE i o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE
2020 2019
—BEF —E-hF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
(Restated)
(E%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REREEK 2RERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BrELAT (B18) & T (527,533) 4,971
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs MEER 73,351 60,004
Interest income FEHA (52,190) (8,799)
Interest charged back to Jinyan Electricity st A& EEHMABEEZFIE
related borrowing (52,667) (48,595)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREBITE
equipments 34,782 17,354
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREEENE 4,076 3,413
Impairment loss on property, plant and W BERZEREESRE
equipment 477,216 -
Loss allowance/(reversal of loss Z 5 ERIR R EEEE,
allowance) of trade receivables, net (BiERERR) - F5 84,127 (381)
Loss allowance of prepayments, net A RIBEERE  F58 77,280 1,235
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB RE&#H 2 K
equipment (313) (2,023)
Compensation income from contract with EFPEHmMERA
customer (14,176) (10,126)
Amortization on financial guarantee BTG ER & #) 8H
contracts (130,781) (136,664)
Recognition of financial guarantee R BEREL
contracts 130,784 136,859
Loss allowance on financial guarantee B EREH 2 EBEREE
contracts 5,644 11,033
Reversal of loss allowance on financial ISR G A B R R RO
guarantee contracts (11,046) (11,004)
Share of result of interest in an associate FE(L — B & R RS A - 8,982
Loss arising from amendments to ARREFSFTEENERE
convertible bonds - 185
Gain on exercise the put option for the ITEERIE B DA B A A
disposal of interest in an associate, net s - 55 - (1,054)
Operating cash flows before working capital “&E& & ZEBp 2 E LSRR E
changes 98,554 30,390
Change in inventories GFEED) (13,387) 41,707
Change in trade receivables B 5 IR K E E) (236,182) (215,900)
Change in prepayments, deposits and other FB{ 38 « & & K H fth & U bR 53X
receivables = 37,513 (408,201)
Change in an amount due from the non- FE W B A B FEIEAR AR 3R 5k I8
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary e 208,283 (123,365)
Change in trade payables 2 S SRR E 18,177 242,406
Change in other payables, accruals and H M ERIRR - EEtRIB R E WK
deposits received Be#E (56,401) 174,540

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED fFZZERER 2 7




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EFF —E-hF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEL ) (FTA) 2R e 38
operations 56,557 (258,423)
Interest paid B E (16,992) =
Income taxes paid BEATSH (10,831) (5,721)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) K& EKELE (FiH)2Z
operating activities ReREFHE 28,734 (264,144)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREXBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE ¥ - ME M & E (29,527) (17,836)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant & « BE &&E 2 W
and equipment 339 2,732
Increase in other receivables due from JE U — I BT B A Rl IR AR R 2
the non-controlling shareholder of a H Ath FE UM SR8 0
subsidiary - 25,921
Interest received B UF & 2 1,429
Net cash (used in)/generated from REXK (A EE2
investing activities ReFH (29,186) 12,246
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMEXB2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings 81T R EMEE 2 Wz - 258,847
Repayment on bank and other borrowings ~ E&R1T R EMEE (459) =
Lease payments HERK (4,525) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEK (TR EE2
financing activities REFEHE (4,984) 258,847
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE INCASH B&RRESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2) /4 hniF4E (5,436) 6,949
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#1ZHE & KRS ZEY
year 25,877 18,894
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ~ [ERE 8 IE & K
and cash equivalents ReFEMwE 678 34
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year SR ZHEERBREZEEY 21,119 25,877
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH R&RESEBULE BRI
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Restricted bank deposits SR AIEEITER - 5,038
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHEF 21,119 20,839
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FXZEEMIREEEY 21,119 25,877 #/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Huscoke Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. The registered office at the
end of the reporting period is located at Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda and the
principal office at the end of the reporting period is located at
Room 2301, 23/F., Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway,
Admiralty, Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2020, the Directors consider that the
immediate and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Shun Wang Investments Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands and Mr. Zhao Xu Guang, a director of the
Company, respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiary (collectively,
the “Group”) were involved in the following activities: (i) coke
trading business; (ii) coal-related ancillary business; and (iii)
coke production business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000"), unless otherwise stated.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

AEEH
MeERERARANRBEETMK
URERRERAA HRMDEBR
FrEm eRmEMR dMHERER
* B9 = 52 9 B 7 Victoria Place,
5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM 10, Bermuda & & 75 & 2 & 8 38 89
SENBEHRLE1E23E 2301 E o

RZEBEZZEF+-A=+—H &=
RERNEENEEMREZERA D5
BIEEIREBRAR (—KREBRER
HEAMKIHAF) RARRESHM
JBYE ST -

RAFEE - ARF REWMEB R F (5
[AE@)FERATER : (VERES
5% ()R RAEREMEER - R(i)&

SRRBAIRAN  REMBRRUET
(B 2% FEEBENEERE
MR (TFBR)) -

EHMBATZEN
ARFEEMBLTZHEMT -

follows:
Issued

Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered attributable to the
Name business share capital Company Principal activities

AL BRATEER AR R MG IR
£ ERUPES SR AE AR A Bk FTEXRK

Direct Indirect
BE E:3
Rich Key Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
BEECFEERAF EBRUHE /B I REZR
Pride Eagle Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 = 100  Investment holding
Hong Kong

HMERERRAR RERAHE /BB 1ETT REER
Huscoke International Group Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100  Trading of coke
MEzBRESEERA T BB/ BE 10,0007 7T BEER
Herong Resources Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Trading of coke
MEERER A BB/ BB 10,0007 7 BEER
Ocean Signal Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Assets holding
BEBRAR B/ BB 10,000 75 BERE

94 HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
nH

CRR R E RS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. RRERGE)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERAMBATZEN (©2)
Issued
Place of incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable to the
Name business share capital Company Principal activities
MR BRITEER AR G R
8 EIUPES S s AR A BOL TREH
Direct Indirect
HE 3
Joy Wisdom International Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
ERERERAF RERUHES/ BB 1,000 7T A R
Huscoke International Investment Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
MEBEBRREERAR BB/ B 18T REZER
LS ENEERERAR People’s Republic of HK$715,000,000 - 90 Coal-related
GRG Huscoke (Shan Xi) LTD China (the “PRC")/ ancillary
(“GRG Huscoke”) ** Mainland China business; coke
production and
coke trading
WA SEMERRERAR FEE AR AR 715,000,000/ 7T BIRABRANT BT
([EEMED" ([E )/ HENH EREEREE
IR
Wealth Guardian Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
EHERBRAA RBRLHE /BB = REZER
Good Guardian Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100  Investment holding
Hong Kong
EERERRAR RBRAHE /B 17T REER
Fruitful International Investments Limited  Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Investments
ELEBRREERAA Bt/ BE 10,0007 7T RE
Joint Bloom Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
BRECEERAR BRREAHE /BB 1ETT REER
True Tycoon Limited Cayman Islands/Hong US$1 - 100  Investment holding
Kong
E LN HEHES &S 17T REER
Heroic Global Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100  Investment holding
Hong Kong
ERRRERERAT RBRLHE /BB 17T REZR
Bloom Wealth Investment Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
EY R ERRRE B/ BB 18T REER
Notes: Hiaz -
& GRG Huscoke is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture company # TEMEERBRPEH T FIEE
established in the PRC. BERA] -

A

For identification purpose only

: EHHS
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period, or at anytime during the
reporting period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
for the year and formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

PRESENTATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of key assumptions
and estimates. It also requires the directors (“Directors”)
to exercise their judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
these consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 6.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e %R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

AR ()
AHNEARZ RN (#)

B 5 K S 9 8 0 PO E AT
LA B 25 ) 4 (5 2

BiE% -

ERIB AR EER AU FRNEE
BEAFEREAEEEERERA
MOZARABMBRR - ARABES
RE JHEBHBARZFIERS
SAHRBBBOITE -

2IRERERE
ZEFAMBRROIZBB B0
NE([EREAAIE]) BEH2EFE
MEHEEA (BB BREEN])
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BELRAE /R ERD AR
ANBHZEREERANEFE -

BREBMGHRE LR REREETH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

PRESENTATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
(continued)

The Group incurred loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$484,675,000 and HK$9,391,000 respectively for
two consecutive years of year ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 and as at 31 December 2020 the Group had net
current liabilities and net liabilities of HK$1,517,124,000 and
HK$124,901,000, respectively. Further, the Group’s major
subsidiary was required to shut down its operating assets,
which bring significant impacts on the Group’s operations.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends upon the Group’s ability
to completion of the very substantial transaction of new
operating assets, the completion of the fund-raising activities
and the success in delaying the payments by persuading its
creditors of the Group not to insist on demanding repayment
before the full operation of the Group’s new operating assets.
The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result from the failure to complete
the very substantial transaction, to complete the fund-raising
activities and to delay the repayments.

The Directors have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity of the Group and are of the opinion that the Group
will be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due for
the foreseeable future, and accordingly, are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going
concern basis.

2IREREE(E)

AEBRBE_ZE_ZEFR_FT—A
F+ A=+ RILEEMEAFE
EERARBBEANEEEES A
484,675,0007% 7T & 9,391,000 % 7T
R_B_TFE+_A=+—H K&
EmrsaEiFakad@iFEosns
1,517,124,000 7% 7T & 124,901,000 /%5
ToBE - AEENEZZNE QAR
ERBAKEEE HAEE 2 ZE
BREAFE - WEBRBREFAA
RS AEBBESBERKEENELSE
AREHERTHETIE - 26 WK
RENFELENEREREN  %E
MESHEHANARREHESEEN
FEEEARZELTHK  RAAIRER
EBTERTBEEHKII KA KA A
OB HEAEREATERRFER
NAEENEEEESEIREAER
REVBRRIZEREARERET
KIBEARS  SEAEIREER
ME L H R E (R A -

EXCEEEEAEENRKRDE
T IRSAEEERNEMNER RS
KB B s BAE - Fitt - WEER
BREKERERENTM B HRRE
EE

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2020. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
and amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Group’s presentation currency and the functional
currency of the Company. The functional currency of the
principal operating subsidiaries of the Group is Renminbi
(“RMB”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency are translated into the Group’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the exchange fluctuation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation (continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal useful lives are as follows:

Building 30 years
Leasehold improvement Over the lease terms
Furnaces and infrastructure 25 years
Plant and machinery 8 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending for installation,
and is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets are
available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated at rates to
write off their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives
are as follows:

Land and buildings 2-10 years

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease
payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease
payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below US$5,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair value
through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following

categories:

(@)

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost; and

Investments at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables)
are classified under this category if they satisfy both of
the following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified under this category if they
do not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised
cost and the conditions of debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income unless the Group
designates an equity investment that is not held for
trading as at fair value through other comprehensive
income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss are net of any interest income and dividend
income. Interest income and dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements apply in
accordance with HKFRS 9. At each reporting date, the Group
measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs
less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the
holder, the debtor or any other party.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

- past due information

- nature of instrument

- nature of collateral

- industry of debtors

- geographical location of debtors

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial instrument.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

- Information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group); or

- there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(iy it has alow risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about
the following events:

(i)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(i) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(iii) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(iv) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

(vi) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at the
higher of:

- the loss allowance; and

- the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss over the terms of
the guarantee contracts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
installments.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service
to a customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the
laws that apply to that contract, a performance obligation can
be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

= the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the product or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sale of medium coal, coke and by-products are recognised at
a point of time at which the customer obtains the control of the
promised asset, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Sale of electricity and heat are recognised at a point of time
when they are transferred to the customers.

Other revenue
Compensation income is recognised when the right to receive
payment has been established.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Share-based payments transactions

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii)  Pension schemes

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(iy  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the entities comprising the Group
are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(B) (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
investments, inventories and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained earnings within the equity
section of the consolidated statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the Directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.

5. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

(@) In the preparation of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the Company discovered that several loans and
financial guarantee transactions that GRG Huscoke has
entered into were deliberately concealed by the then
management and relevant personnel of GRG Huscoke
and excluded the relevant loans and financial guarantees
from the Company’s consolidated financial statements (the
“Incident”). In response to the matters of the Incident,
the Company has set up an investigation committee
and engaged an independent adviser to carry out an
investigation on the Incident (the “Investigation”).

Based on the findings from the Investigation, the
Directors noted that Xiaoyi Jinyan Electricity Coke
Chemical Company Limited* Z& m & & E& A T
A PR A A (“Jinyan Electricity”), being the 9% minority
shareholder of GRG Huscoke, has been conspired with
then directors and management of GRG Huscoke with
the cooperation of Xiaoyi City Jianeng Coal Chemical
Technology Development Company Limited*(Z &
e BRI E R EER A A), being the 1% minority
shareholder of GRG Huscoke, deliberately ignored the
formal approval process and financial control measures of
the Group, leveraged the assets and credit of the Group
to conduct loans from the banks without authorisation,
and misappropriated of the major funds from such loans.
Details of the results of the Investigation are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 January 2022 and
26 May 2022.

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

5.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

(continued)

The Group has been negotiated with the parties
involved in the Incident, and Jinyan Electricity agreed to
compensate for all the losses and expenses arising from
the unrecorded loans and the relevant accrued interests
to the Group.

(a)

(i)

Adjustment relating to the unrecorded loans and
the relevant accrued interests

According to the results of the Investigation,
the unrecorded loans were conducted by GRG
Huscoke between 2015 to 2019 from several
financial institutions and corporate lenders in the
PRC. As at 1 January 2019 and 31 December
2019, the aggregated unrecorded loans arising
from the Incident amounted to approximately
HK$414,830,000 and HK$470,835,000,
respectively, and the relevant accrued interests
arising from these loans amounted to approximately
HK$88,640,000 and HK$129,461,000, respectively.
Such loans and interests are fully charged back to
Jinyan Electricity. Prior year adjustments have been
made to recognise interest income of approximately
HK$48,595,000 and interest expenses of
approximately HK$48,595,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e UHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

5.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued)
(@) (continued)
(ii)  Adjustment relating to the unrecorded financial

guarantee contracts

According to the results of the Investigation, there
were several financial guarantees undertaken
by GRG Huscoke since 2016. In this regard, the
Group has engaged Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited, an independent valuer, to carry
out the valuation of the financial guarantees
provided by GRG Huscoke at the inception date.
As at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019,
the aggregated financial guarantees contracts
amounted to approximately HK$137,049,000
and HK$136,469,000, respectively. Prior year
adjustments have been made to recognise
amortisation on financial guarantee contracts of
approximately HK$136,663,000, recognition of
financial guarantee contracts of approximately
HK$136,859,000, loss allowance on financial
guarantee contracts of approximately
HK$11,033,000 and reversal of loss allowance
on financial guarantee contracts of approximately
HK$11,004,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019.

(b) Adjustment relating to the overdue charges of tax

payables

The Group has overdue tax payables to PRC tax bureau
brought forward from previous years. Overdue charges for
these tax payables had not been recognized in previous
years’ consolidated financial statements. As a result,
prior year adjustments have been made to recognise
overdue charges of approximately HK$21,055,000 to
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 and overdue charges payables of approximately
HK$24,296,000 and HK$45,062,000 as at 1 January 2019
and 31 December 2019, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

5. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued)
(b) Adjustment relating to the overdue charges of tax
payables (continued)
The Group has quantified the financial impacts on its
consolidated financial statements and their impacts on
the consolidated financial statements are provided in the
tables below.

A summary of the effect of the restatement on the
applicable line items within the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019

and 1 January 2019 were as follows:

5. LEEREGE)
(b)

REMHENGNER @R
(%)

ﬁglEgM{LH A SRR
M BEE HHRAMBE®RER
E@%%%E@T% °

ERTEE YN )
A=+-AR-F-NF—A—
B #915 & RTIARR K 8 R B
BRI -

—nF+=

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

&4

MBRRE

As at 31 December 2019
RZZ-NE+=A=+—H

As
previously As
reported Prior year adjustments restated
A RE TEERE ]l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTHET FTHET FTHT AT
Note (a)(i) ~ Note (a)(ii) Note (b)
Mt @))  HiE(a)i) HizE (b)
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits BEHE - £e
and other receivables R E A R IR R 770,041 600,296 - - 1,370,337
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank and other BOREMEE
borrowings 18,188 248,860 - - 267,048
Other payables, accruals HA BT IRN -
and deposit received R IE K
ke 735,312 129,461 - 45,062 909,835
Financial guarantee HBEREH
contracts - - 136,469 - 136,469
Net current assets/ RBEE/ (8F)
(liabilities) B4 235750 221975  (136469)  (45062) 276,194
Total assets less current ~ BEAERAE
liabilities =1 813680 221975  (136469)  (45062) 854,124
Non-Current Liabilities kREEE
Bank and other BOREMEE
borrowings 200,000 221,975 - - 421,975
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) #E/(&fE) FE 594,629 - (136,469) (45,062) 413,098

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

5. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 5, LHEEREE)
(b) Adjustment relating to the overdue charges of tax (b) BEMHENRIHERZHAE
payables (continued) (%)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FaMBLE
As at 1 January 2019
RZE-NF—A—H

As
previously As
reported Prior year adjustments restated
NEHE LTFERE 4]l

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT TEx TET THET
Note (a)(i) ~ Note (a)(i) Note (b)
Wit (a)i) Wiz (a)i) izt (b)

Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits BEFE BE R
and other receivables ot W 0 X 365,808 503,470 - - 869,278
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank and other BOREMEE
borrowings - 302,490 - - 302,490
Other payables, accruals H A (IR N -
and deposit received JEETFIE R
ElEE 625,982 88,640 - 24,296 738,918
Financial guarantee RBERED
contracts - - 137,049 - 137,049
Net current assets/ RBEE/ (BE)
(liabilities) et (74822) 112340  (137,049)  (24296)  (123:827)

Total assets less current ~ EELAERAKE
liabilities g% 500,861 112340  (137,049)  (24296) 550,856

Non-current Liabilities FRBEE

Bank and other BITREMEE
borrowings 18,188 112,340 - - 130,528
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) %%/ (&) BE 562,215 = (137,049) (24,296) 400,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

5. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 5. LtEEREE)
(b) Adjustment relating to the overdue charges of tax (b) BEMHENRIHERZHE
payables (continued) (%)
A summary of the effect of the restatement on the BIHARRRBE_ZT—NF
applicable line items within the Company’s consolidated +TZA=+—HLEFENGZEE
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 HERAERIEB M EBnT

December 2019 were as follows:

As
previously As
reported Prior year adjustments restated
AERS TEERE 4]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T THET THET
Note (a)(i)  Note (a)(ii) Note (b)
Wit (a)) Wi (a)i) Mt b)

Other income and gains, net ~ EAUTA R
ik 68,452 48505 147,667 - 264,714

Administrative expenses EEER (88,018) = = (21,054)  (109,072)

Other operating income/ Hipm A,/

(expenses), net (Ax) - F8 4,392 = (147,892) = (143,500)
Finance costs HEER (11,409) (48,595) - - (60,004)
PROFIT/LOSS) BEFORE  MBiATH/

TAX (B#8) 26,250 - (225) (21,054) 4,971
PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHE ~ AFE %A/

YEAR (B8) 14,703 = (225) (21,054) (6,576)
Exchange differences arising /SINEBTEEEZ

on translation of foreign RBER

operations 2,067 - 805 288 3,160
Total comprehensive AEE2AKE/

income/(expenses) for the (i) &%

year 16,770 - 580 (20,766) (3,416)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEREERR,/

attributable to: (&) :

Owners of the Company. ADEHEEA 9,761 = (203) (18,949) (9,391)

Non-controlling interests ks 4,942 - (22) (2,105) 2,815

14,703 - (225)  (21,054) (6,576)

1 22 HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

5.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued)
(b) Adjustment relating to the overdue charges of tax

5. LHEEHREE)
(b) BENRENDHERZRBE

payables (continued) (%)
As
previously As
reported Prior year adjustments restated
W TFERE ]l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THEx TEx THIL THIL
Note (a)(i) ~ Note (a)(ii) Note (b)
W@ M a)n) 3 (b)
Total comprehensive EgE2mbliE/
income/(expenses) (Bi%)#5
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRAREEA 12,148 = 599 (18,767) (6,020)
Non-controlling interests IR 4,622 = (19) (1,999) 2,604
16,770 - 580 (20,766) (3,416)
Earnings/(losses) per share SREF /(5
(as adjusted to reflect B) (ARUARBR
the share consolidation “E-ZF+-A
in November 2020) HR % & 6
Basic (HK cents) EXRCE) 36 - - (6.9) (3.4)
Diluted (HK cents) 58 05 ) 35 = = (6.9) (3.4)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

6. EXREFHEIRME

REAEB M BHRRERKERER
HAIREKRA R BERABER
HEBEKEFRUARKARBERES
HZE2ERTBHE - Bt RER-
HERREMGEAZ I EERRATESE
HEEHARIFEZEEXREL
IREEFLEANFABRZER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(a) Deferred tax liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax liabilities
of approximately HK$5,938,000 (2019: approximately
HK$5,593,000) were provided for, in relation to the
withholding tax on the distribution of retained profits
of the PRC subsidiary to be remitted out of the PRC in
foreseeable future. Further details are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

(c) Depreciation

The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives, commencing from the
date the property, plant and equipment are ready for
their intended use. The estimated useful life reflects the
management’s estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use
of the property, plant and equipment. The depreciation
will be changed when the useful life is expected to be
different from the estimate and would affect profit or loss
for the period in which such change of estimate takes
place.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(d) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(e)

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined with reference to the present value
of estimated future cash flows. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected or there are unfavourable
events and change in facts and circumstance which
result in revision of future estimate cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for financial assets at amortised cost including trade
receivables, amount due from non-controlling shareholder
and deposits and other receivables, by using various
inputs and assumptions including risk of a default
and expected loss rate. The estimation involves high
degree of uncertainty which is based on the Group’s
historical information, recoverable amount of collateral,
past collection history of debtors, concentration risk of
debtors, the Group’s actual loss experience, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying amount of the financial assets at
amortised cost. Details of the key assumption and inputs
used in estimating ECL are set out in note 39(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

6.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
the following reportable operating segments:

(a) the coke trading segment — purchases and sales of coke
and coal;

(b) the coal-related ancillary segment — washing of raw coal
into refined coal for sale and for further processing, and
sale of electricity and heat which are generated as the
by-products during the washing of raw coal; and

(c) the coke production segment — processing of refined coal
into coke for sales, and sale of coke by-products that are
generated during coke production.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax.
The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
unallocated other income, corporate and administrative
expenses, other operating income, finance costs and income
tax expense are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, restricted
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude other borrowings, lease liabilities,
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus a
certain percentage of mark-up.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e %R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e UHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. RESEER(E)
Segment revenue and results DHEWARES
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZE-ZEHF+-HA=1+—HLEFE
Coal-
Coke related Coke
trading ancillary Production Eliminations Total
oSl
ExRESZ WEBY2E EBREE Eak @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TER TEx FTET FTEx TER
Segment revenue: DEWA
~ external sale —HHMEE 3,042 65,600 1,108,340 - 1,176,982
— intersegment sale —DEREE - 23,562 - (23,562) -
Other income H A - 36,168 - - 36,168
Total B3 3,042 125,330 1,108,340 (23,562) 1,213,150
Segment results DEEE 156 (72,754)  (210,899) - (283,497)
Unallocated other income &7 B E U A 1,545
Compensation income HEWA 14,130
Amortization on financial ~ EAFIER A 40 55
guarantee contracts 130,781
Recognition of financial BRUBERED
guarantee contracts (130,784)
Loss allowance on MBERENZ
financial guarantee E R
contracts (5,644)
Reversal of loss allowance B & IER A L&
on financial guarantee BB R o]
contracts 11,046
Impairment loss for trade & 5 EAIR K
receivables VeI S (84,127)
Impairment loss for TE T ERIE R E A e
prepayments and other IR FUREE R
receivables (77,280)
Interest income arising in - E ftb 8 U IR 3K E L K
other receivables F B WA 104,857
Corporate administrative ~ A a]EE & (f/72)
expenses (Note) (135,209)
Finance costs H%ER (73,351)
Loss before tax BrEiATE B (527,533)
Income tax expense FrisfiA % (4,999)
Loss for the year REEFHE (532,532)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SmE U HERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. RESEEH(E)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DHEWBARES (&)
Coal- Corporate
Coke related Coke and
trading ancillary Production unallocated Total
1 5 1 DER
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET THET FERT FTHERT THER
Segment assets PTEEE - 210,290 622,879 1,231,175 2,064,344
Segment liabilities STEERE - 461,474 46,192 1,681,579 2,189,245
Coal- Corporate
Coke related Coke and
trading ancillary Production unallocated Total
B iEE DEAK
ExESZ MEIE RFREE RAE st
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FTHET THERT THERT FTHET THERT
Other segment Hitvn BER
information:
Additions of property, NEWE BB R
plant and equipment B - - 29,271 256 29,527
Additions of right-of-use NERREEE
assets - - - 6,692 6,692
Depreciation e - 5,429 25,477 7,952 38,858
Impairment on property, M - BE K&
plant and equipment WA - 84,055 351,548 41,613 477,216
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

7. RESWERE)
DHEBAREER ()
BE_Z-NAF+A=+—RHILFE

Coal-
Coke related Coke
trading ancillary  Production Eliminations Total
R A
TRESH WEIE HEREE Egfi] Bt
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FET FHEL FEL FHEL
Segment revenue: DEWRA
— external sale —¥INMEE 2,540 168,505 1,434,311 - 1,605,356
— intersegment sale —niEHEIEE = 108,288 - (108,288) =
Other income H A = 45,878 = = 45,878
Total et 2,540 322,671 1,434,311 (108,288) 1,651,234
Segment results DEEE = 861 97,849 - 98,710
Unallocated other income K7 BRE U A 8,649
Compensation income fHERA 10,126
Interest income arising in Hfth 8 IR 50 E AE O
other receivables FEWA 52,394
Amortization on financial IS ERE KV 5
guarantee contracts 136,663
Recognition of financial BRIV BERE L
guarantee contracts (136,859)
Loss allowance on financial B iR & 49 2 8
guarantee contracts B (11,033)
Reversal of loss allowance — BAF#E(R & 4618
on financial guarantee B g
contracts 11,004
Gain on exercise the put TR AN E
option for the disposal of Bt A Al AR Y
interest in an associate, W - FEE
net 1,054
Other operating income H A48 & A (852)
Share of results from an JE 15— Ht & A Bl #Y
associate ES (8,982)
Corporate administrative NABEEERA (i)
expenses (Note) (95,899)
Finance costs B%ER (60,004)
Profit before tax R A A 4,971
Income tax expense FriSRi S (11,547)
Loss for the year REEEE

(6,576) |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. EaRER (&)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DHEWBARES (&)
Coal- Corporate
Coke related Coke and
trading ancillary ~ Production unallocated Total
B R AE NAR
ExREH bEnkE BIREE RABC et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET THET
Segment assets TREE 2,851 358,889 1,038,714 1,260,930 2,661,384
Segment liabilities PEEE 1,135 493,775 572,425 1,180,951 2,248,286
Coal- Corporate
Coke related Coke and
trading ancillary  Production unallocated Total
PR AR YNGIDSE
ERES MBHE HBREE AR #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TET
Other segment Hitvp BER
information:
Additions of property, NEWE  BER
plant and equipment B - 909 2,791 14,046 17,836
Depreciation nE - 2,777 12,148 2,429 17,354

Note: Unallocated corporate administrative expenses mainly include

corporate’s staff cost and Directors’ remuneration, legal and

professional fee, PRC local tax and depreciation of unallocated

property, plant and equipment.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7

Wi ADERAIEREATEZERE LA

HIBTHAREFF ZREREE
B BT R ARAR IR
Bifs RREAIITE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is all
derived from the PRC. The revenue information is based
on the locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

S5 BMER ()

HERH

(0) REHBES WS
STE AR KA HRE
B - AT IR I P R

HWwE D o

(b) F¥REBEE

2020 2019

—EB-EF —E-NF

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Hong Kong BB 5,396 2,746
The PRC F 98,464 573,676
103,860 576,422

The non-current asset information is based on the

locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments.

Information about major customers

Revenues from external customers individually contributing

10% or more of the total revenue from the Group are as follows:

BRERBDEEENIIRBEE

P s 8 &1 3
B

FHXEEFZEHN

BT BEEERT

KEIMBEE ZWABRERALEE
BBAZ10% KA ERIERAT

2020 2019
—E-EHF —EF-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FExT FAETT
Customer A ZEEA 668,510 =
Customer B =FEB 241,603 N/A 73 A *
Customer C 2EC - 455,622
Customer D ®FD N/A B A * 279,356
910,113 734,978
* These customers did not individually contribute 10% or more of * BREEPR-_FE_FFE—F—NEF

the total revenue from Group in 2020 or 2019.

I K 18] 5 B Bt 7K 5 B A A A 10%

B E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

8. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8.
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the value of
services rendered during the year. An analysis of revenue and
other income and gains are as follows:

WA - HAbUg A R Uk
WAEFRNEELEM 2 FHREA
MR EERERE SRS RE
ZEE - WAREMKARKZEZ S
T

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Revenue WA
Transportation service E R - 986
Sales of electricity and heat HEE L& 65,600 75,119
Sales of medium coal, coke and HERE SR REIED
by-products 1,111,382 1,529,251
1,176,982 1,605,356
The revenue is recognised at a point in 7 F= 85 B ZhRER FO UL A ©
time.
Other income and gains, net Htw AR Wz - B8
Compensation income (Note a) HEWA (KiFa) 14,130 10,126
Interest income from bank deposits RITHF R F B A 2 160
Interest income from related E2): N I Y N N
companies 6,843 -
Interest income from a non- FEPERR AR R 2 FI WA
controlling shareholder 45,345 -
Interest income from other A FE YR SR 2 FLE A
receivables - 3,639
Governments grant (Note b) Bt e (Mitb) 37,345 45,878
Loss arising from amendments to AIRE R BT EE N EE
convertible bonds - (185)
Sundry income HMIEUA 368 8,834
Interest charged back to Jinyan STASEBENHEABEZFE
Electricity related borrowing (H1:£5(a))
(Note 5(a)) 52,667 48,595
Amortization on financial guarantee WIS IR G HOBE SR
contracts 130,781 136,663
Reversal of loss allowance on MIEIERE X BB R ERE
financial guarantee contracts 11,046 11,004
298,527 264,714
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

8. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 8.

Notes:

(@) In 2019, the Group paid trade deposit of US$22,000,000 to
Shanxi Jinyan Energy Technology Company Limited* (L 75 % &
BEEFIE B R 2 A]) (“Energy Technology”) for the coke trading
business. However, due to the downtrend of international coke
price, both parties agreed to terminate the plan and Energy
Technology agreed to refund such trade deposit by instalment

with compensation to the Group.

KA - Bft AR Was ()
Wiz -

(a)

R-FB—-NF FEERERESE
BRI 2 5 R AR A
([BEFRBRI)XNEZEK
22,000,000 ° A+ I BIES 5&
KREWETH  ELREKIEEE G
JREH [ B (7] 7K 45 [ 7 B AR B 5 g
ESRTERE -

(b)  Government grant have been received for supplying heat in the (b) EBRFEIHRERWRENTEEE - B
PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating FEHEHZEEEZRERK A
to these grants. AREIH o
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. HMKBEA
2020 2019
—EB-EF —ET-NEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Interest expenses on other HMEEMNSRAX
borrowings 20,000 9,638
Interest expenses on convertible ARRESFMNERAXZ
bonds - 1,123
Interest expenses on lease liabilites ~ FAEBEZF B % 684 648
Interest expenses on Jinyan eaBENHBEEZFERAX
Electricity related borrowing (K1at5(a))
(Note 5(a)) 52,667 48,595
73,351 60,004
* For identification purpose only * EWRHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e %R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

10.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

10. BR®BiAT (BB B

AEBEZBREA (BE) Safmk,/

(crediting): (Bt A) T3S IEEEL -

2020 2019
—EB-EHF —hEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Auditor’'s remuneration ZERDEN & 2,050 1,300

Cost of inventories FERA 1,050,092 1,429,499

Depreciation e

- Owned —-BA8 34,782 17,354
— Right-of-use assets —ERREE 4,076 3,413
Employee benefit expense (including REE®RARAX (BREEEME) -
Director’s remuneration):
- Wages and salaries —IEEk%® 49,889 42,108
— Pension scheme contributions —RINEHIET B (Hata)
(Note a) 14,263 12,797

Total employee benefit expenses EERAMZA%E 64,152 54,905

Provision/(reversal) of loss allowance & 5 fEUIR BB RS, (BQ) -

of trade receivables, net (Note b) VEEE (M) 84,127 (381)

Provision of loss allowance of other Eh e IR SRS BB - R R

receivables, net (Note b) (K1iEb) 77,280 1,235
Impairment loss on property, plant M~ RE R EREEE

and equipment (Note b) (H1ab) 477,216 =
Recognition of financial guarantee ERMIEERE X (Hitb)

contracts (Note b) 130,784 136,859
Loss allowance on financial MBERE XN 2 BEBRE (F7b)

guarantee contracts (Note b) 5,644 11,033
Gain on exercise the put option FTER B LA L S A Al R

for the disposal of interest in an B s - JREE (Mfatb)

associate, net (Note b) - (1,054)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BB R &E 2K

and equipment (313) (2,023)
Share of result from interest in an e — & R RIS (B17EDb)

associate (Note b) - 8,982

Notes: Bt -

(a) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no forfeited (a) R-ZFZFFR-F—NFL+ZA
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension =F—H  AEE I EAFEHL AR
schemes in future years. R AF JZAR K18 F 51 &) 7 50,2 B R MK

(b)  These balances are included in “Other operating expenses, net” (b) FEERFIAGFEEmZ [EMiAEFHT

in the consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —Z —FF + - A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BEEMHA - BERFBKEHNE
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong 383(1)(a) * (b) ~ (c) B (O & Kk A &l (#
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BESNRER ROIFE2HHEE 2R
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) FEEEFHHMOT :

Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019

—E-%F —T-hEF

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

THxT FHET

Fees wE 4,591
Other emoluments: His -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREYEF 3,315

Pension scheme contributions ROKEFIET B30 56

3,371

7,962




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 11. EEME (2)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z_FF+-A=+—HLHF
E
Salaries and
allowances Pension
and benefit scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e B EREF
e REYER BN 48 557 B
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET TERT TR
Executive directors HTES
Zhao Xu Guang HEE 845 3,249 18 4,112
Li Qinghua (appointed FEE(NRZE
on 10 June 2019 and —hERA+H
re-designated as Non- BEZE HN=F
Executive Director on —EF=A—H
1 March 2020 and AERIEMITE
retired on 5 June 2020) =
TEHAHE
) 448 - 3 451
So Chiu Fung (resigned  #R# (HW—_=—
on 15 January 2020) ZHF—-A+HAH
BEE) 60 - 2 62
Wang Yijun (appointedon EEFE (R=-Z
10 July 2019) —hE+HA+H
BEE) 1,066 - 18 1,084
2,419 3,249 41 5,709

Non-executive directors FHITESE

Wong Siu Hung, Patrick = 4 i 228 - - 228
Huang Man Yem BEXE 228 - - 228
Jiang Jiansheng EZEE(RZZT=
(appointed on =F—HA+HhHH
15 January 2020) BEE) 375 - - 375
831 - - 831
Independent non- BIUFHTES
executive directors
To Wing Tim, Paddy AR 150 - - 150
Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie PR A 150 - - 150
Wang Wei Hsin T4 150 - - 150
450 - = 450
Total st 3,700 3,249 41 6,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 11. EEME (2)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z-hF+_A=T—HIF
E
Salaries and

allowances Pension
and benefit scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

e - R RIRARRA
we REDREAM sTEIfR 857
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT FHETT FHETT

Executive directors HITES
Zhao Xu Guang B 845 3,315 18 4,178
Li Qinghua (appointed on  F;E#E (R -F
10 June 2019) —NFxA+H8
EZE) 1,452 - 11 1,463
So Chiu Fung BR R 5% 1,066 = 18 1,084
Wang Yijun (appointedon EHE (R -
10 July 2019) —NFtA+H8

EZE) 508 - 9 517
3,871 3315 56 7,242

Non-executive directors FHITES

Wong Siu Hung, Patrick = > 180 = = 180
Huang Man Yem EDE 180 — - 180
360 - - 360
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
To Wing Tim, Paddy KR 120 = = 120
Lam Hoy Lee, Laurie NG 120 = = 120
Wang Wei Hsin B =) 120 - - 120
360 - - 360
Total #Et 4,591 3,315 56 7,962
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no HE-_Z_ZTFR_ZT-NAF+_HA
emolument of any director was waived or agreed to waive =t—HIEFE HBEEEREXR
and no emolument was paid by the Group to any director BEREAANE  MASEHERT
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AIEE AR EREE INAZKR
compensation for loss of office. SEZ RE S EEBAEE - Q
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12.

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two
Directors (2019: three), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 11 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining three (2019: two) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

hEREHFAL
REEZhEHERFATBEREE
FE(CE-NE:=Z8) HFE:TE
BR EXHE1 - KREEHBTZE (=
T-NF WMB)ESFALZFTHF
BT

2020 2019

—EF-FHF —E-AF

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 2B R EWEF] 2,212 1,209
Pension scheme contributions RIRE R 2R 54 27
2,266 1,236

The emoluments of the individual fall with the following bands is

HENFTIEEZALNT

as follows:
Number of employees
EE%H
2020 2019
—B_%F —T-NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = Z 1,000,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 87T E 1,500,0007% 7T 1 =
3 2

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emolument was paid by the Group to any of the above three
(2019: two) highest paid individual as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as there were
no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13. FiBHEX (©2)
The income tax provision in respect of operations in the PRC is BEPREER 2 MERE® AR
calculated at the applicable tax rates of 25% on the estimated BEED  ZREKENAERREFA
assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation, BT FE R B8 iR AR 25% « i@ A B &
interpretations and practices. FE -
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current — Hong Kong BIER— &% - =
Current — The PRC BN HEA— R
Charge for the year REFZ T H 13,782 17,564
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFEBETR
(ERFE R R) 250 (385)
14,032 17,179
Deferred tax credit for the year FRRELERIEEE (9,033) (5,632)
4,999 11,547

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_ZH+-_A=+—HILEE

Hong Kong The PRC Total
8 H #Et
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTET FTET FET
Loss for the year REEEE (53,958) (473,575) (527,533)
Tax at the statutory tax rate AT ERAE 2
Fi 18 (8,903) (118,394) (127,297)
Tax effect of income not taxable B ZBFR A UL A K A
and expenses not deductible AP RS 2B5
2 8,903 5,047 13,950
Under-provision in prior year FFEERETR - 250 250
Tax effect of deductible temporary 7& F& 52 & A] F1 55 B i
differences not recognised =R 2 RS2 - 118,096 118,096
Tax expense IR - 4,999 4,999
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

13. FEBiMX (&)

BE_Z-NF+-_A=t—B&FE

Hong Kong The PRC Total
o H BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHETT
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%) (&%)
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE (BER) = H (34,714) 39,685 4,971
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEAEMERE
fj{lﬁ (5,728) 9,921 4,193
Tax effect of income not taxable BB UL A KA
and expenses not deductible NSz A5
2 4,246 7,643 11,889
Tax effect of share of result of an  JE{E — B & A A
associate XRIMBE 1,482 = 1,482
Over-provision in prior year FFEBRBEEE - (385) (385)
Withholding tax on undistributable & B i & 2 7~ 7]
profits of the PRC subsidiary P Az TR = (5,632) (5,632)
Tax expense T IE F 2 = 11,647 11,547
14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE
Basic loss per share BREXER

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners

of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable

to owners of the Company of approximately HK$484,675,000

(2019 (restated): HK$9,391,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 287,071,349 (2019 (restated):
276,268,736, as adjusted to reflect the share consolidation in

November 2020) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share are presented as the Company did
not have any dilutive potential ordinary sharing during the year

ended 31 December 2020.

The calculation of diluted loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company, adjusted to reflect the interest and profit arising
from amendment to the convertible bonds. The effects of all
potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for the year ended 31

December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

15. DIVIDEND 15. BRE
The board of Directors does not recommend the payment of EFTeTERREHE-_ZS-_ZF
any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). TZA=T-BLEFEZEAKRE(Z
T-hEF &\ -
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% BERRME
Other
properties
leased for own
use carried at Leasehold  Furnaces and Plant and Computer Furniture Motor  Construction
Building cost  improvement infrastructure machinery equipment and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
REKSR
HAER HRR
| Kbz BENAR RERER HEREE EHRE %E AE HRIR #it
HK$ 000 HK$1000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Thn Tin FEn TR TR Fhn Thn Fin FEn TR
Cost HAE
At1 January 2019 W=E-75-A-8 362,007 12,801 1,653 465,221 548,604 71,089 315 49,810 30,289 1,631,849
Additions RE = = = = 4,644 = 3 433 12,726 17,836
Disposals 4 - - - - - - - (7,002 - (7,002)
Exchange realignment kS (2065) (58) - (2729) (3.250) (417) - (225) (250) (8994)
At31 December 2019 and R-B-NE+-A=t-BR
1 January 2020 Z2-%%-A-B 349,942 12,743 1,653 462,492 549,098 70,672 408 4,016 42,765 1,533,689
Additions RE = 6,692 = 7,486 21,785 256 - - - 36,219
Disposals e - - - - - - - (531) - (531)
Transfer E = = = 26,878 13,897 = - - (40,775) -
Exchange realignment EiHZ 21,586 603 - 30,353 35,820 43713 - 2304 (1,990) 93,139
At 31 December 2020 RZF-BF+-A=1-8 371,528 20,038 1,653 527,209 621,500 75301 408 44879 - 1,662,516
Accumulated depreciationand R FEREE
impairment
At1 January 2019 RZE-N5-A-A 241,206 - 1,004 123,016 468,889 66,216 132 4274 5200 948,404
Charge for the year FREL 4,204 3413 562 10340 974 173 8 1,033 - 20,767
Disposals i 4 - - - - - - - (6:299) - (6,293)
Exchange realignment EifE (1440) 6) - (7%0) (2754 (386) - (204) (31) (5611)
At31 December 2019 and RZF-AFHZA=+-BR
1 January 2020 = 243,970 3407 1,556 132,566 467,109 66,003 20 n2m 5,169 957,267
Charge for the year FRZE 5,562 4,076 a 19,234 6,652 1,900 82 1,255 - 38,858
Witen back on disposals LERHE - - - - - - o (505) o (505)
Transfer -+ - - - 1,303 3,908 - - - (5,211) -
Impairment loss HEEE 70,099 - - 298,898 104,761 2,01 - 1,387 - 411,216
Exchange realignment EiR% 19,065 1] - 25,127 34,934 4283 - 2,210 2 85,820
At 31 December 2020 RZZZRE+ZA=1-H 338,696 7582 1,653 411,128 617,364 74,251 292 41,684 - 1,558,656
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 RZZZFE+ZA=1-R 32832 12,456 = 50,081 4,136 1,044 116 3,195 - 103,860
At 31 December 2019 RZF-AFt+A=1-8 105,972 9,336 97 329,926 82,889 4,669 198 5739 37,59% 576,422
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. Y¥ - BERRE(E)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of

RRAEREERT SR AEE

its plant and machinery in 2020 as a result of the deterioration RZZE_ZFHHEBEMEE A

of the markets of the Group’s products. These assets are
used in the Group’s coal-related ancillary segment and coke
production segment. The reviews led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of HK$477,216,000, that has been recognised
in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets
of HK$103,860,000 has been determined on the basis of their
value in use using discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair
value measurements). The discount rate used was 11.93%.

WESREHETTEE ZFEERAR
REEBMEKBBANEDERER
EESHE REEERMAREES
$8477,216,0008 L ' % EEE £ 1B
mHPER-HEEENATRE 25
103,860,000 8 L I IREEH(F A EE -
FAMRREREE(BE=ZERANER
) MEEE o FRAMITEER11.93% o

Right-of-use assets EREEE
2020 2019
—E-EH —T-AF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FB T
Disclosures of lease-related items: HEHEBFEBEEE :
At 31 December: Rt+t-—A=+—8:
— Land and buildings —THREF 12,456 9,336
Year ended 31 December: BET-_A=1+—HLFE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREEAEZELH
— Land and buildings — T REF 4,076 3,413
Lease interests HERE 684 648
Total cash outflow for leases HERESRLBE 4,525 =
Additions to right-of-use assets FRHEEENE 6,692 =

The Group leases various land use rights, land and buildings.
Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to
10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —Z —FF + - A=+—HIFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 17. RAAEBEFABRZERMEE

OR LOSS
2020 2019
—g-ex T NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TR THR

Private club debenture — fair value measured FhL A & AT &4 — L& BT 5

at quoted price in active market REFEZANE 1,508
Detailed information in relation to the fair value measurement FREEZAREFEEBZFEE
of the items above are set out in note 38 to the consolidated PBEAFIFESS -
financial statements.

18. INVENTORIES 18. FE&
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FTHxT T

Raw materials R AR
Work in progress e

Finished goods




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLE 19. BEZEWIR
2020 2019
—ECEF ZE—NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables: B SRR
— third parties —E=F 445,686 424 245
— related companies (Note 21(c)) —BE R (K 21(c) 39,573 38,574
— non-controlling shareholder of a —— MM B A FFEZER
subsidiary (Note 21) ARER (HaE21) 228,890 233,149
714,149 695,968
Less: loss allowance B ER e (143,998) (52,187)
570,151 643,781
Less: Current portion - BNERER (301,688) (643,781)
Non-current portion JEBNERER 9 268,463 =

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of loss
allowance) by invoice date at the end of the reporting period is

as follows:

RBEEHR REZAHZIZES
FEM IR R R BB B Z iRk DA

mF -

2020 2019

—EC%F —T-NF

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Within 3 months =@AR 285,855 251,163
3 to 4 months =Z@EA 48,828 55,158
Over 4 months 1@ P 1E A 235,468 337,460
570,151 643,781

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for trade receivables are set out in note 39(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FE{TF1E : &€& &k H #th FE Uk 7%

2020 2019
—E-8F —T—NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
(restated)
(&%)

Other receivables due from the non- FEU— I8 A Bl 3E 1= R AR R

controlling shareholder of a subsidiary 2 HAEURIR R (M1t 21)

(Note 21) 312,116 048,377
Prepayments and other receivables due N R E N R 2 B RIB R

from related companies (Note 21(c)) H fth FE YR 5K (5 21(c)) 116,852 99,665
Borrowing for and related interest BERBBEN S AEE

charged back to Jinyan Electricity B (Kax21) (B3 5(a)

(Note 21) (Note 5(a)) 692,256 600,296
Trade deposits and other receivables from 8EREIR 2 B Hik 4 R HAb

Energy Technology JE U MR 3R 165,372 181,484
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMCE M A £ 2 TR RIE

receivables due from other parties & M H b e R 7k 104,641 254,203
Less: loss allowance B EERE (93,280) (13,688)

1,297,957 1,370,337

Less: Current portion W BNEAER (176,733) (1,370,337)
Non-current portion JEBNHAEE 1,121,224 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM THE NON-CONTROLLING 21. FEWKMBATEZERBRRRE
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

2020 2019
i —T-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FHET TET
(restated)
(871))
Trade receivables (Note 19) B 5 R (A5t 19)
(Notes a and c) (Htitalc) 228,890 233,149
Other receivables (Note 20) E th fE WOR 3R (A7 2L 20)
(Notes b and c) (K1atb K c) 312,116 248,377
Borrowing for and related interest charged £ & R BB 25 A
back to Jinyan Electricity (Note ¢) SEFEN (KiEce) 692,256 600,296
1,233,262 1,081,822
Less: Current portion B BNEREL 5 - (1,081,822)
Non-current portion JEBNHAEE 1,233,262 =
Notes: Hiat -
(a)  The balances are trade in nature and non-interest-bearing. (a) BB EMERTAE -
(b)  The balances are advances to the non-controlling shareholder, (b) AT THIERRIRE 8% - T
which are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. S BB E SR (EE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

21,

AMOUNT DUE FROM THE NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

*

On 31 December 2018, GRG Huscoke, an indirect 90%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a debt transfer
agreement with Jinyan Electricity, Xiaoyi ILNG Natural Gas
Production Company Limited* Z & 17 & 55 & B X A 5w 208 B R
2 7] (“Xiaoyi ILNG”) and Energy Technology (the “Debt
Assignee”), and Mr. Wen Kezhong* Jf 72 /& 7t 4, pursuant to
which GRG Huscoke, the Jinyan Electricity and Debt Assignee
agreed to assign the trade and other receivables from the Jinyan
Electricity of approximately RMB365,826,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$411,627,000) together with aggregate
amounts due from its affiliates of approximately RMB36,477,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$41,044,000) to the Debt
Assignee (together the “Assigned Debt”) (the “Debt
Assignment’).

Further details of the Debt Assignment are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 January 2019. The Debt
Assignment is only pursuable subject to the fulfillment of certain
conditions including the approval from the Stock Exchange
and the approval of shareholders of the Company at a special
general meeting (“SGM”). According to the Debt Assignment,
the Assigned Debt is interest-bearing at 5% p.a. and the Debt
Assignee shall repay the Assigned Debt within 1 year from the
date of the Debt Assignment together with accrued interest. A
conversion right is also granted to the JV Subsidiary which can
partially or fully convert the Assigned Debt to not more than
12% of the enlarged registered capital of the Debt Assignee
by subscription of new registered capital or transfer of existing
registered capital held by Xiaoyi ILNG within 1 year from the date
of the Debt Assignment. The Assigned Debt is secured by 12%
registered capital of the Debt Assignee held by Xiaoyi ILNG and
the personal guarantee from Mr. Wen Kezhong* /8 72 /8 5t 4 .

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
5 November 2019, the Company entered into a new framework
agreement (“New Framework Agreement’) with GRG Huscoke,
Jinyan Electricity, Xiaoyi Jianeng Coal Chemical Technology
Development Company Limited* 2 & i1 3 B2 B IE B BT % &
R 2 &], Energy Technology, Xiaoyi ILNG, Mr. Yang Linhai* #
&S5 E and Mr. Wu Tangjun* & %2 (£ 5t £ pursuant to which
the Company and/or designated company within the Group
intend to acquire and to subscribe for the share capital of
Energy Technology such that the Company will be interested in a
controlling shareholding stake of more than 50% of the enlarged
share capital of Energy Technology.

For identification purpose only

21,

FE W B B 2 B FE R PR AR SRARTE (48

Biat ()

(c)

*

R-F— )\ F+—H=+—H &
Fizz (AR AR EHE 0% E w2
WEBAA) HeHE N EHHE KL
BEIAAREEGER LA ([EHER
B REFEIH ([BEZEA) R
BRI AT BTSRRI aE IR
TEME 2 EZ T REHETEAR
B EENCEZREMBKIK
TN B # 365,826,000 7T (15 % R
#7411,627,000,% 7T) i# [7] JE 4 B B
B REZHBHEBEBHARK
36,477,0007T (18 & K #741,044,000
BIL) EETEEZEAN (BBIEE
EEK) ([EFEEZ])) -

BREFEZETE—HFREHRA
REIAHAE - FE—NEFEF—FH=AZ
RNER - EHEREAEFE TIET (&
FEEE S BT HE R A1 A RER R
BHRIAE ([BREZFIAE]) LA E)
ERE  FAER - IRIFEFEE%
EEZEEBETFES%E  REK
KEANAREFEZAHEF; —F
AIHEE E 22:# (B 75 HZ R fEAT 7B -
B ENB LI B LA AR E
BHEEH T — FREEEZERE
B D2 BB EETEAL
5705 FT At AR 7N Bt B2 53 I 5K 8 B B
F I B it AR A IR K 1.2 i AR AN
THEE 12% o B 222 E 7551 & 558
EBRBZEBZEANZ 12%iF K
B 7 L B FEAREHL A

HZIEMARNGAHHE=-F—NEF
+—AABAZRE AR aHe R
3= TEE  EEMEERIERIE
FZBERAE] - pEIRRIE « B EE
BHELERREE LT — 17
FEZ 1755 ([ FTHERGZE]) - Ut -
KRR R EBAZEE R E]
BEWBIZEBEERBIFRRAE - XK
Rl B BEIR B A K 18 R A
50% L2 FERR 4 -

R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

21.

AMOUNT DUE FROM THE NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Pursuant to the New Framework Agreement, the parties shall
negotiate and enter into formal agreement(s) pursuant to the
major business terms, as set out under the New Framework
Agreement. Subject to the entering into of the relevant formal
agreement(s), one of the major business term is Jinyan
Electricity, Energy Technology and GRG Huscoke intend to
update the amount of the Assigned Debt from approximately
RMB402,303,000 as at 30 June 2018 to approximately
RMB448,087,000 as at 30 June 2019 and the GRG Huscoke shall
be entitled with a conversion right to convert the indebtedness
into not less 12% of the enlarged issued share capital of Energy
Technology. The final conversion percentage will be subject to
the valuation of Energy Technology.

New Framework Agreement is subject to the fulfillment of certain
conditions including the approval from the Stock Exchange and
the approval of shareholders of the Company at a SGM.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
17 September 2020, the Company entered into the termination
agreement with GRG Huscoke, Jinyan Electricity, Xiaoyi ILNG,
Mr. Yang Linhai and Mr. Wu Tangjun pursuant to which the
parties agreed to terminate the Debt Assignment. The Company
has entered into Merger and Acquisition Framework Agreement
(the "‘M&A Framework Agreement’) with the GRG Huscoke
and Energy Technology, pursuant to which Company may
through direct investment and/or establishment of a merger and
acquisition fund (the "M&A Fund”) may acquire and subscribe
for more than 50% of the enlarged share capital of Energy
Technology.

If the transactions under the M&A Framework Agreement
materialises, upon completion of the transactions, the Company
andyor the M&A Fund is expected to hold more than 50% of
enlarged share capital in Energy Technology.

On 26 March 2021, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with Energy Technology and Jinyan Electricity
(“Cooperation Agreement’) pursuant to which GRG Huscoke
entrusts Energy Technology for the construction of a new coking
furnace which has a height of 7.1 meters with annual production
capacity of at least 600,000 tons of coke at a total investment
amount of approximately RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$712,560,000). Energy Technology agreed to undertake the
receivables and interests receivables due from Jinyan Electricity
and its related parties by GRG Huscoke and GRG Huscoke
agreed that Energy Technology shall settle the aforesaid
construction project by these receivables.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7

21,

FE W it /B8 A B FE AR IR IR SR AR (A7)

Hat : (&)
(c) (#&)
IRIEATIELE 17 35 « 5T A9 5 5 AR 1%

FHER 7 5% < + 2 7 K 1R 5 R B b
B ET 7 IE 3% - RIRIET LG8
ERlpa  —HEEHREHEEE
) BEFERIBR R ENEEBEENE
BEEHTE HEE_F—/TFN
H=+H.2#A K #4023030005T
FHE_F-NFNA=ZTHZH
A FE#448,087,0007T - A % & Mz
HEHEREGEFELRZERY
B 12% B8 1A 2 BT -
REIIBE IR RREET
A1 18 °

MIER GERFE TR (BIEHR
B # 1 R 2 2 7] R R R R FI A
BLHE)ERE  TAER -

IR ANGAE - T -_FFEA
A+EHZAE AR FJfE e E /5
SEE T EBEEE  BHELELR
BB B LT VAR 3% Ut 5T
A A A I (B o AL AELE
& i RBENR BB ET L HAEHEZ I
& ([HBEERGE]) - Fit - AR A
KB BEERER HAHZER G
E ([HBEL]) KEIZELER
FIHEASIEA 12 IR A BB 50% °

T GHENEZE % TR BIELEE -
FEXR BT E KRR GHEE
A A FF B BEIR P B A 1B K 1 R
A E50% °

R-FE-—F=H 4 H XEFH
HEEFERI R R & EENGTV —hE
REEE ([BREFEHE]) FIt
AR LB ER — = 7.1
K FEFERLECOEMRIFTELE
AR E % A A A K 600,000,000
T (162 R 712,560,000 7T) ° B
BIFEAERECEE I REBH
BT R & 2 Fl 55 59 FE Y 1 50 1% JE 1 7
B M & HE R EERRIRNZE
JEW IR AAZE FuliZiRIBH °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

21,

AMOUNT DUE FROM THE NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

On 15 March 2022, the Company subsequently entered into an
agreement (“Agreement”) and a debt transfer agreement (“Debt
Transfer Agreement”) with GRG Huscoke, Energy Technology,
Jinyan Electricity and Xiaoyi ILNG to modify and supplement
the terms of the Cooperation Agreement with the inclusion of
remedy and compensation actions as a result of the Incident as
disclosed in note 4. Pursuant to the Debt Transfer Agreement,
Energy Technology agrees to undertake all the receivables
and interests receivables due from Jinyan Electricity and its
related parties by GRG Huscoke (the “Receivables”). Under
the circumstances that any contingent liabilities arising in the
Incident have subsequently occurred and are to be recognised,
Energy Technology and Jinyan Electricity will be obligated to
compensate the contingent liabilities to GRG Huscoke by the
way of increasing GRG Huscoke's receivable due from Energy
Technology in the same amount as the contingent liabilities.

Pursuant to the Agreement, Energy Technology will
unconditionally transfer not less than 90% of the equity interests
of a target company (“Target Company”), which owned two
7. 1-meter top-loading coking furnaces with an aggregate
annual production capacity being not less than 1,200,000 tons
of coke, to the Group as the compensation of the Incident to
the Company and GRG Huscoke. The Company’s interest
in the Target Company will offset the total Receivables upon
the completion of the aforesaid transfer of equity interests. As
such, the receivables due from the non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary are classified as non-current assets as at 31
December 2020 as it is expected that the receivables will be
settled by other non-current assets.

FE W B B 2 B FE R PR AR SRARTE (48

Biat ()

(c)

(&)

R-ZFE-Z—F=FH+AH ALk
‘S EZ M GERFIR 25 &

REBEE TV — 1755 ([ZinE)])
R—GEEEZEGE ([EEEEG
F)  KEXRFGERZREERED
1850 BIEENRTE 45T R FE R E
MERER B R R B 1B 7T ) » 1R 1% (& 75
BE G BERPIRAEAES ST
DREFH RS MZENTE
JEY IR0 R FENCFIE ([EW IR ) -
FEZEMHFREENT AR ERE
B AW ERBIEE T - BEFF
BREEENHEEFALEFE
BEEXAREE  WHEERHBXREE
FsE 2 EMIRS FE st A B B2
&% 8BA) TR AE -

RIFZ 7% BEE RIS IR I 1 85 %
BEZAF(TBEAA]) T4 RI0%
RIETAEE  Z Al FEERES 7.1
Ko FEEZLAERETLRI20EHE
BRI TR N - (EB L FE Y
KRR EEMZA I - £ Lt 7
TR RN AR IERFIL
T 25 A5 UG IR S AE BB AR 7 LU -
REZFZZFFF=—A=4+—H AR
T A FEU IR 5045 /o H b FE 7 B B
A - B REN — T B 2 AR
JREE 2 EYCHR 18 7 4B B IE B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

22,

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK
BALANCES

22. ZRFBITER RERBTEF

2020 2019

—E-EH —E-NF

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIERITIER - 5,038
Cash and bank balances Be RIR1THERT 21,119 20,839

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank balances of
RMB4,504,000 (equivalent to HK$5,038,000) have been
frozen according to the civil ruling issued by a court in the
PRC in relation to dispute in respect of purchases agreements
between a subsidiary of the Group and it's supplier. The
restricted bank balances were denominated in RMB. During
the year, all amount due was fully repaid and the court in PRC
has issued the awards on 27 May 2020 that the frozen bank
accounts of GRG Huscoke be ordered to be de-frozen (note
34(b)).

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7

RZZE-—NAF+ZA=+—8" BE
REDEBR A A S E N E AR RE
IR 2 [ B PR AE W o P EE A2 2 At 4
mEMzREHTE  AKBERTER
A R ¥ 4,504,000 7T (18 & 545,038,000
BT R - XIRBIBITHERIAAR
KB -RAFEER  FIERKE 2=
B FEERER T _ZTFAHA
“TEBREMEOR TSHBREEM
FRRAEHVIRTTIR P (KT RE34(b)) °
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Re®K EFENF-—HAEZ=EAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —Z —FF + - A=+—HIFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. BEFEMNIKRK
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBERR REZAHFEZES
reporting periods, based on the invoice date, is as follows: JERTIR R Z IR DTN T

2020 2019

i —T-hEF

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Within 3 months =@EARN 266,073

3 to 4 months =Z=MEA 18,440

Over 4 months A Y {E A 192,145

476,658




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

24. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS 24. HtEAIRK - BEHRRE - B W
RECEIVED AND DEFERRED INCOME ERIEZERKA
2020 2019
—EB-EHF —E-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(&%)
Other payables and accrued charges Hih AR EREA 233,007 254,469
Dividend payables to non-controlling JE A FE 12 IR AR B AR B
shareholders 5,938 -
Contract liabilities (Note a) BREEHita) 169,335 313,239
Deferred income (Note b) EIEWA (HeEb) 5,344 5,034
Interest payable for Jinyan Electricity related & & & 110 {5 & &~ F &
borrowing (Note 5(a)) (K7t 5(a) 192,832 129,461
Other tax payable H e R IR 249,816 167,604
Tax penalty payable ERTHIESE 77,103 45,062
933,375 914,869
Less: Current portion W BNEREL o (928,031) (909,835)
Non-current portion JEBNEREB 7 5,344 5,034
Notes: KiaF -
(a) The movements of contract liabilities from contracts with (a) FARBEEBEHHFHREERE 1558
customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows: NEEFZEHEEZEEBE
ZHMT -
2020 2019
g g 2 —ZT-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 313,239 214,700
Recognised as revenue ERABKA (239,290) (188,452)
Receipt of advances LG E=EN 84,293 288,948
Exchange realignment ME H, 33 & 11,093 (1,957)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—~H 169,335 313,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —Z —FF + - A=+—HIFE

24. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS
RECEIVED AND DEFERRED INCOME (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations
unsatistied at end of year and expected to be recognised as
revenue in:

24.

Ht B IR - BETRIE - EWIE
ERIELEWRA ()
Hrat - (&)

(a) (%)

RERDPILEREXRERE FILE
BRI T FERFRUAZRZFE

2020 —ECEE
2021 —E-—F

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
products or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Deferred income represented government grant to subsidiaries
in the PRC with attaching conditions to be complied with, in
respect of the construction of atmospheric monitoring system,
which will be recognised as other income when all the required
conditions are complied with.

2020 2019

—E-EE —T—AF

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FHE T FAT

313,239

313,239
BHBEEAEBRE 5 EF KK

RE(HETEEFPURAELE)
18 7 & #5375 in 2 18 (R R 7%
BT

(b) BEHRAERERERERNZRK
T BY BT 2 12 BT B & (B 7
HETFIRIE) - BRI EHE I
L T ER RBEMKA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

25, RITREMEE

2020 2019 (Restated)
—E-%F —T-NE(EF)
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’ 000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
ERFIE (%) L FELT BEBENE(%) 55 TR
Bank borrowings: RITER
Secured bank borrowings ~ EE£EENEFHR
related to Jinyan Electricity ~ A#EBRTHEE 2018-2022 2018-2022
(Note &(a)) (Note a) (Hrit5(@) —E-N\EZ T )\EZE
(Hita) 485% Z—BZZF 353,913 485% —E-—F 333,804
353,913 333,804
Other borrowings: AMEE -
Unsecured other borrowings IR E M fE & 2020 2020
(Note d) (Wizta) 0% ZB=ZF 18,188 0% Z—ZT-ZF 18,188
Unsecured other borrowings  EEAEMEE on demand 2022
(Note c) (Hite) 10% REX 200,000 0% Z—B-=fF 200,000
Unsecured other HEEENEBN
borrowings related BEAEMEE
to Jinyan Electricity (Hiz5() 2016 2016
(Note 5(z) (Note b) (Hiith) 1278% Z—EB-~F 145,481 1278% Z—E—RF 137,031
363,669 355,219
717,582 689,023
Analysed into: PR
Within 12 months or on BRTZEARK
demand HERER 624,697 267,048
Inthe second year after Rk HIfA
the reporting period F_FEE 92,885 421,975
717,582 689,023
Notes: Hfat
(a) Bank borrowings were guaranteed by the non-controlling (a) RiITEERH—FINELAREE

shareholder of a subsidiary and related companies. Certain
bank borrowing of approximately RMB99,970,000 (equivalent
to HK$118,724,000) (2019. RMB99,970,000 (equivalent to
HK$111,826,000)) was secured by the pledge of a forest land

use right owned by a third-party entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

25.

26.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 25. BITREMEBEE ()

Notes: (continued) Biat - (&)

(b)  Other borrowings were guaranteed by an independent third (b) EMEEH—EBTE=TER-
party.

(c)  During the year, the Group has failed to make its contractual (c) RAFE KEBRESZTEMEER

interest payment of its other borrowing of HK$200,000,000,
which maturity date is in 2022. The lender of such borrowing is
able to declare the payment terms of the borrowing and accrued
interest as immediate payable or payable on demand at any
time. Subsequent to 23 March 2021, the lender and the Group
entered into memorandum of understanding on the default
interest payment. According to memorandum of understanding,
the event of default was removed upon the settlement of
outstanding interest and default interest on 23 March 2021.

(d) As at 31 December 2020, included in other borrowings were (d)
loans from a former Director, who resigned on 7 September
2018, of HK$1,751,000 (2019: HK$1,751,000) and a director of
GRG Huscoke of HK$3, 195,000 (2019: HK$3,195,000).

200,000,000& 7T #9 & #I FILE + Z 15
BR-OFE__FIH - ZEEHEH
AR BERE B 1 (5 B R FEF 7.8 £
S HEX BT AN (T BEK LA -
R-FE-_—F=ZH—-+=HZ &
A R E B HERFE G 5 AF
BB o IRIETIE G5 AV E
R-IFE-_—F=F-+=H#EEZEFX
1178 J 2 49 F 8 1 1 HRH °

R-ZFE-_FFf—_HA=+—H At
EEEE—SHHTEE (R=ZF—/N
F A+ HEF).2E 1,751,000
B (ZZFE—LF : 1,751,000/ 7T)
R &z —HEERZ B3 195000
BT (ZFE—J1L4F : 3,195,000;87T) °

LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TRINTAEENRRERARZBEES
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period: BB TEHEEAR :
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-TBHF+=-HA=+—H
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
BREMEEMRK FI 2 R{E
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT THET FHET
Not later than one year —F2ZA 5,311 (555) 4,756
Later than one year and not later —Z —F
than two years 1,188 (383) 805
Later than two years and not later —Z R F
than five years 3,563 (898) 2,665
More than five years BB A F 5,244 (537) 4,707
15,306 (2,373) 12,933
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 26. HEAE(E)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NAF+A=+—H
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
HIEBERK B A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FETT
Not later than one year —F2ZA 1,570 (436) 1,134
Later than one year and not later —Z= —
than two years 1,119 (397) 722
Later than two years and not later —Z R F
than five years 3,356 (966) 2,390
More than five years iR A F 6,059 (747) 5,312
12,104 (2,546) 9,558
2020 2019
—BEF —E-hF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Current liabilities nBBE 4,756 1,134
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE 8,177 8,424
12,933 9,558
The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate RiEEaMBRARANERZHERE
applied to lease liabilities recognised in the consolidated FrrER 2 EFHEARAESERE
statement of financial position is ranging from 4.9% to 5.3%. FIZEANTF49%FE53% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

27. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

27. BBEREYN

2020 2019
—BEF —E-hF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FER FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
At 1 January n—A—H 136,469 137,049
Financial guarantee provision recognised BRI IS IER B 130,784 136,859
Amortisation of financial guarantee provision B/ 7% & {5 8 & # §5 (130,781) (136,663)
Loss allowance on financial guarantee WIS IEIR G #) 2 1B B
contracts 5,644 11,033
Reversal of loss allowance on financial B ERE N BB ERD
guarantee contracts (11,046) (11,004)
Exchange realignment ME S8 8,130 (805)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 139,200 136,469
2020 2019
—E2-FF —TNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Financial guarantee provision BLUA T IR RER M B B R
recognised on: B -
— Guarantees 1 (Note (a)) — ¥R (f5F (@) 130,367 136,859
— Guarantees 2 (Note (b)) —¥ER2(f1aE (b)) 417 =
130,784 136,859

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group had provided
guarantees to an independent third party in respect of its bank
loan facilities in the sum of approximately RMB200 million in
favour of a bank in the PRC. The Group had recognised a
financial guarantee liability at the fair value of RMB 136,859,000
and RMB130,367,000, respectively, at the date of providing the
guarantees.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had provided guarantees
to certain related parties in respect of their bank loan facilities in
the sum of RMBZ23.7 million in favour of a bank in the PRC. The
Group had recognised a financial guarantee liability at the fair
value of RMB417,000 at the date of providing the guarantees.

Bt

(a)

(b)

R-F-NFR_F_FFE4+_H
=+—F XEFEGERTEZE
BBV E=FIEBRER 25495
ARB200H5E 7T TsABFEA
— KT - NEFE FIEHRERE A
2 FNHE AT E A 136,859,000 7T
K A R #% 130,367,000 7T #3751 75 #&
REE -

R-F-_FTFEF=—A=+—H &&
BERE TFHB T ARITERHE
B REHEHIEIR 2 RABALK237
BET » Xas AR Ba) —ZaR7T
AEFEFREERE AELALME )
AL 417,000 TTHEZH HIERE F -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/LIABILITY 28. BEELEHREBEEE GE
The movements in deferred tax asset/(liability) during the year ELEHBEE/ (BB RFRZE
are as follows: /N

Undistributed

Temporary profits of
differences on aPRC
impairment subsidiary Total
— B E K E
WEZ DREAZKRDE
TRt ER i Rl st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT
At 1 January 2019 RZZTE—hF—A—H = (11,253) (11,253)
Deferred tax credit to profit or £ AEIBzE AR Z
loss during the year PRIEFR I8 = 5,632 5,632
Exchange realignment ME H, 38 B - 28 28
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—NF+=A
1 January 2020 =t+—BRZE-ZTHF
—A—H - (5,593) (5,593)
Deferred tax credit to profit or A EIB 5 AR Z
loss during the year EIEFLIR 9,033 - 9,033
Exchange realignment ME H, 38 B 479 (345) 134
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF+=A
=+—-H 9,512 (5,938) 3,574
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

28.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (continued)
Undistributed profits of a PRC subsidiary
a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,

investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding tax on dividends distributable
by the subsidiary established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2020, deferred tax liability in respect
of HK$5,938,000 (equivalent to RMB5,000,000) (2019:
HK$5,593,000 (equivalent to RMB5,000,000)) has been
provided.

Loss available for offsetting against future taxable profits
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$34,936,000 (2019: HK34,936,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of HK$54 1,200,000
that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits
within 5 years of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these tax losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the above amounts can
be utilised.

28.

EEBIEEE (E)

—RFE I E AT 25 KER
REFBEEEMEEE NP BEKL
ZONERERARIMEETIRZ KL
BRI0% 2 BB - BEREREHR —F
TENF-A-HBER WERR -
ETHF+_A=+—HRERZAF -
B EIRIMEE BB R AR 2
AT B ML - BIBE Z BB X
AEEER - AKEmME - BARE
7310% ° A5 B A bt 7 SR o B 32
ZHBRARR-—ZTZENF—-A—BM
REEMAHEDIKRE ZBHMNE L8
MRZEE -

R-E-_FTE+-_A=+—H B2
IR 18 & (E#45 5,938,000 7 7T (18
Z AR #5000,0007T) (ZE—H
% :5,593,0008 7 (HERARKE
5,000,0007T)) °

] 44 P {E 1 68 R SR BERR B s 7 2 185 18
AEBREBELEZHBEERA
34,936,000 L (=& — L F :
34,936,000/ 7T) + Al (AR FR A A VR R
SHE £ E1E 2 DAL 2 AR R ERTE A o

AREBRPBRELEZRBEEIES
541,200,000/ 7T + A] 5 A B {EK
HEEBERZ AR Z A RERBHEF

WL R R IA B IR RELERIAE

E ARREER/TARERER
B AR B L S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. WA
2020 2020 2019 2019
it Sl 33 g 323 —E-NE “E-NE
No. of No. of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
‘000 HK$’ 000 000 HK$'000
LEREE (TR) TEx LTERHE (TR T
Authorised: B
Ordinary shares of SREE0I0BT
HK$0.10 (2019: (ZZ-—n%&:
HK$0.01) each 0.01%87) 2
LEk
At 1 January m—A—H 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Share consolidation Rin& Bt (Hztb)
(Note b) (18,000,000) - - -
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—~ 2,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:

287,071,349 (2019: 287,071,349 %
2,870,713,497) (Z2—N%F:
2,870,713,497 %) 28,707 28,707
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29. R (4Z)
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to BRETXARAEETETBRAES)
the below movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share ZFEARSHEWT -
capital is as follow:
Number of
shares in Share Share Treasury
issue capital premium share Total
ERT
RAEE R& RAEE ERRS7 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THEL FEL T
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 2,126,456,521 27,264 373,819 - 401,083
Conversion of convertible bonds % 2 AT # &% 144,256,976 1,443 - - 1,443
Transfer of Consideration Shares &R B (7 (#ita)

(Note a) - - - (27,265) (27,265)
Distribution of treasury shares KB G = - (27,265) 27,265 -
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NE

1 January 2020 +ZA=+-8k

“ZT-FTE-—H—H 2,870,713,497 28,707 346,554 - 375,261
Share consolidation (Note b)) Ix{n & BF (#i:b) (2,583,642,148) = = = =
At 31 December 2020 RZBZTF

+-A=+—-H 287,071,349 28,707 346,554 - 375,261
Notes: HIat -
(a)  Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement entered into between (@) WREARAHE—-FEBLE =R

(b)

the Company and an independent third party in July 2018, the
Company issued 129,831,263 ordinary shares at market price
of HK$0.26 per share as consideration for acquisition of issued
share of an associate.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
19 November 2020, the Board announces that approval has
been granted by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Consolidated
Shares. The Share Consolidation is effective on 23 November
2020. After the shares consolidation, every ten of the existing
issued of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company was consolidated into one consolidated share of par
value of HK$0.10 each.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share

options issued under the schemes are included in note 30 to

the consolidated financial statements.

(b)

—E—NFL AT ZRE 55
KRB 1B A AR 0.26 78 T 7T
129,831,263 K Z B ik + 1E AWM fE —
B E R EZE TR Z 1B °

DI ARG - FE—FFL—H+AN
AH#EZ AL EBSEHELAT
MZEESEHEASHBRNEZ FTTR
BE ROAHR-FE-_ZTEFEL—FH
A ZALM c RBGEGE - AR
IR AN o 7 + R AR ET (B 0.01 8 T
HBEEEZETREEEGE—RE
BRETEO. 108 T4 AR 17 °

AR BB &8 RAR B AT 81T
BB BEN SRR RERN

30

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the share option scheme include the directors
and employees of the Group. A share option scheme became
effective on 31 May 2002 and expired on 31 May 2012 (the
“2002 Scheme”). A new share option scheme was adopted
and became effective on 28 March 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”).
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2002 Scheme and
2013 Scheme (collectively, the “Share Option Schemes”) will
remain in force for ten years from the effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Schemes
was an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the respective dates of
approval of the Share Option Schemes. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options granted to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Schemes within any 12-month
period was limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting
of the Company.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting of the
Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. Options may
be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the share
options to the end of the exercise period.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7
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EEBRNELBERM A ERSHEHE
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—=F58 ) -BRIBBFHIBETIN
TETEEHER T -=F:E (%5
TEIEBAR AARECT &) iS R A A B s
BEB+F-

1R 15 B Ak B 4 5 81 35 B M AR i R
TEBRRE s RSBRBEEETR
AR F AR R AR L RE AR B A T &)
ZEBEBHEETRMNAEZ10% -
R B R S TR 1218 A B
AEAERSEER N ZBRAER
TEROTzZBNESHERRARBR
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ARSEYIFNTESTZERME -
o - AR 1218 A BfE | A R A
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BREALEHOBEANQRREME
BEETRMN01% REE (REALR
ARORELERZERAE) BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings of the Company.

Under the 2013 Scheme, options were granted to eligible
participants and there were outstanding (but not yet exercised)
options to subscribe for a total number of 10,400,000 shares as
at 31 December 2018, representing approximately 0.4% of the
issued share capital of the Company at that date and the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements. The
outstanding options granted under the 2013 Scheme shall be
subject to the provisions of the 2013 Scheme and Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 10,400,000 share
options lapsed at the end of the exercise period in accordance
with terms of the 2013 Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.

30.

BRuETS (E)

BROABZOEERESEET K1
BERATHRSE () AR ARG E
AR E BB P 2 M E ¢ (i)
ARBBMD N BEEE LB AER
7 BB R B2 YT E ¢ R (iii) A
NEBD 2 EE -

BRAEYERTHSAEAZTERERL
RARBBRRAE ERFEZHEF -

BEZZF—=F:8 AQARAEGE
BSEERLERARE RZ2F—N
F+_A=+—8 KQAHBET
FESN (HER ARTTEE) 2 AR EAfE AT SR B
& 10,400,000 2 & 19 * 15 A& A AR
Z B RS iRe U EmRER &R
ZBEITRALN04% - BIFE—_ZT—=
FrralRE 2 RITEERAEAEST
ZE—=FFE R LETRANEITEZ
{53 °

HE-_Z—hF+_A=+—HItF
€ 10,400,000 B #ERIE —F — =
FEr 8 Z G ITE B REF KK -

AR AR AT IR BT A R B Z IR A

ZEABE S S B EZ T E(E
TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

31. RESERVES 31. f#E
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company RARMEERANFE 2 EBFBUOT
during the year are as follows:
Share Capital Convertible
Share  Treasury Contributed  Special option redemption bonds Accumulated
premium share  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total
BROE BARE TRRES
ROEE ERRH HABE  RARE fi fi BE 2iFE @it
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000 HK$'000
TR ThR T Tin Tin Tin T Thn T
Note(a) — Mote(b)
fida) i)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 373819 - 1,689,847 17,275 2509 85 368 (2,161,228) (77,325)
Loss for the year and total TERBRRAFERE
comprehensive expense R
for the year - - - - - - - (17,700) (17,700)
Extinguishment of 2017 Convertble 28k 2 Z 5 —tET#
bonds k&% - - - - - - (368) - (368)
Recognition of 2019 Convertible ~ EBRZ-E-NFA#
bonds K& - - - - - - 12 - 12
Conversion of convertible bonds AT AR EH - - 41834 - - - (12) - 41822
Transfer of consideration shares ~ E(tERH - (27.269) - - - - - - (27.269)
Distrioution of treasury shares PRERRR (27.265) 27,265 - - - - - - -
Lapsed share option BN R - - - - (2,50) - - 2509 -
At 31 December 2019 and RZF-NE+2A
1 January 2020 =+-AR=Z-%F
-A-8 346,554 - TG 17275 - 8 - (176419 (30824)
Loss for the year and total rERBRRAFERE
comprehensive expense X8
for the year - - - - - - - (176514)  (176,514)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFE+Z4
=+-A 346,554 - TG 17 - 8 -2 (2573%)
Notes: Ktaz -
(a)  The contributed surplus represents the excess of the value (a) WREBRZF-NN—FRAEE

of shares converted upon conversion of the 2008 Convertible
Bonds and 2019 Convertible Bonds over the nominal amount
of the ordinary shares issued pursuant to section 40(1) of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the credit arising from the
capital reorganisation.

(b)  The special reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date when
the shares were acquired by the Company and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —Z —FF + - A=+—HIFE

32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 32. BEEAFERERZHEZEWS

CONTROLLING INTERESTS A H]
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non- REERFEREZ 2 ASERBER
controlling interests are set out below: Al FEBEHEHIIOT
GRG Huscoke SENE
2020 2019
—B-FF —ZE-NF
Percentage of equity interest held by R+ZA=+—RAZHFER
non-controlling interests at 31 December EREREAS L 10%
2020 2019
—E-%F —ET-hEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FER FAT
(restated)
(&%)
(Loss)/profit for the year allocated to DEEIFERER T AFE
non-controlling interests (E518) & F 2,815
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R ¥re& HE 2 IRz R
interests at the reporting date HE=to 34,761
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

32.

33.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 32. BHEEARFERERZIEZEWES
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) DE(#E)
GRG Huscoke (continued) SEMNE (&)
2020 2019
—E-BF —ET-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(&%)
Revenue WA 1,176,982 1,605,356
Other income and gains N & 283,174 252,059
Total expenses X 458 (1,938,728) (1,822,701)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BER), & F (478,572) 34,714
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income AFEE2A X)) e
for the year 4 FE (484,039) 37,874
Current assets RBEE 1,800,852 1,893,156
Non-current assets IERBEE 107,976 573,577
Current liabilities mENAE (1,973,474) (1,917,717)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (112,345) (241,031)
Net cash flows from operating activities REKEEB2RERE
R 34,213 6,663
Net cash flows used in investing activiies FBARREBERK 2R ERE
FRE (29,185) (6,697)
Net cash flows used in financing activites FARBEEB RERE
P (1,587) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash R & RIBE&EEWEM,
equivalents OmA) 588 3,441 (34)
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. RAREE

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities which have not been provided

for in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

34. LITIGATIONS

(a)

The Group received notification issued by Il &
KEMH & ARZEBT (Shanxi Province Taiyuan City
Intermediate People’s Court) (the “Taiyuan Court”) dated
20 May 2016 in which |1 78 BB %77 B BR 2 &) (Shanxi
International Logistic Co., Ltd.) (“Shanxi Logistic”)
commenced legal action against GRG Huscoke.
Pursuant to the statement of claim, GRG Huscoke failed
to deliver goods and failed to repay the prepayment of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$59,035,000) received
from Shanxi Logistic in accordance with the cooperation
agreements entered into by Shanxi Logistic and GRG
Huscoke in March 2013, on 1 April 2014 and 1 May 2015
respectively. As a result, Shanxi Logistic demanded
GRG Huscoke to repay RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$59,035,000) plus profits forgone of RMB14,894,000
(equivalent to HK$17,410,000) and related legal expense
of RMB183,000 (equivalent to HK$214,000) up to 29
February 2016 as a result of the non-delivery of goods by
GRG Huscoke.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a civil
mediation agreement (the “Civil Mediation Agreement”)
was entered into to confirm, among others, that the sums
owed by GRG Huscoke to Shanxi Logistic amounted to
RMB65,077,000 (equivalent to HK$76,659,000) as of 11
April 2016 and such sums should be repaid on or before
30 May 2016. Subsequently, GRG Huscoke, Shanxi
Logistic, Jinyan Electricity and the controlling owner
of Jinyan Electricity (collectively, as the Guarantors of
GRG Huscoke) entered into a settlement agreement (the
“Settlement Agreement”) regarding the execution of the
Civil Mediation Agreement. Pursuant to the Settlement
Agreement, GRG Huscoke shall settle RMB31,000,000
(equivalent to HK$36,500,000) by installments by
31 December 2016, and monthly installments of
RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,100,000) from
January 2017 onwards until the full settlement of the
outstanding sums (including interest accrued and to be
accrued thereon).

34.
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(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

34. LITIGATIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

GRG Huscoke has made partial payments to Shanxi
Logistic after the date of the Settlement Agreement.
On 30 April 2019, GRG Huscoke, Shanxi Logistic and
the Guarantors of GRG Huscoke entered into a debt
reconciliation and settlement agreement given that GRG
Huscoke has encountered financial difficulties, pursuant
to which GRG Huscoke shall settle the outstanding
sums of approximately RMB54,824,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$61,326,000) by three instalments by
31 July 2019.

On 22 January 2021, Shanxi Logistic lodged the claim
to Taiyuan Court again and demanded the outstanding
sums of the principal amount of approximately
RMB47,324,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$58,062,000) together with the accrued interests
of approximately RMB20,130,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$24,697,000) immediately from GRG
Huscoke. As such, GRG Huscoke has been in negotiation
with Shanxi Logistic for the repayment schedule. On
31 May 2021, GRG Huscoke, Shanxi Logistic and the
Guarantors of GRG Huscoke entered into the second
settlement agreement (“2nd Settlement Agreement”),
pursuant to which GRG Huscoke shall only repay the
outstanding sums of the principal amount under the strict
condition that GRG Huscoke will settle the amounts by
instalments by each scheduled date in full before 20
December 2021. The amount of the accrued interests
shall not be waived in the event that GRG Huscoke fails to
settle the outstanding sums on any scheduled repayment
date.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, no further legal
action was lodged by Shanxi Logistics up to the approval
date of the financial statements. In the opinion of the
Directors, appropriate provision has been made in the
financial statements as at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

34. LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

During the period from 2011 to 2015, GRG Huscoke
signed few purchase contracts with | 74 555 % 45 i %
% $4 2 7 (“Shouyang Coal Marketing”) for purchase
of coal from Plaintiff. In June 2019, Shouyang Coal
Marketing confirmed the outstanding balance amount
due from GRG Huscoke amounted to RMB23,009,000
(equivalent to HK$25,738,000) plus accrued interest (“the
Debt”) with GRG Huscoke. However, GRG Huscoke did
not pay the Debt due to Shouyang Coal Marketing at that
moment.

On 7 July 2019, the Shouyang Coal Marketing litigated
a court case with GRG Huscoke in E55 % A BABT (the
“Shouyang Court”) for request of repayment of the Debt
immediately. On 8 October 2019, the Shouyang Court
judged GRG Huscoke need to settle the Debt due to
Shouyang Coal Marketing plus handling fee amounted to
RMB184,000 (equivalent to HK$206,000) by 18 October
2019 in accordance with the civil judgment. However,
GRG Huscoke did not settle the Debt and handling fee
based on the judgement issued by the Shouyang Court.

On 20 November 2019, the Shouyang Court issued an
additional execution notice to request GRG Huscoke to
settle the Debt and handling fee instantly. In addition,
the bank accounts of GRG Huscoke amounted to
RMB4,504,000 (equivalent to HK$5,038,000) were frozen
by the execution notice (note 22). As at 31 December
2019, GRG Huscoke repaid RMB1,015,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,135,000) to Shouyang Coal Marketing and current
outstanding balance was amounted to RMB21,994,000
(equivalent to HK$24,603,000) plus accrued interest and
handling fee.

34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

34. LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

On 25 April 2020, GRG Huscoke has entered into
settlement agreement with the Shouyang Coal Marketing
and the controlling owner of the non-controlling
shareholder and on 22 May 2020, GRG Huscoke has
entered into settlement supplementary agreement with
the Shouyang Coal Marketing. GRG Huscoke has agreed
to repay the outstanding amount to the Shouyang Coal
Marketing and the controlling owner of the non-controlling
shareholder has made personal guarantee to settle the
outstanding amount if GRG Huscoke has failed to repay
the outstanding amount. The Shouyang Court has issued
the awards on 27 May 2020 that the frozen bank accounts
of GRG Huscoke be ordered to be de-frozen.

On 16 December 2020, the Shouyang Court has issued
the award that the amount due from the case was fully
settled. GRG Huscoke repaid the remaining outstanding
balance plus handling fee and interest penalty based on
court decision.

With reference to the Company’s announcement dated 21
October 2021, the Company discovered on the public
information platform and noticed that a case of GRG
Huscoke was first filed and enforced by the Intermediate
People’s Court of Luliang City on 13 September 2021.
Based on the investigation conducted by the Company, it
is noted that the litigation was due to the fact that China
Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Luliang Branch
(“Minsheng Bank”) had entered into a working capital
loan agreement with GRG Huscoke on 29 March 2017,
pursuant to which GRG Huscoke borrowed an amount of
RMB99,970,000 from Minsheng Bank for a term of one
year with a loan interest rate of 4.35% (the “Loan”), and
pledged by the forest land use right of Shanxi Qiantong
New Energy Development Group Company Limited* (1L
@M RAZEEEEFR A A) (“Qiantong New
Energy”’) with an area of 1076.19 Mu as security. Jinyan
Electricity, Xiaoyi Jinyan Building Materials Company Ltd*
(ZEmeaMAEMBRAQAF) (“Jinyan Building
Materials”), Energy Technology, Mr. Yang Ge*, Mr. Wen
Kezhong* and Ms. Liu Yanping* (collectively the “Joint
and Several Guarantors”) assumed joint and several
guarantee liabilities for the Loan. Upon the expiry of the
Loan on 31 March 2018, GRG Huscoke failed to pay the
principal and interest when it was overdue.

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z - ZF+ - =+—HILFE

34. LITIGATIONS (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Minsheng Bank filed a lawsuit request with the court and
the Intermediate People’s Court of Luliang City of Shanxi
Province in July 2019 and rendered the first instance
judgement on 3 November 2020 (the “Judgement”).
Minsheng Bank then filed an appeal against the first
instance judgement and the High People’s Court of
Shanxi Province rendered the final judgement on 5 July
2021.

According to the final judgement, (i) GRG Huscoke shall
repay the principal and interest of the Loan in the sum
of approximately RMB109,694,000 as of 21 June 2019
to Minsheng Bank within one month after the Judgement
becomes effective (the “Debt”); (ii) GRG Huscoke shall
repay the agreed interest and penalty interest from 22
June 2019 to the date of full repayment of the outstanding
principal amount of the Loan, based on the principal
of RMB RMB99,970,000, to Minsheng Bank within one
month after the Judgement becomes effective; and (iii)
the Joint and Several Guarantors assumed joint and
several repayment liabilities and shall have the right to
recover compensation against GRG Huscoke upon the
enforcement of joint and several repayment liabilities.

The litigation forms part of the Incident as disclosed in
note 5(a) to the consolidated financial statements and
the Company has provided the relevant amounts of the
Loan and accrued interests and penalty interests to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Pursuant to the Agreement as disclosed in note 21(c) to
the consolidated financial statements, Energy Technology
and Jinyan Electricity are obligated to coordinate and
facilitate debt negotiations between GRG Huscoke and
its creditors to settle the loans and the relevant contingent
liabilities undertaken by GRG Huscoke arising in the
Incident.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

35. HEEALTZRS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed (@) BRUHELEVBHREMM TR
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the il 2 X B R EEBRIN  REER
Group had the following transactions with related parties FREFEALTETIRS -
during the year:
2020 2019
—ECRH —E-hEF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
k=3 FEx T T
With the non-controlling B 1 A 3R AR AR OR.
shareholder of a subsidiary:
Payment on lease liabilities HEEBANK ji 1,128 1,126
With related companies which HEAEANT (BB QA
are subsidiaries of the non- FEVE AR AR R < B B
controlling shareholder of a ~a])
subsidiary:
Purchase of sundry materials K E YR i — 3,522
Transportation income EwA i - 679
With related companies which BEE N R (BB AF
are associates of the non- FEVE AR IR R 2 B
controlling shareholder of a ~al)
subsidiary:
Purchase of refined coal FREB IS i = 56,826
Purchases of sundry materials MY R i - 60

Notes:

(1)

(i)

The transactions were conducted on bases mutually
agreed by the respective parties, with reference to
prevailing market rates or prices similar to those transacted
with the Group's third party customers/suppliers.

The rental expense was charged based on terms mutually
agreed between the contractual parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. HEEALZRE (&)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (b) EEEALTZKRESHR
(i)  Balances with the non-controlling shareholder at the () RMEEREFZERBJR
end of the reporting period are set out in note 21 to BB RSB mE
the consolidated financial statements. MizE21 o
(i) A summary of the Group’s balances (before loss (i) AEEEREMBEENRZ
allowance) with other related companies is set out HEer (B BEEBH#R) 2
below. PR E SR T -
2020 2019
—BEF —E-hEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT

Trade receivables from related BB A 7 2 E 5 EUIIR K

companies 39,573 38,574
Prepayments, deposits, and BENR CBNFIE  ES
other receivables from related T E i i MR 3R
companies 116,852 99,665
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H” 156,425 138,239
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) AEBMETEEEASZFHM :
Group:
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EZREMFEETEREAERSE
management during the year was as follows: AZBemT :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
Fees, salaries, allowances and we  FHe EERREY
benefits in kind &7 6,949 7,906
Pension scheme contributions RAREFFT B 5K 41 56
6,990 7,962
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEME 2E—PFBIRNREE
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. WIS FRRMIE AT ©

?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 36. #ZABE&RERKH

FLOWS
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities: BMEREMEE 2B EEE :
Bank and other
Lease liabilities borrowings Total
HERE RITREMEE @gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FAET
(restated)
(E7)
At 1 January 2019 R-Z—n&F—F—H - 433,018 433,018
Changes from financing cash ~ BIEBR & HREE
flows - 258,847 258,847
Non-cash changes EISRY
— recognition upon initial —BRERBERMERSE
application of HKFRS 16 B FE 16 HEHER 9,612 = 9,612
- foreign exchange movement ~ —4NE &) (54) (2,842) (2,896)
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZT-NF+ZA
1 January 2020 “t+—HARRZZE=ZF
#—H—H 9,558 689,023 698,581
Changes from financing cash ~ BIEBR&REE
flows (4,525) (459) (4,984)
Non-cash changes FREED
- new lease entered —¥EIHE 6,692 - 6,692
— interest accrued —JEET IS 684 - 684
— foreign exchange movement ~ —SMNEZH) 524 29,018 29,542
At 31 December 2020 RZZE=-ZTF+=FA
=—E 12,933 717,582 730,515
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. REREsz2EMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RMERR SEeRTACZIEME
instruments as at the end of the reporting periods are as o
follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(restated)
(E7)
Financial assets: TRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKATIR 2 S BEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BIEREMEESEY) 1,873,889 1,623,482
Financial assets at fair value through profit A EFFAEZ Z &/l
or loss BiE 1,508 1,508
1,875,397 1,624,990
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET THTT
Financial liabilities: SRIAME:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LHEHEHK ARz EE 1,691,363 1,726,773
Financial guarantee contracts IS ERE ) 139,200 136,469
1,830,563 1,863,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e %R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

38.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

38.

’D\ftﬁé g

DRAEFHERE

”Aﬁfﬁxzﬁé.ﬁrg REMmS2EERE
MKFRXZPHEEEARNERS

.
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TE%%FM?‘Z%Z%EE&E’]% N
DR=EFR

—EBBAE: AEER
LAHX MEREEXRREY
H¥R(E CREEHE) o

n‘l’i E H;q—,[
A & B T 5

F_EBBAE REEXRRBEEX
BRI BENGAE(E-—HRARE
HEREERIN) -

—BBAE EEXBENTAE
RBAME-

$‘§IE’JBZ%7%E§@Z$§;T¥H’]$EE}Z
/ """"" @E’Jaﬁﬂﬁﬁm_“ﬁ?&%ﬁ&m
EAREL -

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December RZZEZZEFRZZT—NF+=A
2020 and 2019: ST —RZRARESREBERREE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
RERTS EXT BEART
ZHE HEEE HEEE @t
(Levell) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2020
(£—E) (B=E) (8=E) et 33
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TET FET TET TERT
Description 1t
Private club debenture A B PTES 1,508 - - 1,508

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

38.

39.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 38. ARMEFEE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DRESRER(E)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
ORI EARA BEARNA
ZRE BRI BIREIE HBEt
(Level1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2019
(B—FE) (=) (=) =ZZ—n#%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET FHET
Description Si=pus
Private club debenture TLABFES 1,508 = = 1,508
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value AFEERN RemEEAEMEEN
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers TR EEF_E2HEIEALE
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial EER RE-EUEEANED
liabilities (2019: Nil). ZBER(ZZE—NEF: &) -
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. cEEAKREEEERBEK

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise other
borrowings and convertible bonds. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables, other
payables and accruals, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in RMB, US$ and HK$. The
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
the monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
in currencies other than functional currencies of the
respective group entities.

AEEZTIEZSRTASHEEMEES
RABRES ZFeMITAECEE
BENABEESEARERLENMS -
AEEEETHMUTRAEREERE
B PInE SRR e R EM
RUWIRF RERRTETF EFE
R - B A R 5K B B &t R IR
HEERREELEER -

AEEERTAZTIZRABRAINER
BR-EERREABESRR -EF
ERFEHEEESEABRRZK
R WHEALAR e

S LB

rEEEREE BERRS
BERUAARYE %ﬁ&f%ﬁ?r
B AKEREREERAED
*ﬁ%ﬁ%@;ﬁgzmﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁl\ﬁ
WEHEmMAXIMNERR -

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Certain of the Group’s liabilities are denominated in US$.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of US$ against HK$. The Group
considered the impact on the equity and profit before tax
from the change in US$, exchange rate was nominal at
the end of the reporting period since HK$ is pegged to
Us$.

The Group does not have any hedging instruments
outstanding. The Group will constantly review the
economic situation and its foreign currency risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in the
future as may be necessary.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and bank balances and restricted bank deposit, trade
and other receivables and deposits and amount due
from the non-controlling shareholder and its affiliates.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position, which is
net of loss allowance, represents the Group’s exposure
to credit risk without taking into account the value of any
collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Cash and bank balances

The Group has limited credit risk with its deposits in
financial institutions, which are leading and reputable
and are assessed as having low credit risk. The Group
has not suffered any significant losses arising from
the non-performance by these parties in the past and
management does not expect this position to change in
the future.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. The Group
limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by
establishing maximum payment period.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
due on credit. The credit period is generally O to 30
days. Advances are required for certain customers. The
Directors consider that these arrangements enable the
Group to limit its credit risk exposure. As at 31 December
2020, approximately 47% (2019: 40%) and 96% (2019:
64%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest and the five largest customer respectively,
there was a significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. The Group did not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
the trade receivable balances. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range
of clients and the trade receivables are categorised
by common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
The expected loss rate used in the provision matrix is
calculated for each category based on the past three
years and adjusted for current and forward-looking factors
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s estimate
on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. There was no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.

39.

TREREERERBE(E)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)
The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL
for trade receivables using a provision matrix as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 are summarised below:

At 31 December 2020

(b) EERR(E)
EZ Bk (&)
BREERRRR
—T-hEFE+ZA=1+—H&KA
BiREEp E ZREIRFIEL Z
BHMEEERZERGANT

3. ¢REREEREREE (&)

—E-TFER

R-E-Z2HF+-A=t—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
BEHEEXR AR EE BEREE FERE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Not past due R 481 A No
1% 287,905 2,050 =
Less than 6 months BEA DR 6 1E A No
past due 18% 123,958 22,361 =
More than 6 months 15 HA R 48 6 E A No
past due 40% 302,286 119,587 &
714,149 143,998
At 31 December 2019 R-EB-NAF+-A=+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
TREBERX IR E BEEE BEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHETT FHETT
Not past due K780 5 No
- 261,105 = E
Less than 6 months B EA DR 6 18 A No
past due 0% 121,392 95 =
More than 6 months 160 HA 8 48 6 & A No
past due 17% 313,471 52,092 E
695,968 52,187

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

30. SREREERAEREE (&)

(b) EERR(E)

Trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$143,998,000 (2019: HK$52,187,000)
on the trade receivables. The movement in the loss
allowance for trade receivables during the year is
summarised below:

ESEKKRSS(E)
RZZEZZFEF+=—A=+—H"
REBEGE Z ERIRREREER
1% 143,998,0008 7T (ZE—Hh
% 152,187,000/ 7T) - £ >
B o RBIRR 2 BB R ES 5
T

2020 2019

—EB-EF —ET-NEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
F&T FHET
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 52,187 52,876
Reversal of loss allowance, net B EsEREE - FE 84,127 (381)
Exchange realignment fE 3 AR 7,684 (308)
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H 143,998 52,187
Other receivables and deposits HMENRAREZES

The Group considers that the other receivables and
deposits have low credit risk based on the debtors' strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and low risk of default. Impairment on other
receivables is measured on 12-month ECL and reflects
the short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience on the debtors historical utilisation
pattern of deposits paid and the financial position of
the counterparties by reference to, among others, their
management or audited accounts, and adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability
of default of these financial assets, as well as the loss
upon default in each case. The management of the
Group considers the ECL of these financial assets to be
insignificant after taking into account the financial position
and credit quality of the counterparties.

REER S H Ao 8 YRR R IZ
cHBEEEERR  KBERER
ABBRARBENREHETEEL
RengfEAENRRE - H
i, FE Y 0R 3R 2 B T3+ — 18 A
BHEEBBEAELRBRAAT
Rk 2 BIR AT

KAt EBEEERR RREE
EERRES 8L ERALANE
EmkeREELS HREER
BN AKREEERHEHALZ
ENRENESHARAZUNEE
REEBBREREXSHFZH
B X2 E (KR RE)HE
BHAEZIRE  YREBAR
EXZABEERERRZETFLE
PREZTT¥ 2 —REEBFRIEH
HAE URAZEEREEZE
KB EAREIBA T ZBOER -
REBRHHF 2B RS
EERR AKEEEERS
ZETRMEEZEMEEBEL
TEKX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables and deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$93,280,000 (2019: HK$13,688,000) on
the balances. The movement in the loss allowance for the
balances during the year is summarised below.

39. ¢REAMEEREREE (&)

(b) EEREE)
HERIRA RS (&)
RZZZTF+=-A=+—8"
AEERETEREEEE
93,280,000 7T (=& — L5 :
13,688,000 7T) - F N & 7%

CEBREBEDHIANT -

2020 2019

g et —hE

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FER FAET

At beginning of the reporting period R R 25 Hi 4] 13,688 12,526

Increase in allowance B N 77,280 1,235
Exchange realignment b H S 2,312 (73)

At the end of the reporting period RS ER 93,280 13,688
Amounts due from the non-controlling shareholder of FEW I B 2 5] FE 2 AR g 3R R L It

a subsidiary and its affiliates BAAFE

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the amount due from the non-controlling
shareholder and its affiliates is credit impaired, the Group
has taken into account the historical actual credit loss
experience on the non-controlling shareholder and its
affiliates and their financial position with reference to
their management accounts and adjusted for forward-
looking factor, guaranteed amount in Guarantee
Agreement mentioned in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, in estimating the probability
of default of the amounts from the non-controlling
shareholder and its affiliates, as well as the loss upon
default. The management of the Group considers that the
credit risk on the amounts is significant, however, their
ECL is considered to be insignificant after taking into
consideration of the above factors.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

()

Credit risk (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

At the end of the reporting period, the management has
performed impairment assessment, and concluded that
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of the financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL. Loss allowance of approximately
HK$5,644,000 (2019: HK$11,033,000) was recognised
in the profit or loss. Details of the financial guarantee
contracts are set out in note 27.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
other borrowings.

The maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Group
as at the end of the reporting periods, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

At 31 December 2020

39.

(b)

(c)

within 1 year

TREREERERBE(E)

EERK (&)

B BIERE
RIREER - B EHEITIHERT
iy I TE B Y56 HE SR DA SR B 75
BREQNEER R I & AR
me Bt NREBTEREE
REANEBERBERAE N 12E
REHEEBENESEIE -B
i8R E 1B HHE £ 5,644,000
Bt (ZF — L% : 11,033,000
BIT) cBRMBERELHZF
BRI FE27 ©

REBEEERE
AEEZBREREBEREME
EMESE ZFHENEEEEER
E 2 RES -

R E R - ZRERTAEREA
BENRzAEESRARINE
I

R-ZE-_EF+-A=+—H

or on demand 1to 5 years Total
1FAFRER 1E5%F Mt
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET THET TRT
Trade payables Z 5 ESIRK 359,736 - 359,736
Other payables, accruals and H M T IR K -
deposit received FEETFRIE R
YIRS 601,112 - 601,112
Bank and other borrowings R REMEE 624,697 92,885 717,582
Interest portion of other EMEER
borrowings FMEE S 30,357 11,369 41,726
Financial guarantee contracts IEEREH 223,700 - 223,700
Lease liabilities HEBE 5,311 9,995 15,306
1,844,913 114,249 1,959,162
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E —Z - FTF+ - A=+—-HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3. TREAREEEERKE (Z)
POLICIES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEBIE£REARE)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=-_A=+—H
within 1 year
or on demand 1to 5 years Total
1FRARIZER 1254 HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Trade payables 2 S EMIRRK 476,658 = 476,658
Other payables, accruals and H M ET IR -
deposit received FEETRIA K
Bz e 551,534 = 551,534
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 267,048 421,975 689,023
Interest portion of other HEmEERN
borrowings M EEB 30,861 41,066 71,927
Financial guarantee contracts PEEREL 223,700 - 223,700
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,570 10,534 12,104
1,551,371 473,575 2,024,946
(d) Capital management (d) EXEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

30. SREREERAEREE (&)

Capital management (continued) (d) BAREER(E)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REBERBEEFERUESM
is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt BEFETECEEABIL R
includes trade payables, other payables, accruals and RERARN - B FHEBEFLN
deposits received, bank and other borrowings, lease BRIRe MIRTTEFELZREIET
liabilities and tax payable, net of restricted bank deposits GRiEzESEMIENR  EfbfE
and cash and bank balances. Capital includes equity IR - BETRIERBEWIZS -
attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing ratios RITREMEE HEBERE
as at the end of the respective reporting periods were as NRIE - EXRBIEAREHESA
follows: JEE R - M BB 2MEBRZ
BEBBLLEET
2020 2019
—E-EF ZT—NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FTERT FHIT
Trade payables 2 5 BRI 359,736 476,658
Other payables, accruals and deposit  H At fEFIR 3K « FEETZE &
received Eei & 928,031 909,835
Bank and other borrowings RIT M HMEE 717,582 689,023
Lease liabilities HEBE 12,933 9,558
Tax payable FERT IR 20,481 16,116
Less: Cash and bank balances and & : & MIRTT4HETE N
restricted bank deposits 2B Hll1F 3 (21,119) (25,877)
Net debt (ERIE 2,017,644 2,075,313
Capital — equity attributable to owners & RN Al A A FEAG A% 42
of the Company (111,409) 378,337
Capital and net debt BARRERFE 1,906,235 2,453,650
Net gearing ratio FEEBMGBLE 106% 85%
Fair value (e) 2RE

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair value.

REMBRRNRAMROAEHE
CRMEERERABBZIREER
HEBHAAMBEMRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e %R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z —Z - ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 July 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. ZHAO Xu Guang

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. AR T Z B MR R
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the BEARRAIRRERR T B RNE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: H &R ZZDT
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE - 152,122
Total non-current assets FARBEEHEE - 152,122
Current assets RBEE
Prepayment, deposit and other receivables FEfTFXI8 « & K H i fE Uk
R X 208 504
Cash and bank balances Be MBITER 359 14,162
Total current assets MEBEELTE 567 14,666
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables, accruals and deposit H M ERIRR - FERTRIE K
received BlliEE 28,478 16,086
Amount due to subsidiaries JEST BB A R FUIAR 720 =
Other borrowings HEmEE 200,000 =
Total current liabilities REEERE 229,198 16,086
Net current liabilities REEEFE (228,631) (1,420)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERREERE (228,631) 150,702
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Amount due to subsidiaries AN NI S - 2,819
Other borrowings HEmEE - 200,000
- 202,819
NET LIABILITIES EEFHE (228,631) (52,117)
Capital and reserves BERK#1E
Share capital A& A 28,707 28,707
Reserves ki (257,338) (80,824)
TOTAL DEFICIT A 4e5E (228,631) (52,117)

R-FT-_—_FtA_+/\BRE=E
HAERREEM WA TIIEEAE

wE

Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick

i) BEOBEE
Director Director
e EFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEUBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E — L - FF+ - A=+—-HILFE

41,

42,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 March 2021, after trading hour, GRG Huscoke entered
into the Cooperation Agreement with Energy Technology and
Jinyan Electricity, pursuant to which, GRG Huscoke entrusts
Energy Technology for the construction of a coking furnace
with a total estimated investment of RMB600,000,000.

As at the date of this report, the Cooperation Agreement has
not been terminated but the terms of which were modified and
supplemented by the terms of the Agreement as a result of the
Incident. On 15 March 2022, the Company entered into the
Agreement with GRG Huscoke, Energy Technology, Jinyan
Electricity and Xiaoyi ILNG, which (among others) set forth the
supplement on the terms of the Cooperation Agreement and
the principal terms of the compensation and indemnity to the
Group in respect of the Incident. The Group may maintain the
existing business model with the target assets and resume its
coke production and trading business operation. Details please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19 April
2022. The transaction is subject to the shareholders’ approval
at the special general meeting of the Company. As at the date
of this report, the Very Substantial Transaction has not yet
completed.

On 26 July 2022, Rich Key Enterprise Limited (“Rich Key”), a
direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the Disposal Agreement with the legal representative of GRG
Huscoke, pursuant to which, among other matters, Rich Key
conditionally agreed to sell and the legal representative of
GRG Huscoke conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Joy Wisdom International Limited (“Disposal
Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the entire amount of parent company’s loan owed by
the Disposal Company to the Company. (“Very Substantial
Disposal”)

As at the date of this annual report, the announcement in
relation to the Very Substantial Disposal has been submitted
to the Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and will be issued by the Company as soon as
practicable. The transaction is subject to the completion of the
Very Substantial Transaction and the shareholders’ approval
at the special general meeting of the Company. Further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company to update the
Shareholders and the market in relation to the transactions
as and when appropriate and in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 July 2022.

4.

42.

mMEHBEE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFHE

Gross floor Attributable
Name/location Lease term Type area interest
£/ E B Ll BEERE FE{h
(saq.m.)
(F7%)
Properties Held for the Group’s Own Use
FEBERFEEERZYE
The People’s Republic of China
HENRHKFE
No. 1 Jinyan Road, Economic Development Medium term lease Candl 29,148 90%
Zone, Xiaoyi City, Shanxi Province
L ZEDEAREE S5 1% TR CRI
C  Commercial Cc BEX
/ Industrial / I




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMBHME
Year ended 31 December
HEt-A=1+-BLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
g 32 “E-NF —T-N\EF “E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET TET TAR TET
(Restated)
(&31)
(Note 5)
(H17%5)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B ESL %%
Revenue WA 1,176,982 1,605,356 1,478,049 1,330,791 792,518
Cost of sales HEKK (1,050,092) (1,429,499) (1,232,228) (1,117,808) (658,103)
Gross profit/(loss) EA/(£8) 126,890 175,857 245,821 212,983 134,415
Other income and gains, net ~ EfMt A Rlkiz - 58 298,527 264,715 44,953 45,419 58,891
Selling and distribution costs ~ #4% & 2 $5A AR (10,953) (123,024) (137,637) (146,429) (55,949)
Administrative expenses EREH (93,595) (88,018) (103,301) (83,804) (79,608)
Finance costs HEER (73,351) (11,409) (2,200) (8,015) (1582)
Other operating income/ B/ (%) 58
(expenses), net (775,051) 4,392 29,970 21,628 12,758
Reversal/(provision) impairment  #1% + BiE kR EEE
loss on items of property, MEEBER/ (BH)
plant and equipment - - 99,053 84,977 -
(Loss)/profit before tax BB (B1B) /& F (527,533) 4,971 176,659 126,659 68,925
Income tax (expense)lcredit  Fif5E:i (F%) /% (4,999) (11,547) (29,951) 5,254 (8,544)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR rEERRN/ (B8
THE YEAR (532,532) (6,576) 146,708 131,913 60,381
Attributable to: FEfE
Owners of the Company KRREBA (484,675) (9,391) 129,118 117,898 55,663
Non-controlling interests TR ER (47,857 2815 17,590 14,015 4718
(532,532) (6,576) 146,708 131,913 60,381

?
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEHBHUE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE -BENRFERESR

Year ended 31 December

HET-A=1t-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEf “E-NF —E-N\E “E—tF —ERF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FET FHEL THT
(Restated)
(EZ5)
(Note 5)
(#i25)
TOTAL ASSETS BEHE 2,064,323 2,661,384 2,015,315 1,116,534 955,267
TOTAL LIABILITIES BENE (2,189,245)  (2.248286)  (1,614,445) (700,565) (687,662)
NET (LIABILITIESYASSETS  (&f&) /&&ERE (124,901) 413,098 400,870 415,969 267,605
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLETO AL REHR AEGRE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (111,409) 378,337 368,713 376,868 244,610
NON-CONTROLLING FERER
INTERESTS (13,492) 34,761 32,157 39,101 22,995
(124,901) 413,008 400,870 415,969 267,605

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7




DEFINITIONS
BE

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

RARER - BXESEFIEI

“‘AGM”
[BRBFRE

“‘Annual Report”

[4F ¥R

“associate(s)”
B: Y Nuull

“Board”
[EExg

“‘Bermuda Companies Act 1981”

[BRE-NAN—FRAE]

“‘Bye-Laws”
[AaEZma ]

‘CG Report”

[bEEA®RE]

“Companies Ordinance”

IPNGIEE SN

“Director(s)”

[E=£]

“ESG Report”

[RE HERERRSE]

“Group”
[REE

THARAEE TR

the annual general meeting of the Company

ARRBITZBRBFRE

This annual report of the Group prepared for the year ended 31
December 2020
REBFAHREBE _ T _TF T _A=1T—"BHILFEZRFH

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
H EmRAIRE T 2RE

board of Directors of the Company
RKRAFIEEE

the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

(BRE-NN—FRFE) - BTRER] - MAIAEMT A ERK

the bye-laws from time to time adopted by the Company

IN/NEI NS /N A T

the corporate governance report contained in this Annual Report from
pages 38 to 55
REREIBESSBFH 2 CEE RS

Huscoke Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability, whose issued Shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange

MEZERBERAR  RARETMKZZERATF - HEBITRMD B
RFFER T

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EBEDNE622F (R AHED) - BAKRAERT ~ M TS A R M 7 2K

the directors of the Company
RARIES

the environmental, social and governance report contained in this Annual
Report from pages 56 to 81

RERFOEBTEMBEZRE  HEREARSE

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARRBREKBAR
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

"HKS’
(77T

“Listing Rules”
[ LR8I
“PRC”

[ ]

“RMB”
AR

“SFO”

(787 M ' 5P

“Share(s)”

MRt ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ARER ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 52 |

“subsidiaries”

Niai=PNGIN

‘Us$”
[%7T]

sy
[ %]

HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED MEZZEKRER A 7

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hE ARKMBEEBRRTHRE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BERRZEEEEET

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as
amended from time to time)
B2 P g 2 AR Bl (B NRFHEET)

the People’s Republic of China, excludes Hong Kong and Macau in this
Annual Report

REARKME  BAFHEMNT - TEEEERRM

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FERE ZAEREREARE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

BEREDIFEST BE(EAF RBG BRI - BARER] - as A A
1B

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company
RABRAFFIREE0108 7T 2 EilAR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
L SGESTEPN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBRBMAERGAARRAT

a subsidiary (within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance or section
86 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981) for the time being and from time
to time of the Company

ARAIERRTE ZHMBRR (RATMEHIKBRZE-—NAN—FRRDE
F86{F 2 ERE)

United States dollars, the lawful currency of United States
R EEERET

per cent
ER e



HUSCOKE HOLDINGS LIMITED
MEERBRAF




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及管理層之履歷詳情
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	物業詳情
	五年財務概要
	釋義
	封底



